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Agenda for Regular Meeting 

ofthe Board ofDirectors ofthe Palmdale Water District 


to be held at the District's office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 


Wednesday, June 13, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

NOTE: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board 
meeting please contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x 103 at least 48 hours prior to a 
Board meeting to infonn us of your needs and to detelmine if accommodation is feasible. 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after 
distribution of the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District's office 
located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale. Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 xl 03 
for public review of materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES: The prescribed time limit per speaker is three­
minutes. Please refrain from pu blic displays or outbursts such as unsolicited 
applause, comments, or cheering. Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere 
with the abiJity of the District to carry out its meeting wiIJ not be permitted and 
offenders wilJ be requested to leave the meeting. 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or 
ordinance to take action on any item. 

1) 	 Pledge of Allegiance. 

2) 	 Roll Call. 

3) 	 Adoption of Agenda. 

4) 	 Public comments for non-agenda items. 

5) 	 Presentations : 

5.1) 	 2011 Draft Audit and Management Report. (Lance, Soil & Lunghard, LLP/Financial 
Advisor EganlFinance Manager/CFO Williams) 

Providing high quality water to our current and future customers at a reasonable cost. 

http:www.palmdaiewater.org
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6) 	 Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any 
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.) 

6.1) 	 Approval of minutes of regular meeting held May 23, 2012. 

6.2) 	 Payment of bills for June 13, 2012. 

7) 	 Action Items - Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any 
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.) 

7.1) 	 Consideration and possible action on acceptance and filing of 20 II Audit and 
Management Report. (Lance, Soil & Lunghard, LLPfFinancial Advisor 
EganfFinance Manager/CFO Williams) 

7.2) 	 Status report on Cash Flow Statement and Current Cash Balances as of April, 2012. 
(Financial Advisor Egan) 

7.3) 	 Status report on 2012 Financial Statements, Revenue and Expense and 
Departmental Budget Reports for April, 2012. (Finance Manager/CFO Williams) 

7.4) 	 Status report on committed contracts issued. (Engineering Manager Knudson) 

7.5) 	 Status report on comparative persorrnel expenses. (Chair DexterfFinance 
Manager/CFO Williams) 

7.6) 	 Status report on level pay plans. (Finance Manager/CFO Williams) 

7.7) 	 Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 12-7 Authorizing the 
Submission of an Application to the California Department of Water Resources to 
Obtain a Local Groundwater Assistance Grant for the Littlerock Creek Recharge 
and Recovery Project and to Enter Into an Agreement with Respect Thereto. (No 
Budget Impact - Engineering Manager Knudson) 

7.8) 	 Consideration and possible action on Palmdale Fin and Feather Club Dock Platform 
Construction Guidelines and Procedures for new construction or replacement of 
docks at Palmdale Lake and approval of construction of new Dock 29A. (No 
Budget Impact - Facilities CommitteelTreatment Plant Supervisor BokaiSystems 
Supervisor Jeters) 

7.9) 	 Consideration and possible action on declaring District vehicles as surplus and 
offering same for sale. (Savings based on sale price - Facilities 
CommitteelEquipment Mechanic Supervisor Hardenbrook/Facilities Manager 
Moore) 

7.10) 	 Consideration and possible action on professional services agreement for 
monitoring and reporting of wind turbine. ($ IO,OOO/year - Budgeted - Facilities 
Committee/Engineering Manager Knudson) 

7.11) 	 Consideration and possible action on Pipeline Relocation Agreement for APN's 
3053-005-902, 903, 905. (No Budget Impact - Facilities Committee/Engineering 
Manager Knudson) 
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8) 	 InfolTI1ation Items: 

8.1) Reports of Directors: Meetings, Committee meetings, and general report. 

8.2) Report of General Manager. 

8.3) Report of Attorney. 

9) 	 Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) 	 Closed session under: 

10.1) 	 Government Code Section 54956.9(a), existing litigation: Antelope Valley Ground 
Water Cases. 

10.2) 	 Government Code Section 54956.9(a), existing litigation: City of Palmdale vs. 
Palmdale Water District, Case No. BC413432 (Rate Litigation). 

10J) 	 Government Code Section 54956.9(a), existing litigation: City of Palmdale vs. 
Palmdale Water District and Palmdale Water District Public Facilities 
Corporation, Case No. BC413907 (Validation Action). 

10.4) 	 Government Code Section 54956.9(a), existing litigation: Palmdale Water District 
vs. City ofPalmdale, Case No. BC420492 (Recycled Water Litigation). 

10.5) 	 Government Code Section 54956.9(a), existing litigation: United States, et at. v. J­
M Manufacturing Company, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the Central 
District ofCalifornia Case No. ED CV06-0055-GW 

10.6) 	 Government Code Section 54956.9(a), pending litigation: Central Delta Water 
Agency vs. Department of Water Resources, Sacramento Superior Court Case No. 
34-2010-80000561. 

10.7) 	 Government Code Section 4S49S6.9(a), existing litigation: Aqualliance , et at. v. 
Butte Water District, Butte County Superior Case No. 156719. 

11) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

12) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

13) Adjournment. 

~Jo~~ 
General Manager 

DDLIdd 
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Board of Directors 
Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale, California 

We have audited the accom tatements of the Palmdale Water District 
(the "District") as of and for ".lPDecember 31, 2011, as listed in the table of 
contents. These financia are the responsibility of the District's management. Our 
responsibility is to e these financial statements based on our audit. The 
financial statements as December 31, 2010 were audited by other auditors 
whose report dated Ap ressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in dance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the District as of December 31, 2011, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
May 8,2012, on our.consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

lance, Soli & lunghard, LLP 203 North Brea Boulevard· Suite 203 • Brea, CA 92821 • TEL: 714.672.0022· Fax: 714.672.0331 www.lslcpas.com 
Orange County • Temecula Valley • Silicon Valley 

http:www.lslcpas.com
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Board ofDirectors 
Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale, California 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unite America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis as listed ontents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such i not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Gove ccounting Standards Board, who . 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporti placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or . rical c . We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary in cordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of A consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing th atio d comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses quiri the basic financial statements, and. other 
knowledge we obtained durin ".liI¥rsicfinancial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any ass ran the in. ormation because the limited procedures do not 

ress an opinion or provide any assurance. provide us with sufficie e t 

Brea, California 
May 8, 2012 
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Palmdale Water District 
Management's Discussion andAnalYsis 

For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of a ities and financial perfonnance 
of the Palmdale Water District (District) provides an introducti the fmancial statements of the 
District for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. . ourage readers to consider the 
infonnationpresented here in conjunction with the basic fi ts and related notes, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

• 	 In 2011, the District's net assets dl!ll~1IIil $2,151,269 from $115,884,972 to 
$113,733,703. In 2010, the District' reased 4.12% or $4,987,250 from 
$121,123,712 to $116,136,462. 

• 	 The District's 2011 ope ased 0.09% or $19,862 due to an increase in 
miscellaneous related ...~rni1e in 2010 the District's operating revenues 
increased 2.93% or $615,9 

• 	 The District's tin venues (excluding capital contributions) decreased 8.08% 
or $(549,169) no sale of capital assets and a decrease of $(293,797) in property 
tax revenue. In ating revenues increased 11.51% or $742,054 due primarily to an 
increase of $977,9 gain .on the sale of a capital asset, netted against a decrease of 
$135,806 in property t 

• 	 The District's total expenses decreased 11.3% or $2,611,252 due primarily to a $2.83 million 
decrease in purchased water charges for the year, while in 2010 the District's total expenses 
increased 15.83% or $4,629,934 due primarily to a $2.28 million increase in operating expenses, 
a $917,803 decrease in overhead absorption, a $1.34 million increase in depreciation and 
amortization expense, and a $394,688 increase in non-operating expenses; 

Required Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series offmancial statements. The Statement of Net Assets, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and Statement of Cash Flows provide infonnation about 
the activities and perfonnance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by private 
sector companies. 

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the District's investments in resources (assets) and the 
obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating 
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and fmancial flexibility of the District. All 
of the current year's revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Assets. This statement measures the success of the District's operations over the 
past year and can be used to detennine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through . 
its rates and other charges. This statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit 
worthine.ss. The fma1 required fmancial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides 
infonnation about the District's cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The 
Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from 
operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides 

11 
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Palmdale Water District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the 
change in cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 

One of the most important questions asked about the is, " s the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets about the District in a way that helps 
answer this question. These statements inc~lul.... using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting sector companies. All of the current 
year's revenues and expenses are taken when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the changes in them. You can think of the District's 
net assets the difference hptUlP/ll - as one way -to measure the District's ftnancial 
health, or ftnancial position. or decreases in the District's net assets are one 
indicator of whether its improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to 
consider other UVIlI-LIlU _.U«llI!;'_" in economic conditions, population growth, zoning 
and new or chlmg:ed' such as changes in Federal and State water quality 
standards. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the' data provided in 
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 25 
through 47. 

Statement of Net. Assets 

Condensed StJItement ofNet Assets 
2011 2010 Cbange 2009 Cbange 

Assets: 

Cutrent assets $ 14,472,020 12,750,435 1,721,585: 15,514,902 (2.764,467) 

Non..current assets 2,530,409 2,530,165 244 2,326,026 204,139 

Capital assets, net 158,808,157 16~07,271 (3,399,1l4} 164,783,602 (2,576,33Q 

TOIllI assets 

Uabilities: 

Cutrent liabilities 

Non-<:urn:nt liabilities 

175,810,586 

10,022,294 

52,054,589 

1771487,871 

10,051,718 

51,551,180 

~1,677,285l 

(29,424) 

503,409 

182,624,530 

10,580,126 

50,920,692 

~5,136,6591 

(528,408) 

630,488 

TOIllIliabilitles 

Net assets: 

Net investments in capital "".ets 

Restricted fur debt service 

Unrestricted 

Toml nel asse .. 

TOIllIlIabilltl.s arulnet ...... $ 

62,076,883 

109,996,828 

1,494,919 

2,241,956 

113,733,703 

175,810,586 

61,602,898 

112,276,514 

1,449,982 

2,158,476 

115,884,972 

177,487,870 

473,985 

(2,279,686) 

44,938 

83,48() 

(2,151,2681 
(1,677,283~ 

61,500,818 

113,778,417 

1,361,890 

5,983,405 

121 
l
123,712 

182,6241530 

102,080 

(1,501,903) 

88,092 

Q,824,929} 

(5,238,740) 

15,136,660~ 

12 




Palmdale Water District 
Management's Discussion andAnalysis 

. For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful m<llcatc_r of a government's fmancial 
position. In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $1 3,703 and $115,884,972 as of 
December 31,2011 and 2010, respectively. 

A portion of the District's net assets, 98% and 96% as of 11 and 2010, respectively, 
reflects the District's investment in capital assets (net of less any related debt 
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. uses capital assets to provide 
services to customers within the District's service , these assets are not available for 
future spending. 

At the end of years 2011 and 2010, the District .,UUIC11.i!;; in its unrestricted net assets of 
$2,241,956 and $2,158,476, respectively, which future years. 

Statement of Revenues, 

C!!!ge Chllllge 

Revenues: 

Operating revenues 21,640,582 . 19,862 21,024,619 615,963 

7,187,244 11,194,271) , 6,445,188 742,056 

ToIDlr"""",es 28,821,826 {1,174,4001 '};7,469,8(JI 1,358,019 

E>penses: 

Opemting e""""... 

Overhead absorption 

23,002,131 

(516,109) 

(2,6ll,252) 

99,143 

20,813,544 

(1,493,912) 

2,278,587 

917,803 

~reciation ""Pense 7,285,492 7,010,721 274,m 5,971,865 1,038,856 

Non-opernting ""Penses 3,817,003 4,344,299 {m,299) 3,949,611 394,688 

TOOII expenses 31,106,405 33,871,042 ~764,63?l 29,241,108 4,629,934 

Net loss before .aplllicont (3,452,988) (5,043,216) (3,939,045) (l,m,J01) (3,27l,915) 

Capital contributions 1~5,519 55,967 1,169,551 2.234,509 {2,17S,542) 

Chllllge in n.t ...... (2,2'1:7,469) (4.987,249) (2,769,494) 463,208 (5,450,451) 

N.t ....ts.lleginalng orye ... 115,884,973 121,123,112 (1,599,942) 120,660.504 463,208 

Rmtatetrents (251,490) (4,369,436) , (251,490) 

Net ...ets, Ileginaing ofyear 
as restated 115,884,973 120&72~ tS,969,378l 120,660.504 '211,118 

Net ......, end ofyear 113,657,504 11Si!!!l41973 14,369,4~, 121,123,712 (4,987,2491 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes of net assets shows how the District's net assets 
changed during the years. In the case of the District, net assets decreased by $4,217,034 and decreased 
by $4,987,251 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

A closer examination of the sources of changes in net assets reveals that: 

The District's 2011 operating revenues increased 0.09% or $19,862 due to an increase in miscellaneous 
related water service fees, while in 2010 operating revenues increased 2.93% or $615,963 due to an 
increase in water service revenues. 

The District's 20 II non-operating revenues (excluding capital contributions) decreased 8.08% or 
$(549,169) due primarily to no sale of capital assets and a decrease of $(293,797) in property tax 
revenue. In 2010, non-operating revenues increased 11.51% or $742,054 due primarily to an increase of 
$977 ,979 on the gain on the sale of a capital asset, netted against a decrease of $135,806 in property tax 
revenue. 

13 




Palmdale Water District 
Management's Discussion andAnalysis 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

The District's total expenses decreased 11.3% or $2,764,637 due primarily to a $2.83 million decrease 
in purchased water charges for the year, while in 2010 the District's increased 15.83% or 
$4,629,934 due primarily to a $2.28 million increasein operating a $917,803 decrease in 
overhead absorption, a $ 1.34 million increase in depreciation expense, and a $394,688 
increase in non-operating expenses. 

Capital Asset Administration 

At the end of year 2011, the District's investment in 
accumulated depreciation and amortization). 
transmission and distribution systems, 
equipment, vehicles, State Water Project 
capital asset additions in the year 2011 

Changes in ~apita' asset amounts for 2011 were as 

Balance 

Deletions Transfers 2011 
capital assets: 

Non~depreciable assets (140,559) (8,598,695) 6,325,459 

Depreciable assets 8,598,695 262,196,234 

Accumulated depreciation (109,713,5361 
Total capital (140,559) 158,808,157 

Changes in capital asset,amounts for 

Balance 
AdJustments Addition. Del..tlons Transf.... 2010 

capital assets: 

Non-depreciable .ssets $ 11,042,477 3,004,276 (1,983,622) 12,143,131 

Depreciable assets 248,553,279 (2,360,835) 2,965,698 (102,704) 1,983.622 251.039.059 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (94,812,154) 2,109,346 (8,374,815) ,102.704 (100,974,919) 

Total capital asseu1 net 164,783.602 (251,490) (&324.841) 16&207,271 

Debt Administration 

In 2011, long-term debt decreased by $1,119,428, due to regular principal payments and am.ortization on 
the District's outstanding debts. In 2011, long-term debt decreased by $1,074,428, due to regular 
principal payments and amortization on the District's outstanding debts (See Note 8). 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2011 were as follows: 

Balance Additionsl Principal Balance 

2010 Deletions Pa'lments 2011 
Long-term debt: 

1998 COPS $ 13,360,483 61,531 (800,00») 12,622,014 

2004 COPs 36,570,274 (10.959) (370,00») 36,189,315 

Total long-term debt $ 49,930,757 50,572 !1, 170, (0)1 48,811,329 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2010 were as follows: 

Balance Additionsl Principal Balance 

2009 Deletions P!Iments 2010 
Long-term debt: 

1998 COPs $ 14,068,952 61,531 (770,00») 13,360,483 

2004 COPs 361936,233 iWI 9S9! 1355,(0)1 36,570,274 

Total long-term debt $ 51,005,185 50,572 ,1,125,(0») 49,930,757 

14 




Palmdale Water District 
Management's Discussion andAnalysis 

For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide the District's fundin ces, customers, stakeholders and 
other interested parties with an overview of the District's fin tions and fmancial condition. 
Should the reader have questions regarding the infonnatio . s report .or wish to request 
additional financial infonnation, please contact the Dis at 2029 East A venue Q, 
Palmdale, CA 93550 or by.phone (661) 947-4111. 

15 
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Assets 

Water sales and services, net (note 3) 

Restricted - investments (note 

Note receivable - property tall:e 

Deferred charges, net (no 

Capital assets - b 

319,901 

712,744 

14,472,020 

1,661,732 

164,519 

704,158 

6,325,459 

152,482,698 

161,338,566 

175,810,586 

Palmdale Water District 

Statements of Net Assets 


December 31,2011 and 2010 


Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) 

Investments (note 2) 

Accounts receivable ­

Property taxes 

Interest 

Other 

Prepaid eX('enses 

Materials and supplies 

Total current assets 

Non-current assets 

Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Customer deposits for water service 

Construction and developer deposits 

Deferred property tax assessments 

Accrued interest payable 

Long-tenn liabilities;. current: 

Compensated absences (note 7) 

Certificates ofparticipation (note 8) 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Long-tenn liabilities - non-current: 

Compensated absences (note 7) 

Other post employment benefIts payable (note 15) 

CertifICates ofparticipation (note 8) 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Net investment in capital assets (note 9) 

Restricted for debt service (note 10) 

Unrestricted (note 11) 

Total net assets 
Total liabilities. and net assets 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 

2010 

$ 

12,750,435 

164,737,435 

$ 177,487,870 

$ 1,289,084 $ 

2,394,026 

1,702,807 

2,500,000 

603,548 

312,829 

1,220,000 

10,022,294 10,0511718 

104,276 

4,358.,984 

47,591,329 

52,054,589 

62,076,883 61,602,898 

109,996,828 

1,494,919 

2,241,956 

113,733,703 115,884,972 

$ 175,810,586 $ 177,487,870 

4,547,765 

1,948,571 

1,868,922 

3,411,921 

25,401 

13,107 

249,878 

684,870 

1,626,295 

161,817 

742,052 

12,143,131 

150,064,140 

1,518,055 

2,215,256 

1,743,020 

2,500,000 

616,286 

289,101 

1,170,000 

96,367 

2,694,056 

48,760,757 

51,551,180 

112,276,514 

1,449,982 

2,158.,476 
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Palmdale Water District 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 


For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2010 


2010 

Operating revenues: 

Water sales - connnodity charge $ $ 7,841,545 

Monthly water service charge 10,049,688 

Water quality fees 1,567,034 

Elevation fees 801,877 

Other water service charges 1,380,438 

Totaloperating revenues 21,640,582 

Operating expenses: 

Purchased water 1,921,397 4,752,425 

Operations and Production 5,141,790 3,567,635 

Facilities 3,686,533 5,188,578 

Engineering 1,366,272 1,281,197 

Water conservation 368,826 313,260 

4,608,946 4,159,831 

3,387,115 3,829,205 

2°1480,879 23,092,131 

1,179,565 (1,451,549) 

476,966 576,109 

1,656,531 (875,440) 

Depreciation (7d851492) (7z01O,72Q 

Operating income/(loss) (5,628,961) (7,886,161) 

Non-operating revenue (expense): 

Property taxes 5,562,065 5,855,862 

Investment earnings 78,519 88,771 

Rental income 123,406 116,979 

Legal settlements 177,000 (391,900) 

Gain/(loss) on sale/disposition ofcapital assets 977,979 

State Water Project amortization expense (1,453,125) (l,364,095) 

Interest expense -long-term debt (2,502,981) (2,550,410) 

Deferred charges amortization expense (37,894) (37,894) 

Other, net 228,982 147,652 

Total non-operating revenues, net 2,175,973 2,842,944 

Net loss. before capital contributions PI452,988~ (5,043,217) 

Capital Contributions: 

Capital contnbutions (92,810) 

Capital impro vernent fees 1,225,519 148,777 

State capital grants 76,200 

Total capital contnbutions 1,301,719 55!967 

Change in net assets (2,151,269) (4,987,250) 

Net assets, beginning ofyear 115,884,972 121,123,712 

Restatements (251,490) 

Net assets, beginning ofyear as restated 115,884,972 1201872,222 

Net assets, end of year $ 113,733,703 $ 115,884,972 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 

Administration 

Total 0 

overhead absorption 
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Palmdale Water District 

Statements of Cash Flows 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash received from customers 

Cash payments to employees for services 

Cash payments for services and goods 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from non capitaifinancing activities: 

Property tax revenue 

Other non-operating revenues (expens e) 

Cash provided by non-capital 

4,826,073 

605,589 

5,431,662 

$ 

.2010 

21,684,514 

(6,572,271) 

(14,038,685) 

1,073,558 

5,790,877 

264,631 

6,055,508 

Proceeds on sale ofc 

Proceeds from capital co 

Proceeds from state capital g 

Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cas h used by capital and related fmancing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Proceeds fromand sale (purchase) ofinvestments 

Interest and investment earnings 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net decrease in cash andeash equiwents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofthe year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofthe year 

Reconciliation ofcash and cash equilvalents to statement of 

financial position: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equilvalents 

Continued on next page 

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(5,339,503) 

1,225,519 

(1,170,000) 

~~465,l42l 

(7,749,126) 

116,090 

72,975 

189,065 

715,479 

4,547,765 

5,263,244 

5,263,244 

5,263,244 

$ 

(6,049,974) 

977,979 

55,967 

1,293,171 

(1,125,000) 

(2,561,976) 

(7,409,833) 

(1,689,383) 

81,179 

(1,608,204l 
(1,888,971) 

6!4361736 

4,547,765 

$__.....:4::::,54..:.;7:.1.:17..::::65::..­

$_==.;:4~,54;.;.7.,7~65;;. 
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Palmdale Water District 

Statements of Cash Flows (continued) 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


Reconciliation ofoperating loss to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating loss 

Adjustments to reconcile operating los.s to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 

Depreciation Expense 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase)Decrease in assets: 


Accounts receivable - Water sales and services, 


Accounts receivable - Other 


Prepaid expenses 


Materials and supplies 


Increase(Decrease) in liabilities 

Construction an 

Total adjus tments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 

2011 2010 

(7,886,161) 

108,155 

(429,362) 

(70,023) 

(27,874) 

(228,971) 

179,070 

(40,213) 

31,637 

1,664,928 

7,010,721 

94,008 

31,513 

16,379 

119,024 

13,243 

115,163 

(196,752) 

8,672 

1,747,748 

8,472,839 8,959,719 

$ 2,843,878 $ 1,073,558 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Palmdale Water District (District) was formed as an Irrigatio 

Water Code in 1918. The District provides potable water servic e City of Palmdale, California, 

and surrounding unincorporated areas of the County of Los . operated under the direction 

of a five-member board of directors. The board members a the public for staggered four-yearterms. 


The criteria used in determining the scope of th rting entity is based on the provisions of 

Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The --~ Entity, and No. 39, Determining Whether 

Certain Organizations Are Component Units (an arne 1 . The District is the primary governmental 

unit based on the foundation of a separately ected d that is elected by the citizens in a general 

popular election. 


B. Basis of Accounting and Measu 

The District reports its activitie ise fund, which is used to ac.count for operations that are fmanced 
and operated in a manner si iness enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs 
of providing water to its c tin g basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges 
(water sales and services), d similar funding. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the full 
accrual basis of accounting. recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and 
expenses are recognized in the pe ed, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 

Operating revenues, such as water sales and service fees, result from exchange transactions associated with the 
principal activities of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as grant funding and investment income, result from non­
exchange transactions,in which, the District gives (receives) value without directly receiving (giving) value in 
exchange. 

C. Financial Reporting 

The District's basic financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of Governmental: 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements - and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments" (GASB No. 34). This statement established revised 
financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout the United States for the purpose of 
enhancing the understandability and usefulness of fmancial reports. 

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncements provide for a revised view of fmancial information and 
restructure the format of financial information provided prior to its adoption. A statement of net assets replaces 
the balance sheet and reports assets, liabilities, and the difference between them as net assets, not equity. A 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets replaces both the income statement and the statement of 
changes in retained earnings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also requires that the statement of cash flows 
be prepared using the direct method. Under the direct method, cash flows from operating activities are presented 
by major categories. 

Under GASB No. 34, enterprise funds, such as the District, have the option of consistently following or not 
following pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) subsequent to November 
30, 1989. The District has elected not to follow F ASB standards issued after that date, unless such standards are 
specifically adopted by GASB. 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2010 


D. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 

The District did not adopt any new GASB Statement pronouncements in . See Note 17 for further details. 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets 

1. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in 

requires management to make estimates and as~;unlptl( 


liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets 

reported changes in net assets during the repo could differ from those estimates. 


2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the District's c interest bearing accounts. The District considers all 
highly liquid investments with a or less to be cash equivalents. 

3. 

The District has adopte directing management to deposit funds in financial institutioQ,s. 

Changes in fair value th a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that 
fiscal year. Investment in des interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses 
realized upon the liquidation 0 of investments. 

4. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management deems 
customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and write~off of 
those accounts. 

5. Property Taxes and Assessments 

The County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property within the County each 
year. The County of Los Angeles Tax Collector's Office bills and collects the District's share of property 
taxes and assessments. The County of Los Angeles Treasurer's Office remits current and delinquent property 
tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in California is levied in accordance with 
Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (l %) of countywide assessed valuations. 

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes coUected by the County of Los Angeles, 
which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of December 31. The property tax calendar is as 
follows: . 

Lien date March I 
Levy date July I 
Due dates November I and March I 
Collection dates December 10 and April 10 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31,,2011 and 2010 


E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued 

6. Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies consist primarily of water meters, pip . gs for construction and repair to 
the District's water transmission and distribution system. lies are valued at cost using a 
weighted average method. Materials and supplies item ed to exp se at the time that individual 
items are consumed. 

7. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflects costs or Ie to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the basic fln 

8. Restricted Assets 

.....,.;;ordinance or debt covenant and, accordingly are shown 
tatement ofnet assets. The District uses restricted resources, prior 

to using unrestricted res nditures meeting the criteria imposed on the use of restricted 
resources by a third p 

9. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired and/or cted are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reportmg capital assets at $5,000. Donatedassets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition ofcapital assets, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or losses are 
recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 

Littlerock Dam 50 years 
Buildings, wells and distribution system 40 years 
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years 

10. State Water Project - Participation Rights 

The District participates in the State Water Project (Project) entitling it to certain participation rights. The 
District's participation in the Project is through cash payments. Monies used for the construction of capital 
assets, such as pipelines, pumping facilities, stomge facilities, etc., are recorded as participation rights and 
amortized over the life of the agreements. Certain projects also require payments for oll-going maintenance; 
those payments are charged to expense as incurred. 

11. Deferred Charges 

The deferred charges are from bond issuance costs that will be amortized using the straight-line method over 
the remaining life of the respective debt service. 

12. Compensated Absences 

The District's personnel policies provide for accumulation of vacation and sick leave. Liabilities for vacation 
and sick leave are recorded when benefits are earned. Cash payment of unused vacation is available to those 
qualified employees when retired or terminated. 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued 

13. Customer Deposits 

Based on a customer's credit, the District may require a de easonable by the District. These 
deposits are held to payoff close out bills or to cover delin 

14. Net Assets 

• oet assets consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and re anding against the acquisition, construction or ' 
improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted Net Assets ".IIjJl!::t assets consists of constraints placed on net assets use 
sed by 	editors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 

imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 

• 	 s component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet the 
vestment in capital assets. 

15. Water Sales 

Most water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis. Estimated unbilled water revenue through year-end 
has been accrued. 

16. Capital Improvement Fees 

Capital improvement fees represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property 
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or 
capacity commitment. 

17. Budgetary Policies 

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. 
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with planned 
revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for commitments 
related to unperformed contracts for construction and services. 

18. Reclassification 

The District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform to current year presentations. 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


(2) Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments as of December 31, are classified in the accompanyl 

2010 

cash and cash equivalents 
Investments - short-term 
Restricted -Investments 

Total cash and investments 

$ 

$ 

4,547,765 
1,948,571 
1,626,295 
8,122,631 

Cash and investments as of December 31, consisttllllliliIIJ 

2011 2010 

cashon hand 
Deposits with financial i 

$ 

$ 

3,700 
5,247,913 
4,211,637 
9,463,250 

$ 

$ 

3,700 
3,979,957 
4,138,974 
8,122,631 

Investments Authorized by Ol'ernment Code and the District's Investment Policy 

The following table identifies t ent types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the 
California Government Code (or District's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address 
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the 
District, ratherthanthe general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's investment policy. 

Maximum Maximum 
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment Type Maturltt OfPortfoHo in One Il!uer 
u.s. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None 
District Issued Bonds 5 years None None 
Federal Agency Obligations 5 years None None 
Negotiable Certificates ofDeposit 5 years 30010 None 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAlF) N/A None None 

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than 
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's investment policy. The table below 
identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trnstee. The table also identifies 
certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. 

Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 
Investment Type Maturltt OfPortfoHo in One .Issuer 

Investment Contracts None None None 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


(2) Cash and Investments, continued 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for inv: that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a ble to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the posses other party. With respect to investments, 
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investm n marketable securities. Custodial credit risk 
does not apply to a local government's indirect rities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools (such as LAIF). 

do not contain legal or policy requirements 
that would limit the exposure to deposits or investments, other than the following 
provision for deposits: The vaun'Ull_ that a financial institution secure deposits made 
by state or local governmental units in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under state law governmental unit}. The market value of the pledged securities 
in the collateral pool must the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California 
law also allows financial . deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having 
a value of 150% of the Of the bank balances, federally insured is unlimited for non-
interest bearing accounts 31,2012 and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance 
with the Code; however, the securities are not held in the District's name. 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value· of the 
District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying fmancial statements at amounts based upon the 
District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities 
so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide 
requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. Information about the sensitivity of the fair 
values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that 
shows the distribution ofthe District's investments by maturity date: 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


(2) Cash and Investments, continued 

Interest Rate Risk, continued 

Investment maturities as of December 31,2011, were as follows: 

Total More than 

Invesiment Type Invesiment 60 Months 

Federal Agency Obligations $ 2,425,116 

Money Markel Mutual Funds 113,159 

local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,630 

Cash with fiscal agent: 

Inveslment Conlracts 

Total 1,918,866 

Investment maturities as of December 31,2010, we 

Remaining Maturity in Months) 

13 to 24 25 to 60 More than 

Invesiment Type Months Months 60 Months 

Federal Agency Obligations 527,505 1,421,066 

Money Market Mutual Funds 552,531 

local Agency Investment Fu 11,577 

Cash with fiscal agent: 

Investment Contracts 131,357 1,494,938 

Total 695,465 527,505 2,916,004 

Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government 
Code, the District's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each 
investment type, 

Credit ratings as of December 31,2011, were as follows: 

Minimum Exempt Rating as of Year End 

Total Legal From 

Invesiment Type Investment Rating Disclosure AAA Not Rated 

Federal Agency Obligations $ 2,425,116 AAA 2,425,116 

Money Market Mutual Funds 113,159 N/A 113.159 

local Agency Investment Fund (lAIF) 11,630 N/A 11,630 

Cash w~h fiscal agent: 

Investment Contracts 1,661,732 AAA 1,479,625 182,107 

Total $ 4,211,637 3,904,741 306,896 

Credit ratings as of December 31,2010, were as follows: 

Minimum Exempt Rating as of Year End 

Total Legal From 

Invesiment Type Investment Rating Disclosure AAA Not Rated 

Federal Agency Obligations $ 1,948,571 AAA 1,948,571 

Money Market Mutual Funds 552,531 N/A 552;531 

local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,577 N/A 11,577 

Cash with fiscal agent: 

Investment Contracts 1,626,295 AAA 1,494,938 131,357 

Total $ 4,138,974 3,443,509 695,465 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


(2) Cash and Investments, continned 

Concentration 0/Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the can be invested in anyone issuer 
beyond that· stipulated by the California Government Code. one issuer (other than U.S. 
Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment 5% or more of total District 
investments are as follows: 

Invested Amount 

Issuer 

Federal National Mortgage Association 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Total $ 

2011 
1,522,060 

2,382,681 

3,904,741 

2010 
$ 1,027,920 

2,415,589 

$ 3,443,509 

(3) Acconnts Receivable - Water 

$ 

$ 

2011 

2,025,104 
(264,336) 

1,760,767 

2010 

$ 2,255,135 
(386,213) 

$ ~.....1;;:.,8;;,;;68;,;;':;.92;;,;;2;;.. 

(4) Note Receivable - Property Taxes from State 

Under the provisions of the State of California Proposition lA and as part of the 2010 fiscal year State of 
California budget package passed by the California State Legislature on July 28, 2009, the State of California 
borrowed 8.0% of the amount of property ·tax revenue apportioned to cities, counties and special districts. The 
State of California is required to repay this borrowing plus interest by June 30, 2013. After repayment of this 
initial borrowing, the California State Legislature may consider only one additional borrowing within a ten-year 
period. The borrowing by the State of California was recognized as a note receivable in the accompanying 
fmancial statements are as follows: 

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 

2011 2010 

Property taxes from state $ 161,817 $ 159,159 
Accrued interest 2,702 2,658 

Note receivable· property taxes from state $ 164,519 $ 161,817 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic 'Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2010 


(5) Deferred Charges 

The deferred charges balance relates to the bond issuance costs for the trict's 1998 and 2004 certificates of 
participation. The balance is being amortized over the lives of the res debt issuahces. The deferred charges 
net balances are as follows: 

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 

2010 

1998 Certificates of participation issuance costs, net 168,696 $ 183,053 

2004 Certificates of partici pation issuance 535,462 558,999 
Deferred charges, net 704,158 $ ~=...~.;.;42;:';/05;;;2;.. 

(6) Capital Assets 

Balance 
Additions Deletions Transfers 2011 

Non-depreciable assets: 
Land and land rights $ 500 $ $ $ 1,156,263 
Constructlon-In-ptocess 2,92!,082 (140,559) (8,598,695) 5,169,196 

Total non-depred 2,92!,582 !14O,5591 !8,598,695) 6,325,459 

Depredable assets: 
Buildings, wells and dlstributlo 192,394,453 114,849 6,427,216 198,936,518 
SWP- partidpation rights 49,479,006 2,225,748 51,704,834 
Machinery and equipment 9,165,520 217,883 2,171,479 !!,554,B82 

Total depredable assets 251,039,059 ;?,558,480 8,598,695 262,196,234 

Accumulated depredation & amortizati on: 
Buildings, wells and distribution system (79,146,155) (6,079,231) (85,225,386) 
SWP - partidpation rights (15,376,721) (1,453,125) (16,829,846) 
Machinery and equipment (6,452,043) 1!,l06,261) (7,658.3041 

Total acrumulated depredation & amortization !1OO,974,9191 !8,738,6171 (109,713,536) 

Total depreciable assets, net 15O,064,l4O (6,18O,13n 8,598,695 15~48~698 

Total capital assets, net $ 162,207,271 $ !3,258,5551 $ !14O,559) $ ~808,157 

Changes in capital asset amounts for 2010 were as follows: 
Balance Balance 

2009 MlU5tments Additions Deletions Transfers 2010 
Non-depreciable assets: 

Land and land rights $ 1,155,763 $ $ $ $ $ 1,155,763 
Construction-In-process 9,!!!?,714 3,084,276 (1,983,622) !Q,987,368 

Total non-depredable assets 11,042,477 3,084,276 !!,983,6221 12,l43,131 

Depredable assets: 
Buildings, wells and distribution system 192,579,050 (2,360,836) 192,617 1,983,622 192,394,453 
SWP- partidpation rights 46,943,271 2,535,815 49,479,006 
Machinery and equipment 9,030,958 237,266 1102,7041 9,165,520 

Total depredable assets 248,553,279 12,360,8361 2,965,698 (102,7041 1,983,622 251,039,059 

Accumulated depredation & amortization: 
Buildings, wells and distribution system (75,067,707) 2,109,346 (6,187,794) (79,l46,155) 
SWP - participation rights (14,012,627) (1,364,094) (15,376,721) 
Machinery and equipment (5,731,8201 (822,92n 102,704 (6,45~0431 

Total accumulated depredation & amortization (94,812,1541 ;?,109,346 (!!,374,81,5) 1O~704 (100,974,919) 

Total depredable assets, net 153,74!,125 !251,4901 !5,409,l1n 1,983,622 150,064,140 

Total capital assets, net $ 164,783,602 $ !25~4901 $ '~324,8411 $ $ $ 162,207,271 
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Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 


For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and.2010 


(6) Capital Assets, continued 

Construction-In-Process 

The District has been involved in various construction projects year. The balances of the various 
construction projects that comprise the construction-in-process 31 are as follows: 

The balance at Dece mber 31, consists of the followi ng projects: 
2011 

Energy bri dge project 
Well 29drill, equipment and activation 

Palmdale ditch enclosure 2,663,891 
Distribution telemetry upgrade 2,171,479 
30th Street/Avenue Qmain 815,018 
30th Street/Palmdale Blvd Q 596,184 

325,105 
124,197 124,197 

11,457 115,227 

908,827 913,674 913,674 
538,505 588,134 706,875 
618,802 619,129 619,129 

598,923 
Distribution 503,939 532,335 532,335 
Recycled fad lities 234,984 269,654 271,723 

Well 2 rehabilitation 39,505 147,162 161,143 
Avenue SlO/4Oth Street 150,011 
Well 36 drill and equipment 149,602 149,602 149,602 
Well 37 drill and equipment 148,634 148,634 148,634 
Garden Bar Study 92,187 92,187 148,069 
Division Street/Avenue 03 waterline replacement 22,040 SO,599 108,756 
Various other minor projects >$100,00) 358,152 665,157 660,322 

Construction-in-process $ 9!886,714 10,987,368 5!169,196 

State Water Project ­ Participation Rights 

In 1963, the District contracted with the State of California (State) for 1,620 acre-feet per year of water from the 
State Water Project (SWP). In subsequent years, the annual entitlement increased to 21,300 acre feet. The SWP 
distributes water from Northern California to Southern California through a system of reservoirs, canals, pumps 
stations and power generation facilities. 

The District is one of many participants contracting with the State of California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) for a system to provide water throughout California. Under the terms of the State Water Contract, as 
amended, the District is obligated to pay allocable portions of the cost of construction of the system and ongoing 
operations and maintenance costs through at least the year 2035, regardless of the quantities of water available 
from the project. The District and the other contractors may also be responsible to the State for certain 
obligations by any contractor who defaults on its payments to the State. 

Management's present intention is to exercise the District's option to extend the contractual period to at least 
2052, under substantially comparable terms. This corresponds to an estimated 80-year service life for the original 
facilities. The State is obligated to provide specific quantities of water throughout the life of the contract, subject 
to certain conditions. 
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(6) Capital Assets, continued 

In addition to system on-aqueduct power facilities, the State has, eit n its own or through joint venture, 
financed certain off-aqueduct power facilities (OAPF). The power ed is utilized by the system for water 
transportation and distribution purposes. Power generated in ex tem needs is marketed to various 
utilities and California's power market. The District is entitled share of the revenues resulting 
from sales of excess power. The District and the other sible for repaying the capital 
and operating costs of the OAPF regardless of the amount 

The District capitalizes its share of system COIlstrucl.t9n Irtl,clp,att()fl rights in the State water facilities 
when such costs are billed by the DWR. essentially represent a prepayment for 
future water deliveries through the State system. system operations and maintenance costs 
is charged to expense as incurred. 

The District amortizes a portion of rights each year using a formula that considers the 
total estimated cost of the project, _vc,st1ma~teo production capacity of the assets based upon 
information provided by the State rStat(~m4;}nt No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Intangible Assets, requires assets not specifically excluded by their, scope provisions be 
classified as capital lIti,cip;ati()fl rights have been included with the District's capital 
assets as shown in the 

(7) Compensated Absences 

Changes to compensated 

Balance 

2010 Earned Taken 

Balance 

2011 
Current 

Portion 

long-term 

Portion 

$ 385,468 494,403 (462,766) 417.105 312.829 104.276 

Changes to compensated a

Balance 

2009 

bsences for 2010

Earned 

, were as follows: 

Taken 

Balance 

2010 
Current 

Portion 

long-term 

Portion 

$ 376.796 739.274 (730,602) 385,468 289,101 96,367 
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(8) Long.,term Debt 

Certificates 0/Participation 

Changes in long-term debt am<;>unts for 2011 were as follows: 

Balance Balance 

2010 2011 
Long-term debt: 

1998- Certificates of Participation $ (800,000) 13,345,000 

1998 - Discount (188,216) 

1998-loss on Defeasance (534,770) 

2004.- Certificates of Participation (370,000) 35,940,000 

2004 - Premium 249,315 

Total long-term debt (1,170,000) 48,811,329 

Less: Current portion (1,220,000) 

47,591.329 

Additions! Principal Balance 

Deletions Payments 2010 
long-term debt: 

1998 - Certificates 14,915,000 (770,000) 14,145,000 

1998 - Discount (220,253) 16,019 (204,235) 

(625,795) 45,512 (580,283) 

36,665,000 (355,000) 36,310,000 

2004- Premium 271,233. (10,959) 260,274 
Total long-term debt $ 51,005,185 50,572 !l,125,ooo) 49,930,757 

Less: Current portion (1,125,000) (1,170,000) 

Total Non-current portion $ 49,880,185 48,760,757 

1998 Certificates o/Participation 

In April 1998, the District issued $21,925,000 ofRefunding Revenue Certificates ofParticipation, Series 1998 
(1998 COPs), with maturities from 1998 through 2023 and an average interest rate of4.73%. The net proceeds of 
approximately $21,150,000 (plus an additional $2.9 million ofDistrict funds) were used to accomplish an 
advance refunding (an in-substance defeasance) of $23,21 0,000 aggregate principal amount of the District's 
Certificates ofParticipation (Refunding and Water Facilities and Improvement Project) Series 1991 and 
Certificates ofParticipation (Littlerock Dam Project) Series 1993A, with an average interest rate of 5.78%. The 
initial escrow deposit was used to purchase state and local government securities. These securities were deposited 
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the Series 1991 and 
Series 1993A Certificates of Participation. 

The advance refunding resulted in a different between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value amount of 
the old debt of $1 ,160,564. This difference is being amortized through 2023 (the life ofthe debt) using the 
straight-line method. The District completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over 
the next 25 years by approximately $6.5 million and to obtain an economic gain (the difference between the 
present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $3.4 million. 
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(8) Long-term Debt, continued 

1998 Certificates ofParticipation, continued 

The future annual debt service requirements for the 1998 Certificates 

Year 
2012 $ 
2013 
2014 
2015 

2016 
2017-2021 

1,506,250 
1,505,000 

1,506,500 
7,525,500 
3,011,750 

18,067,500 

2004 CertifICates iJfpal·tirJinat 

In August 2004, the District 5,000 of Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2004 (2004 
COPs), with maturities from 2008 through 2034 and an average interest rate of 4.90%. The net proceeds are to be 
used to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain water facilities and to pay issuance costs 
of the debt. Issuance of the COP's resulted in a premium of $328,767 which is being amortized over the life of 
the issue using the straight-line method. Annual debt service requirements for the 2004 Certificates of 
Participation are as follows: 

Debt Service 2004 

!, Year Principal Interest Total 
2012 $ 380,000 1,746,942 2,126,942 
2013 395,000 1,733,642 2,128,642 
2014 410,000 1,718,830 2,128,830 
2015 430,000 1,702,430 2,132,430 
2016 445,000 1,685,230 2,130,230 

2017-2021 2,515,000 8,138,629 10,653,629 
2022-2026 7,860,000 7,305,430 15,165,430 
2027-2031 13,600,000 4,582,500 18,182,500 
2032-2034 9,905,000 1,006,750 10,911,750 

Total $ 35,940,000 29,620,383 65,56O!383 

less: current {38O,(00) 
-~.. 

Total non-current $ 35,560,000 
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(9) Net Investment in Capital Assets 

The balance at December 31, consists ofthe following: 

Capital assets - not being depredated 

capital assets - being depreciated, net 

Certificates of participation - current portion 

Certificates of participation non-current port' 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted Net Assets 

The balance at Decembe r 31, co 

Reservations of Unre 

$ 1,661,732 $ 

'J 

2011 

(166,813) 

1,494,919 $ 

2011 

2010 
12,143,131 

150,064,140 

(1,170,000) 

(48,760,757) 

112,276,514 

(to) 

2010 
1,626,294 

(176,313) 

1,449,982 

(U) 

2010 
Non-spendable or long-term net assets: 

Materials and supplies inventory $ 712,744 $ 684,870 

Prepaid expenses and other deposits 319,901 249,878 

Note receivable - property taxes from state 164,519 161,817 

Deferred charges, net 704,158 742,052 

Total prepaid net assets 1,901,322 $ 1,838,617 

Board designated net assets: 

Operations and maintenance reserve 

Undesignated net assets 340,634 319,859 

Total unrestricted net assets $ $ _...;;;:2,=-15_8...2,241,956 ,4~76~ 

(12) Prior Year Restatement 

The 2010 beginning balance for capital assets was adjusted for the prior year audit in an effort to clean up the 
financials. This change required the District to decrease the "Buildings, wells and distribution system" aggregate 
number by $2,360,836 and increase the accumulated depreciation and amortization to $2,109,346. The net 
difference of this restatement decreased the Total depreciable assets, net by $251,490, which was offset against 
net assets. 

(13) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan 

For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program (Program). 
The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that elect to participate in 
the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their salary until termination, 
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or otherwise made available to the 
employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for income tax purposes. 
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(13) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan, continued 

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for exclusive benefit of the participants. 
Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. There ese assets are not the legal property 
of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District's general dit arket value of all plan assets held 
in trust by the Lincoln Financial Group at December 31, 2011 2010 w ,830,944 and $2,726,336 and, 
respectively. 

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Acco d Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Sin e the Dis as little administrative involvement and does 
not perform the investing function for this plan, the rela 'abilities are not shown on the statement of 
net assets. 

(14) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to m loyees Retirement System (CaIPERS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defmed b , CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost-of-liviflg adjustments, 1 plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common 
investment and administr articlpating public agencies within the State of California. Benefit 
provisions and aU other requl tablished by state statute and the District. Copies of CalPERS annual 
financial report may be obtaine executive Office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814. 

Funding Policy 

The contribution rate for plan members in the CalPERS 2.0% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan is 7% of their 
annual covered salary. The District makes these contributions required of District employees on their behalf and 
for their account. Also, the District is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts 
necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The required employer contribution rates for years 2011, 2010 and 
2009 were as follows: . 

Time Period 

Jan. 1- June 30 

July 1- Dec. 31 

2011 

11.Cl04% 

11.913% 

2010 

10.392% 

11.004% 

ZOO9 

10.287% 

W.392% 

The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute, and the employer contribution 
rateis established and may be amended by CaIPERS. For fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, the District's annual 
contribution was $1,086,497, $968,147 and $993,114, respectively, for CalPERS and was equal to the District's 
required and actual contributions for each year. 

(15) Other Post Employment Benefits Payable 

During the year ended December 31,2008, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 45, which changed the 
accounting and fmancial reporting used by local government employers foe post employment benefits. Previously, 
the costs of such benefits were generally recognized as expenses of local government employers on a pay-as-you­
go basis. The new reporting requirements for these benefit programs as they pertain to the District are set forth 
below. 
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(15) Other Post Employment Benefits Payable, continued 

Plan Description - Eligibility 

The District administers its post-employment benefits plan, a single­ defined benefit plan (Plan). The 
following requirements must be satisfied in order to be eligible fo ent medical, dentaland vision 
benefits: (1) Attainment of age 55, and 20 years for full-time se ent from the District (the 
District must be the last employer prior to retirement). 

Membership in the OPEB plan consisted of the following memb 
2009 

Active plan members 90 81 
Reti rees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 10 8 
Separated plan members entitled t t 

yet receiving benefits 
Total plan membership 100 100 89 

The District offers post e aI, dental and vision benefits to retired employees who satisfy the 
eligibility rules. Spouses an uses are also eligible to receive benefits. Retirees may enroll in any 
plan available through the AC edical, dental and vision programs. The contribution requirements of 
Plan members and the District are e ished and may be amended by the Board of Directors. 

Funding Policy 

The District is required to contribute the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of the Employer, an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45 .. The ARC represents a 
level of funding that, ifpaid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the nonnal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial Iiabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The current ARC rate is 
3.32% for 2011 and 3.22% for 2010 of the annual covered payrolL 

The District will pay 100% of the cost of the post-employment benefit plan. The District funds the plan on a pay­
as-you-go basis and maintains reserves (and records a liability) for the difference between pay-as-you-go and the 
actuarially determined ARC cost. 

Annual Cost 

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 

2011 2010 2009 
Annual OPEB expense: 

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,982,672 1,963,042 538,690 

Interest on net OPEB obligation 55,498 19,494 9,761 

Adjustment to annual required contribution (105,146) (36,933) (13,130) 

Total annual OPES expense 1,933,024 1,945,603 535,321 

Change in netOPEB payable obligation: 

Age adjusted contribution made (268,096) 1197,855) (62,848) 

Total change in net OPEB payable obligation 1,664,928 1,747,748 472,473 

OPEB payable - beginning of year 2,694,056 946,308 473,835 

OPES payable - end of year $ 4,358,984 2,694,056 946,308 
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. (15) Other Post Employment Benefits Payable, continued 

Annual Cost, continued 

The District's annual OPES cost, the percentage of the annual OP 
OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2011 and the two preceding years 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

2011 
2010 
2009 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Three-YearHisto 0 N 

Annual 
OPEB 

Cost 

NetOPEB 

Obligation 
Payable 

1,664,928 
1,747,748 

472,473 

UAALasa 

Actuarial Actuarial Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded Covered of Covered 

Valuation Plan Assets liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date Cal (b-a) (albl (c) lib-ai/c) 

12/31/2011 $ 16,234,820 16,234,820 0.00% $ 6,577,418 246.83% 

12/31/2010 $ 16,234,820 16,234,820 0.00% $ 6,572,271 247.02% 

12/31/2fm $ 4,497,022 4,497,022 0.00% $ 6,337,001 70.96% 

The most recent valuation (dated December 31, 2011) includes an Actuarial Accrued Liability and Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued Liability of $16,234,820. There are no plan assets because the District funds on a pay-as~you­
go basis and maintains net assets equal to the remaining net post-employment benefits payable obligation. The 
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) for the years ended December 31, 2011 
and 2010, were $6,577,418 and $6,572,271, respectively. The ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to 
annual covered payroll is 246.83% and 247.02% as ofDecember 31,2011 and 2010, respectively. 
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(15) Otber Post Employment Benefits Payable, continued 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported about the probability of 
events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made are based on the types of 
benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan and the pattern of sharing 
of costs between the employer and plan members to with the long-term perspective of 
actuarial calculations, actuarial methods and assumptions techniques that are designed to reduce 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities t~IIIIit:!;s. 

The following is a summary ofthe actuarial 
Valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining aIll(xti2~tiCI 
Asset valuation 
Actuarial <lQ"'lt'l'lnn< 

2.50"10- Current LAIF rating (rounded) 

3.25% 

2.06% 

District annual COLA 


(16) Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the Association of 
California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA), an intergovernmental risk sharing 
joint powers authority created to provide self-insurance programs for California water agencies. The purpose of 
the ACW A/JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase the appropriate 
amount of insurance coverage, At December 31, 2009, the District participated in the liability and property 
programs of the ACW AlJPIA as follows: 

• 	 General and auto liability: The District has a zero deductible for general and auto liability. The District 
purchased additional excess coverage layers: $60 million for general, auto and public officials liability, 
which increases the limits on the insurance coverage noted above. 

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage: 

• 	 Employee dishonesty coverage up to $100,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty, forgery or 
alteration and theft, computer fraud coverage's. 

• 	 Property loss is paid based on the replacement cost or actual cash value for the property on file. If the 
property is replaced within two years after the loss or otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a 
combined total of $1 00 million per occurrence it is subject to a $2,500 deductible per occurrence. 

• 	 Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $50 million per occurrence, subject to 
various deductibles depending on the type of equipment. 

• 	 Public officials' liability coverage up to $1 million for each occurrence subject to the terms of the policy. 

• 	 Workers' compensation insurance provides coverage with a self-insured retention limit of$2 million for 
all work related injuries/illnesses covered by California law. The District has purchased an excess 
insurance policy for an additional $2 million to statutory limits. 
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(16) Risk Management, continued 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of ast three fiscal years and there were 
no reductions in the District's insurance coverage during the years e December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. 
Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been urr d the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. 
been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR 

. ilities inc 
spa able as 0 

an amount for claims that have 
cember 31,2011 and 2010. 

(17) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statem 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ( 
31, 2011, that have effective dates that may impact 

several pro
ntations. 

nouncements prior to December 

Governmental Accounting Standards Boa 

In November 2010, the GASB issu , Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements. This stan ".WlCcount for and report service concession arrangements 
(SCAs), a type of public-private or puB lic partnership that state and local governments are increasingly 
entering into. This statement· ancial statements for periods beginning after December 15,2011. 
The impact of the impleme on of t to the District's fmancial statements has not been assessed at 
this time. 

In November 2010, the GASB issue Statement No.61, The Financial Reporting Entity, Omnibus. This standard 
is designed to improve financial reporting for governmental entities by amending the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statement and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and local Governments. This statement is effective for fmancial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to 
the District's financial statements has not been assessed at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 62 

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The requirements in this 
Statement will improve fmancial reporting by contributing to the GASB's efforts to codify all sources of 
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments so that they derive from a single source. 
The requirements for Statement No. 62 are effective for fmancial statements beginning after December 15,2011. 
The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's fmancial statements has not been assessed at 
this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63 

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Statement provides financial reporting guidance which 
standardizes the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects 
on a government's net position. The requirements of Statement No. 63 are effective for fmancial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15,2011. The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District's 
fmancial statements has not been assessed at this time. 
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(17) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective, continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 64 

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Ins 
Termination Provisions an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
whether an effective hedging relationship continues after th 
counterparty's credit support provider. The requiremen 
statements for periods beginning after June 15,2011. This 
on the presentation of the District's fmancial statements. 

. Application 
ive of thi

swap 
'4 are 

of Hedge Accounting 
s Statement is to clarify 
counterparty or a swap 
effective for financial 

(18) Commitments and Contingencies 

State Water Contract 

Estimates of the District's share of the the State Water Project (SWP) are provided annually 
by the State. The estimates are or decreases resulting from changes in planned 
facilities,refmements in cost estlim~Ltes the next five years payments under the State Water 
Contract, exclusive of variable currently estimated by the State to be as follows: 

Amount 

$ 5,182,562 

2013 5,114,024 

2014 4,154,919 

2015 4,096,977 

2016 4,122,725 

As of December 31, 2011, the District has expended $79,610,764 since the District started participating in the 
State Water Contract. 

According to the State's latest estimates, the District's long-term obligations under the contract, for capital and 
minimum operations and maintenance costs, including interest to the year 2035, are as follows: 

Type of Long-Term Obligation Amount 

State Water Project Contract: 

Transportation facilities $ 65,968,239 

Conservation facilities 22,376,952 

Off-aqueduct power facilities 4,606,332 

Revenue bond surcharge 2,428,679 

Total $ ~...,;;.;95.,3;;,;80~,~20;;,;2;,. 

The amounts shown above do not contain any escalation for inflation and are subject to significant variation over 
time because the amounts are based on a number of assumptions and are contingent on future events. 
Accordingly, none of the estimated long-term obligations are recorded as liabilities in the accompanying basic 
fmancial statements. 
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(18) Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

State Water Contract, continued 

Bay/Delta Regulatory and Planning Activities. The State Water 
agency responsible for setting water quality standards and 
Decisions of the State Board can affect the availability of w 
public proceedings leading to regulations and decisions. 
Control Plan establishing water quality standards and flow imp 

In August 2000, the California Federal m Record of Decision (Decision) was 
approved with mandates to improve supply reliability, augment ecosystem 
restoration, and assure long-term nrr,t.>,'t," its first three years, CALFED has invested 
more than $2.0 billion in hundreds of to meet these program goals. 

In May 2004, a Delta Improvement ••lIea to facilitate implementation of the Decision. Funding 
is expected to be provided by appropriations and contributions from local users, including the 
District. CALFED'sobj costs based on a beneficiaries pay policy, that is new costs 
commensurate with the exact allocation of costs between the federal, state, and 
local users has 'not been therefore, the District cannot estimate the extent of timing of its 
contributions at this time. 

There are other pending actions may adversely impact the District's ability to control the sale of water 
transported through the SWP into its service area. The impact on future revenues of such actions cannot be 
determined. 

Construction Contracts 

The District has a vanety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or 
modification of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The fman9ing of such construction 
contracts is being provided primarily from the District'sreplacement reserves and advances for construction. The 
District has committed to approximately $2,881,600 in open construction contracts as of December 31,2011. 
These include the following: 

Estimated 

Costs to 

Project Name Complete 

Ave Q3/ Division· Sumac Ave main replacement (Spec. No. 0902a) $ 525,000 

9th/12th Street East main replacement (Spec. No. 0903) 683,000 

Storage Tank Re-Coatings 360,000 

Uttlerock Dam Sediment Removal 270,000 

We1l11A Rehabilitation 200,000 

Avenue S & Downing waterline replacement 125,000 

Various other minor projects 718,600 

$ 2,881,600 

45 



Palmdale Water District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statem~nts 


For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 


(18) Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

City ofPalmdale 1/. Palmdale Water District 

Ou May 13, 2009, the District's Board of Directors adopted a ne 
rate stru{}ture. Under this new rate structure, District customer 
as determined by a mathematical formula that applies v . 
number of persons in the household and actual weather 
against that customer' s water allocation for that month and th 
then placed in tiers, with increasing water rates hi 

Also at the May 13,2009 Board meeting, District Public Facilities 
Corporation adopted resolutions Hnt1rnVlnff ;el1:ltl(~at('s of Participation (the "COPs") to finance 
various District capital projects and reserves, which had been expended to pay for 
substantial improvements to the Those COPs were to be panially secured by the 
revenue stream derived from the 

On May 14,2009, the City filed a lawsuit, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. 
BC413432 (the "Rate the District's adoption of the new rate structure. The City 
contended the District Section 6 of the California Constitution both procedurally and 
substantively. 

Among other things, the City that the new water rate structure results in rates that exceed the 
reasonable cost of the service the District provides, and that the resulting rates charged to a parcel are not 
proportional to the cost attributable to providing water service to that parcel. 

The City also filed a separate lawsuit under Code of Civil Procedure Section 863, known as a reverse validation 
action (Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. BC413907, the "Validation Action"), seeking to invalidate 
the District's new rate structure and the actions taken by the District and the Palmdale Water District Public 
Facilities Corporation to approve the COPs. The City based the Validation Action on the same alleged 
constitutional violations on which it based the Rate Litigation. 

Trial of the Validation Action occurred on February 26, 2010 (the Rate Litigation was stayed, pending the 
outcome of the Validation Action). On that date, the court issued its tentative ruling, heard oral arguments from 
the parties and took the matter under submission. On March 12,20 I 0, the court issued its ruling that rejected the 
City's challenge in the Validation Action and validated the District's new rate structure and the actions taken in 
noticing, adopting and implementing that structure. 

The City appealed the court's ruling in the Validation Action. On August 9,2011, the Court of Appeal issued its 
decision that reversed the trial court's judgment and held that the District violated Article XIIID, Section 6 of the 
California Constitution. That ruling was based on the court's determination that the different widths of tiers among 
customer classes in the District's water budget rate structure violated the "proportionality of costs" requirement of 
Article XIIID, Section 6. 

Based on the Court of Appeal's decision, the District cured the defect noted by the court by revising its water 
budget rate structure so that the tiers among the three customer classes are now equal. District staff has 
recalculated water charges using those equalized tiers from when the new structure took effect in June 2009 and 
has been issuing credits back to impacted District customers, including the City. 
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(18) Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

City ofPalmdale v. Palmdale Water District, continued 

The City maintains the' District's action to cure the defect in is not permissible and that the 
District should apply the rate structure in effect prior to its adopt the new structure. The 
City has submitted a form of judgment in that regard for to . Further proceedings in this 
matter are currently stayed to allow the parties an nn,~".,h'l on a global settlement of all litigation 
between them. 

If this matter is not settled, the District will oppose obtain a judgment in this case, and will 
attempt to further litigate the numerous issues the _"U~'.u. the Court of Appeal did not address. 
However, if the matter does not settle, the with payment of the City's attorneys' fees 
under Code of Civil Procedure likely to be significant. In addition, if there were an 

judgment could be significant and pose a risk of a 
material adverse financial effect on California law allows public agencies certain means of 
satisfying judgments that woul to mitigate that impact. Also, payment of such a judgment 
would be a proper factor to c expense in future water mte setting actions. 

Other Litigation 

In the ordinary course e District is subject to claims and ·litigation from outside parties. 
Nevertheless, after consultation wi al counsel, the District believes that these actions, when finally concluded 
and determined are not likely to have a material adverse effect on the District's financial position, results of 
operations, or cash flows. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER M 

OF FINANCIAL STATEME 0 

ANCIAL REPORTING 
RS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

IN ACCORDANCE 
'ANDARDSWITH GOVERNME 

Board of Directors 
Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale, CaHfornia 

We have audited the fi of the basic fmancial statements of the Palmdale Water 
District, (the Distri year ended December 31, 2011, and have issued our 
report thereon dated e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in th tates of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Govern Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District' sinternal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose. of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over fmancial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identifY all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiencies in the District's internal 
control to be material weaknesses: 

Lance. Soli &Lunghard, LLP 203 North Brea Boulevard· Suite 203 • Brea, CA 92821 • TEL: 714.672.0022 • Fax: 714.672:0331 www.lslcpas.com 

Orange County • Temecula Valley • Silicon Valley 


http:www.lslcpas.com
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CERTIFIED fiiil81IC ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Directors 
Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale, California 

As a result of our audit procedures, we t required a net 
asset restatement. There were capital osed of in prior 
years that had not been fully depreciated ratllSa(mCln was not recorded 
when the assets were disposed of. entry was recorded to 
remove the capital assets from along with the related 
accumulated depreciation. The __'v~ accumulated depreciation, 
was the amount of the net 

statements for the District's various accounts 
a5'''ll'''~'''~ ledger timely, on a monthly basis, and 

Most of the problems encountered within the 
if a proper system of checks and balances is 

y's procedures. A proper system would include the 
bank reconciliations g completed monthly for all bank accounts and the 
proper review and approval of the bank reconciliations in a timely manner. As a 
result of the bank reconciliations not being completed in a timely manner, journal 
entries were recorded to address these reconciling differences. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

In addition, we noted other matters that we reported to management of the District in a separate 
letter dated May 8, 2012. 

We did not audit the District's responses to the findings described above and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, management, the audit 
committee, the Board of Directors, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Brea, California 
May 8, 2012 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
Board of Directors 
Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Palmdale Water District (District) as of 
and for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, which collectively comprise the District’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  These basic financial statements are the 
responsibility of the District’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic 
financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the basic financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Palmdale Water District as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the 
respective changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 8, 2011, on 
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audit. This report can be found on page 31. 

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 2 through 5 and the other post employment benefits 
funded status and funding progress of the plan on page 26 are not required parts of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. 
However, we did not audit this information and express no opinion on it. 

April 8, 2011 
Cypress, California
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the Palmdale Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the 
District for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.  We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and related notes, which 
follow this section. 

Financial Highlights
� In 2010, the District’s net assets decreased 4.12% or $4,987,250 from $121,123,712 to 

$116,136,462. In 2009, the District’s net assets increased 0.38% or $463,208 from $120,660,504 
to $121,123,712. 

� The District’s 2010 operating revenues increased 2.93% or $615,963 due to an increase in water 
service revenues, while in 2009 the District’s operating revenues increased 19.45% or $3,423,293 
due to an increase in rates. 

� The District’s 2010 non-operating revenues increased 11.51% or $742,054 due primarily to an 
increase of $977,979 on the gain on the sale of a capital asset, netted against a decrease of 
$135,806 in property tax revenue. In 2009, non-operating revenues decreased 20.92% or 
$1,704,524 due to a decrease in investment earnings and from the sale of District property in 
2008. 

� The District’s total expenses increased 15.83% or $4,629,934 due primarily to a $2.28 million 
increase in operating expenses, a $917,803 decrease in overhead absorption, a $1.34 million 
increase in depreciation and amortization expense, and a $394,688 increase in non-operating 
expenses, while in 2009 the District’s total expenses decreased $716,920 or 2.39% due primarily 
to a $1.57 million decrease in operating expenses. 

Required Financial Statements 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and Statement of Cash Flows provide information about 
the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by private 
sector companies.

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and the 
obligations to creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating 
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  All 
of the current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Assets.  This statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past 
year and can be used to determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its 
rates and other charges. This statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness.
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about 
the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statement of Cash Flows 
reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-
capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as 
where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the 
reporting period. 
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Financial Analysis of the District 
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets report information about the District in a way that helps 
answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. All of the current 
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the District’s 
net assets – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure the District’s financial 
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are one 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider 
other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning and new 
or changed government legislation, such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 10 
through 30. 

Statement of Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $116,136,462 and $121,123,712 as of December 
31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

A portion of the District’s net assets, 97% and 94% as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, 
reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any related debt 
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide 
services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending.  

At the end of years 2010 and 2009, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net assets of 
$2,158,476 and $5,983,405, respectively, which may be utilized in future years. 

2010 2009 Change 2008 Change

Assets:
Current assets $ 12,881,792      15,514,902      (2,633,110)       14,055,632      1,459,270        
Non-current assets 2,398,807        2,326,026        72,781             7,596,563        (5,270,537)       
Capital assets, net 162,458,761    164,783,602    (2,324,841)       161,232,309    3,551,293        

Total assets 177,739,360    182,624,530    (4,885,170)       182,884,504    (259,974)          

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 10,051,718      10,580,126      (528,408)          10,697,121      (116,995)          
Non-current liabilities 51,551,180      50,920,692      630,488           51,526,879      (606,187)          

Total liabilities 61,602,898      61,500,818      102,080           62,224,000      (723,182)          

Net assets:
Net investment in capital assets 112,528,004    113,778,417    (1,250,413)       109,197,696    4,580,721        
Restricted for debt service 1,449,982        1,361,890        88,092             2,625,838        (1,263,948)       
Unrestricted 2,158,476        5,983,405        (3,824,929)       8,836,970        (2,853,565)       

Total net assets 116,136,462    121,123,712    (4,987,250)       120,660,504    463,208           
Total liabilities and net assets $ 177,739,360    182,624,530  (4,885,170)     182,884,504   (259,974)         

Condensed Statements of Net Assets
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes of net assets shows how the District’s net assets 
changed during the years. In the case of the District, net assets decreased by $4,987,251 and increased by 
$463,208 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  

A closer examination of the sources of changes in net assets reveals that:  

The District’s 2010 operating revenues increased 2.93% or $615,963 due to an increase in water service 
revenues, while in 2009 the District’s operating revenues increased 19.45% or $3,423,293 due to an 
increase in rates. 

The District’s 2010 non-operating revenues increased 11.51% or $742,054 due primarily to an increase of 
$977,979 on the gain on the sale of a capital asset, netted against a decrease of $135,806 in property tax 
revenue. In 2009, non-operating revenues decreased 20.92% or $1,704,524 due to a decrease in 
investment earnings and from the sale of District property in 2008. 

The District’s total expenses increased 15.83% or $4,629,934 due primarily to a $2.28 million increase in 
operating expenses, a $917,803 decrease in overhead absorption, a $1.34 million increase in depreciation 
and amortization expense, and a $394,688 increase in non-operating expenses, while in 2009 the 
District’s total expenses decreased $716,920 or 2.39% due primarily to a $1.57 million decrease in 
operating expenses. 

2010 2009 Change 2008 Change

Revenues:
Operating revenues $ 21,640,582      21,024,619      615,963           17,601,326      3,423,293        
Non-operating revenues 7,187,243        6,445,188        742,055           8,149,712        (1,704,524)       

Total revenues 28,827,825      27,469,807      1,358,018        25,751,038      1,718,769        

Expenses:
Operating expenses 23,092,131      20,813,544      2,278,587        22,390,311      (1,576,767)       
Overhead absorption (576,109)          (1,493,912)       917,803           (1,209,074)       (284,838)          
Depreciation expense 7,010,721        5,971,865        1,038,856        5,008,033        963,832           
Non-operating expenses 4,344,299        3,949,611        394,688           3,768,758        180,853           

Total expenses 33,871,042      29,241,108      4,629,934        29,958,028      (716,920)          

Net loss before capital cont. (5,043,217)       (1,771,301)       (3,271,916)       (4,206,990)       2,435,689        

Capital contributions 55,967             2,234,509        (2,178,542)       649,845           1,584,664        

Change in net assets (4,987,250)       463,208           (5,450,458)       (3,557,145)       4,020,353        

Net assets, beginning of year 121,123,712    120,660,504    463,208           124,217,649    (3,557,145)       

Net assets, end of year $ 116,136,462    121,123,712    (4,987,250)       120,660,504    463,208           

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets



Palmdale Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 

5

Capital Asset Administration 
At the end of year 2010, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $162,458,761 (net of 
accumulated depreciation and amortization). This investment in capital assets includes land, land rights, 
transmission and distribution systems, wells, tanks, reservoirs, pumps, buildings and structures, 
equipment, vehicles, State Water Project entitlement, and construction-in-process. There were numerous 
capital asset additions in the year 2010 (See Note 6). 

Debt Administration 
In 2010, long-term debt decreased by $1,074,428, due to regular principal payments and amortization on 
the District’s outstanding debts.  In 2009, long-term debt decreased by $1,029,428, due to regular 
principal payments and amortization on the District’s outstanding debts (See Note 8). 

Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and 
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.  
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request 
additional financial information, please contact the District’s Administrative Services Manager at 2029 
East Avenue Q, Palmdale, CA 93550 or by phone (661) 947-4111. 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2010 were as follows:
Balance Additions/ Principal Balance

2009 Deletions Payments 2010

Long-term debt:
1998 COPs $ 14,068,952      61,531             (770,000)          13,360,483      
2004 COPs 36,936,233      (10,959)            (355,000)          36,570,274      

   Total long-term debt $ 51,005,185      50,572           (1,125,000)     49,930,757      

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2009 were as follows:
Balance Additions/ Principal Balance

2008 Deletions Payments 2009

Long-term debt:
1998 COPs $ 14,737,421      61,531             (730,000)          14,068,952      
2004 COPs 37,297,192      (10,959)            (350,000)          36,936,233      
   Total long-term debt $ 52,034,613      50,572           (1,080,000)     51,005,185      

Changes in capital asset amounts for 2010 were as follows:
Balance Transfers/ Balance

2009 Additions Deletions 2010

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 11,042,477      3,084,276        (1,983,622)       12,143,131      
Depreciable assets 234,540,652    4,949,320        (102,704)          239,387,268    
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (80,799,527)     (8,374,815)       102,704           (89,071,638)     

   Total capital assets, net $ 164,783,602  (341,219)        (1,983,622)     162,458,761   

Changes in capital asset amounts for 2009 were as follows:
Balance Transfers/ Balance

2008 Additions Deletions 2009

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets $ 78,185,661      5,472,198        (72,615,382)     11,042,477      
Depreciable assets 157,874,310    76,666,342      -                   234,540,652    
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (74,827,662)     (5,971,865)       -                   (80,799,527)     

   Total capital assets, net $ 161,232,309  76,166,675    (72,615,382)   164,783,602   



Basic Financial Statements



Palmdale Water District 
Statements of Net Assets 

December 31, 2010 and 2009 

6

2010 2009

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 4,547,765        6,356,129        
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents (note 2) 131,357           80,607             
Investments – short-term (note 2) 1,948,571        760,312           
Accrued interest receivable 25,401             17,809             
Accounts receivable – water sales and services, net (note 3) 1,868,922        1,962,930        
Accounts receivable – property taxes 3,411,921        3,929,173        
Accounts receivable – state capital grants 2,463               1,295,634        
Accounts receivable – other 10,644             42,157             
Materials and supplies inventory 684,870           803,894           
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 249,878           266,257           

Total current assets 12,881,792    15,514,902     

Non-current assets:
Restricted – investments (note 2) 1,494,938        1,466,500        
Note receivable – property taxes from state (note 4) 161,817           79,580             
Deferred charges, net (note 5) 742,052           779,946           
Capital assets – not being depreciated (note 6) 12,143,131      11,042,477      
Capital assets – being depreciated, net (note 6) 150,315,630    153,741,125    

Total non-current assets 164,857,568    167,109,628    

Total assets $ 177,739,360    182,624,530    

Current liabilities – payable from unrestricted current assets:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,518,055        1,504,812        
Customer deposits for water service 2,215,256        2,100,093        
Construction and developer deposits 1,743,020        1,939,772        
Deferred property tax assessments 2,500,000        3,000,000        
Accrued interest payable 616,286           627,852           
Long-term liabilities – due in one year:

Compensated absences (note 7) 289,101           282,597           
Certificates of participation (note 8) 1,170,000        1,125,000        

Total current liabilities 10,051,718      10,580,126      

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (note 7) 96,367             94,199             
Other post employment benefits payable (note 14) 2,694,056        946,308           
Certificates of participation (note 8) 48,760,757      49,880,185      

Total non-current liabilities 51,551,180      50,920,692      

Total liabilities 61,602,898      61,500,818      

Net assets:
Net investment in capital assets (note 9) 112,528,004    113,778,417    
Restricted for debt service (note 10) 1,449,982        1,361,890        
Unrestricted (note 11) 2,158,476        5,983,405        

Total net assets 116,136,462    121,123,712    

Total liabilities and net assets $ 177,739,360    182,624,530    

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
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2010 2009

Operating revenues:
Water sales – commodity charge $ 7,841,545        10,265,064      
Monthly water service charge 10,049,688      7,931,635        
Water quality fees 1,567,034        1,093,953        
Elevation fees 801,877           543,458           
Other water service charges 1,380,438        1,190,509        . .

Total operating revenues 21,640,582      21,024,619      

Operating expenses:
Source of supply – purchased water 4,752,425      3,484,933       
Operations and production 3,567,635        2,527,780        
Facilities 5,188,578        5,362,757        
Engineering 1,281,197        1,422,431        
Water conservation 313,260           263,376           
Administration 4,159,831        4,149,701        
Finance and  customer service 3,829,205        3,602,566        

Total operating expenses 23,092,131      20,813,544      

Operating income(loss) before overhead absorption (1,451,549)       211,075           
Overhead absorption 576,109        1,493,912     

Operating income(loss) before depreciation expense (875,440)          1,704,987        
  Depreciation expense (7,010,721)       (5,971,865)       

Operating loss (7,886,161)       (4,266,878)       

Non-operating revenue(expense):
Property taxes 5,855,862        5,991,668        
Investment earnings 88,771             48,201             
Energy refunds and rebates 13,985             1,342               
Rental income 116,979           93,010             
Legal settlements (391,900)          184,312           
Gain/(loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets 977,979           -                   
State Water Project amortization expense (1,364,095)       (1,317,226)       
Deferred charges amortization expense (37,894)            (37,894)            
Interest expense – long-term debt (2,550,410)       (2,594,491)       
Other non-operating revenues/(expenses), net 133,667           126,655           

Total non-operating revenues, net 2,842,944        2,495,577        

Net loss before capital contributions (5,043,217)       (1,771,301)       

Capital contributions:
Capital contributions (92,810)            892,581           
Capital improvement fees 148,777           37,115             
State capital grants -                   1,304,813        

Total capital contributions 55,967             2,234,509        

Change in net assets (4,987,250)       463,208           

Net assets, beginning of year 121,123,712    120,660,504    

Net assets, end of year $ 116,136,462  121,123,712    

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services $ 21,684,514      20,168,920      
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (14,038,685)     (12,937,654)     
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages (6,572,271)       (6,377,001)       

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,073,558        854,265           

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Proceeds from property taxes and assessments 5,790,877        5,677,001        
Energy refunds and rebates 13,985             1,342               
Rental income 116,979           93,010             
Other non-operating revenues/(expenses), net 133,667           126,655           

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 6,055,508        5,898,008        

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,514,159)       (6,150,350)       
Proceeds from capital contributions (92,810)            892,581           
Proceeds from capital improvement fees 148,777           37,115             
Proceeds from state capital grants 1,293,171        39,179             
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 977,979           -                   
Cash payments for State Water Project entitlement capital costs (2,535,815)       (4,690,034)       
Principal paid on long-term debt (1,125,000)       (1,080,000)       
Interest paid on long-term debt (2,561,976)       (2,554,756)       

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (7,409,833)       (13,506,265)     

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale (purchase) of investments (1,558,026)       5,745,283        
Interest and investment earnings 81,179             108,387           

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (1,476,847)       5,853,670        
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,757,614)     (900,322)         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 6,436,736        7,337,058        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,679,122        6,436,736        

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statement of 
 financial position: 2010 2009

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,547,765        6,356,129        
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents 131,357           80,607             

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 4,679,122        6,436,736        

Continued on next page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2010 2009
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating loss $ (7,886,161)       (4,266,878)       

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Deprecation expense 7,010,721        5,971,865        

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)Decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable – water sales and services, net 94,008             (784,364)          
Accounts receivable – other 31,513             25,432             
Materials and supplies inventory 119,024           118,799           
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 16,379             52,328             

Increase(Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,243             (621,696)          
Customer deposits for water service 115,163           98,725             
Construction and developer deposits (196,752)          (195,492)          
Compensated absences 8,672               (16,927)            
Other post employment benefits payable 1,747,748        472,473           

Total adjustments 8,959,719        5,121,143        

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,073,558      854,265          

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The Palmdale Water District (District) was formed as an Irrigation District under Division 11 of the 
California Water Code in 1918.  The District provides potable water service to a portion of the City of 
Palmdale, California, and surrounding unincorporated areas of the County of Los Angeles.  The District is 
operated under the direction of a five-member board of directors.  The board members are elected by the 
public for staggered four-year terms.   

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (an amendment of No. 14). The District is the 
primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected 
by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which 
the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The District is financially 
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to 
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.  The District has 
no blended or discretely-presented component units. 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District 
is that the costs of providing water to its customers on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges (water sales and services), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues 
and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the 
accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless 
of when the related cash flows take place. 

Operating revenues, such as water sales and service fees, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activities of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives 
and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as grant funding and investment 
income, result from non-exchange transactions, in which, the District gives (receives) value without 
directly receiving (giving) value in exchange. 

C.  Financial Reporting 

The District’s basic financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of 
Governmental  Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – 
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments” (GASB No. 34). This 
statement established revised financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout 
the United States for the purpose of enhancing the understandability and usefulness of financial reports.

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncements provide for a revised view of financial information 
and restructure the format of financial information provided prior to its adoption. A statement of net 
assets replaces the balance sheet and reports assets, liabilities, and the difference between them as net 
assets, not equity. A statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets replaces both the income 
statement and the statement of changes in retained earnings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also 
requires that the statement of cash flows be prepared using the direct method. Under the direct method, 
cash flows from operating activities are presented by major categories.  
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
C.  Financial Reporting, continued 

Under GASB No. 34, enterprise funds, such as the District, have the option of consistently following or 
not following pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) subsequent 
to November 30, 1989. The District has elected not to follow FASB standards issued after that date, 
unless such standards are specifically adopted by GASB. 

D. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 51 

In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible 
Assets. This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions 
be classified as capital assets. The District adopted GASB Statement No. 51 in 2010. See Note 6 for 
further details.

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets 

1. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts.  The District considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

3. Investments and Investment Policy 

The District has adopted an investment policy directing management to deposit funds in financial 
institutions.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for 
that fiscal year.  Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or 
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.   

4. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management 
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and 
write-off of those accounts. 

5. Property Taxes and Assessments 

The County of Los Angeles Assessor’s Office assesses all real and personal property within the 
County each year. The County of Los Angeles Tax Collector’s Office bills and collects the District’s 
share of property taxes and assessments. The County of Los Angeles Treasurer’s Office remits 
current and delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in 
California is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of 
countywide assessed valuations. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued 

Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the County of Los 
Angeles, which have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of December 31. The property 
tax calendar is as follows:

Lien date March 1 
Levy date July 1 
Due dates November 1 and March 1 
Collection dates December 10 and April 10 

6. Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies consist primarily of water meters, pipe and pipefittings for construction and 
repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system.  Materials and supplies are valued 
at cost using a weighted average method. Materials and supplies items are charged to expense at the 
time that individual items are consumed. 

7. Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payments to vendors reflects costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements. 

8. Restricted Assets 

Certain assets of the District are restricted for use by ordinance or debt covenant and, accordingly are 
shown as restricted assets on the accompanying statement of net assets.  The District uses restricted 
resources, prior to using unrestricted resources, to pay expenditures meeting the criteria imposed on 
the use of restricted resources by a third party. 

9. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or 
losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets as follows: 

10. State Water Project  – Participation Rights 

The District participates in the State Water Project (Project) entitling it to certain participation rights.  
The District’s participation in the Project is through cash payments.  Monies used for the construction 
of capital assets, such as pipelines, pumping facilities, storage facilities, etc., are recorded as 
participation rights and amortized over the life of the agreements.  Certain projects also require 
payments for on-going maintenance; those payments are charged to expense as incurred. 

11. Deferred Charges 

The deferred charges are from bond issuance costs that will be amortized using the straight-line 
method over the remaining life of the respective debt service. 

Littlerock Dam 50 years
Buildings, wells and distribution system 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued 

12. Compensated Absences 

The District’s personnel policies provide for accumulation of vacation and sick leave.  Liabilities for 
vacation and sick leave are recorded when benefits are earned.  Cash payment of unused vacation is 
available to those qualified employees when retired or terminated. 

13. Customer Deposits 

Based on a customer’s credit, the District may require a deposit deemed reasonable by the District.  
These deposits are held to pay off close out bills or to cover delinquent payments. 

14. Net Assets 

The financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets are categorized as follows: 

� Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net assets consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

� Restricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net 
assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

� Unrestricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not 
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets.

15. Water Sales  

Most water sales are billed on a monthly cyclical basis. Estimated unbilled water revenue through 
year-end has been accrued. 

16. Capital Improvement Fees 

Capital improvement fees represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by 
property owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital 
expenditures or capacity commitment. 

17. Budgetary Policies 

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. 
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with 
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for 
commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services. 

18. Reclassification 

The District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform to current year presentations. 
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(2) Cash and Investments 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with 
the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table 
also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, 
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This 
table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the 
provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Government Code or the District’s investment policy.  

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Maturity Of Portfolio in One Issuer

5 years None None
5 years None None
5 years None None
5 years 30% None

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
N/A None None

Authorized
Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Obligations
District Issued Bonds
Federal Agency Obligations
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, 
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy. 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. 
The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit 
risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Maturity Of Portfolio in One Issuer

None None None
N/A None None

Investment Contracts
Money Market Mutual Funds

Authorized
Investment Type

Cash and investments as of December 31, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2010 2009

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,547,765        6,356,129        
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents 131,357           80,607             
Investments – short-term 1,948,571        760,312           
Restricted – investments 1,494,938      1,466,500        

Total cash and investments $ 8,122,631        8,663,548        

Cash and investments as of December 31, consist of the following:

2010 2009

Cash on hand $ 3,700               3,700               
Deposits with financial institutions 1,979,495        1,979,495        
Investments 6,139,436        6,680,353        

Total cash and investments $ 8,122,631        8,663,548        
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(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk 
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct 
investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect 
investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).  

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 is federally insured and the remaining balance is 
collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held in the 
District’s name. 

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair 
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based 
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate 
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows 
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time as 
necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.  Information about 
the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity date: 
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(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Interest Rate Risk, continued 

Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year 
end for each investment type. 

Investment maturities as of December 31, 2010, were as follows:
12 Months 13 to 24 25-60 More than

Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months

Federal Agency obligations $ 1,948,571        -                   527,505           1,421,066        -                   
Money market funds 2,552,993        2,552,993        -                   -                   -                   
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,577             11,577             -                   -                   -                   
Cash with fiscal agent:
    Investment contracts 1,626,295        131,357           -                   1,494,938        -                   

Total $ 6,139,436        2,695,927        527,505           2,916,004        -                   

Investment maturities as of December 31, 2009, were as follows:
12 Months 13 to 24 25-60 More than

Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months

Federal Agency obligations $ 760,312           760,312           -                   -                   -                   
Money market funds 4,361,421        4,361,421        -                   -                   -                   
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,513             11,513             -                   -                   -                   
Cash with fiscal agent:
    Investment contracts 1,547,107        80,607             -                   1,466,500        -                   

Total $ 6,680,353        5,213,853        -                   1,466,500        -                   

Remaning Maturity (in Months)

Remaning Maturity (in Months)

Credit ratings as of December 31, 2010, were as follows: Minimum Exempt 
Legal From

Investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure AAA Not Rated

Federal Agency obligations $ 1,948,571        AAA -                   1,948,571        -                   
Money market funds 2,552,993        N/A -                   -                   2,552,993        
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,577             N/A -                   -                   11,577             
Cash with fiscal agent:
    Investment contracts 1,626,295        AAA -                   1,494,938        131,357           

Total $ 6,139,436        $ -                   3,443,509        2,695,927        

Credit ratings as of December 31, 2009, were as follows: Minimum Exempt 
Legal From

Investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure AAA Not Rated

Federal Agency obligations $ 760,312           AAA -                   760,312           -                   
Money market funds 4,361,421        N/A -                   -                   4,361,421        
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,513             N/A -                   -                   11,513             
Cash with fiscal agent:
    Investment contracts 1,547,107        AAA -                   1,466,500        80,607             

Total $ 6,680,353        $ -                   2,226,812        4,453,541        

Rating as of year-end

Rating as of year-end
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(2) Cash and Investments, continued
Concentration of Credit Risk  

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any 
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer 
(other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or 
more of total District investments are as follows:  

(3) Accounts Receivable – Water Sales and Services, Net 

(4) Note Receivable – Property Taxes from State 
Under the provisions of the State of California Proposition 1A and as part of the 2010 fiscal year State of 
California budget package passed by the California State Legislature on July 28, 2009, the State of 
California borrowed 8.0% of the amount of property tax revenue apportioned to cities, counties and 
special districts. The State of California is required to repay this borrowing plus interest by June 30, 2013. 
After repayment of this initial borrowing, the California State Legislature may consider only one 
additional borrowing within a ten-year period. The borrowing by the State of California was recognized 
as a note receivable in the accompanying financial statements are as follows: 

(5) Deferred Charges 
The deferred charges balance relates to the bond issuance costs for the District’s 1998 and 2004 
certificates of participation. The balance is being amortized over the lives of the respective debt issuances. 
The deferred charges net balances are as follows: 

Issuer 2010 2009

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency obligations $ 1,027,920        760,312           
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency obligations 2,415,589        1,466,500        

Total $ 3,443,509        2,226,812        

Investment
Type

Invested Amount

The balance at December 31, consists of the following:

2010 2009

Accounts receivable – water sales and services $ 2,255,135        2,255,628        
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (386,213)          (292,698)          

Accounts receivable – water sales and services, net $ 1,868,922        1,962,930        

The balance at December 31, consists of the following:

2010 2009

1998 Certificates of participation issuance costs, net $ 183,053           197,410           
2004 Certificates of participation issuance costs, net 558,999           582,536           

Deferred charges, net $ 742,052           779,946           

The balance at December 31, consists of the following:

2010 2009

Property taxes from state $ 159,159           79,580             
Accrued interest 2,658               -                   

Note receivable – property taxes from state $ 161,817           79,580             



Palmdale Water District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009  

18

(6) Capital Assets 
Changes in capital assets for 2010, were as follows: Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance

2009 Transfers Transfers 2010

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $ 1,155,763        -                   -                   1,155,763        
Construction-in-process 9,886,714        3,084,276        (1,983,622)       10,987,368      

   Total non-depreciable assets 11,042,477      3,084,276        (1,983,622)       12,143,131      

Depreciable assets:
Buildings, wells and distribution system 192,579,050    2,176,239        -                   194,755,289    
SWP – participation rights 46,943,271      2,535,815        -                   49,479,086      
Machinery and equipment 9,030,958        237,266           (102,704)          9,165,520        

   Total depreciable assets 248,553,279    4,949,320        (102,704)          253,399,895    

Accumulated depreciation & amortization:
Buildings, wells and distribution system (75,067,707)     (6,187,794)       -                   (81,255,501)     
SWP – participation rights (14,012,627)     (1,364,094)       -                   (15,376,721)     
Machinery and equipment (5,731,820)       (822,927)          102,704           (6,452,043)       

   Total accumulated depreciation & amortization (94,812,154)     (8,374,815)       102,704           (103,084,265)   

   Total depreciable assets, net 153,741,125    (3,425,495)       -                   150,315,630    

   Total capital assets, net $ 164,783,602    (341,219)          (1,983,622)       162,458,761    

Changes in capital assets for 2009, were as follows: Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2008 Transfers Transfers 2009

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $ 1,155,763        -                   -                   1,155,763        
Construction-in-process 77,029,898      6,150,350        (73,293,534)     9,886,714        

   Total non-depreciable assets 78,185,661      6,150,350        (73,293,534)     11,042,477      

Depreciable assets:
Buildings, wells and distribution system 119,663,041    72,916,009      -                   192,579,050    
SWP – participation rights 42,253,237      4,690,034        -                   46,943,271      
Machinery and equipment 8,653,433        377,525           -                   9,030,958        

   Total depreciable assets 170,569,711    77,983,568      -                   248,553,279    

Accumulated depreciation & amortization:
Buildings, wells and distribution system (69,997,986)     (5,069,721)       -                   (75,067,707)     
SWP – participation rights (12,695,401)     (1,317,226)       -                   (14,012,627)     
Machinery and equipment (4,829,676)       (902,144)          -                   (5,731,820)       

   Total accumulated depreciation & amortization (87,523,063)     (7,289,091)       -                   (94,812,154)     

   Total depreciable assets, net 83,046,648      70,694,477      -                   153,741,125    

   Total capital assets, net $ 161,232,309    76,844,827      (73,293,534)     164,783,602    
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(6) Capital Assets, continued
Construction-In-Process 

The District has been involved in various construction projects throughout the year. The balances of the 
various construction projects that comprise the construction-in-process balances at December 31 are as 
follows:

State Water Project – Participation Rights

In 1963, the District contracted with the State of California (State) for 1,620 acre-feet per year of water 
from the State Water Project (SWP).  In subsequent years, the annual entitlement increased to 21,300 acre 
feet.  The SWP distributes water from Northern California to Southern California through a system of 
reservoirs, canals, pumps stations and power generation facilities.  

The District is one of many participants contracting with the State of California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) for a system to provide water throughout California.  Under the terms of the State 
Water Contract, as amended, the District is obligated to pay allocable portions of the cost of construction 
of the system and ongoing operations and maintenance costs through at least the year 2035, regardless of 
the quantities of water available from the project.  The District and the other contractors may also be 
responsible to the State for certain obligations by any contractor who defaults on its payments to the State. 

Management’s present intention is to exercise the District’s option to extend the contractual period to at 
least 2052, under substantially comparable terms.  This corresponds to an estimated 80-year service life 
for the original facilities.  The State is obligated to provide specific quantities of water throughout the life 
of the contract, subject to certain conditions. 

The balance at December 31, consists of the following projects: 2008 2009 2010

Water Treatment Plant improvements – Phase I $ 15,893,417      -                   -                   
Water Treatment Plant improvements – Phase II 42,525,261      -                   -                   
3 - 4 M.G. Storage tanks 6,631,107        -                   -                   
Energy recovery system – Palmdale Lake 3,349,082        -                   -                   
Distribution telemetry upgrade 1,903,760        2,004,270        2,171,479        
10 M.G.D. Treatment plant (New Facility) 908,827           908,827           913,674           
Replace water main (Lilacview) 732,439           -                   -                   
Energy bridge project 769,030           769,124           -                   
Sediment removal – Littlerock Dam 518,222           538,505           588,134           
NaOCI onsite generators upgrade 508,000           -                   -                   
Palmdale ditch enclosure 393,864           2,642,564        2,663,891        
Well 24A drill and equipment 195,582           618,802           619,129           
Well 29 drill equipment and activation 613,240           614,085           -                   
Distribution master plan 448,692           503,939           532,335           
Recycled facilities master plan 2,598               234,984           269,654           
30th Street/Avenue Q main replacement 23,093             46,853             815,018           
30th Street/Palm Blvd. main replacement 57,059             57,711             596,184           
Barrel Springs Road waterline replacement -                   1,276               325,105           
Well 36 drill and equipment 107,744           149,602           149,602           
Well 37 drill and equipment 148,634           148,634           148,634           
Well 2 rehabilitation -                   39,505             147,162           
Maintenance yard and building (New Facility) 117,961           124,197           124,197           
Q7/Standridge -                   11,457             115,227           
Various other minor projects >$100,000 1,182,286        472,379           807,943           

Construction-in-process $ 77,029,898      9,886,714        10,987,368      
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(6) Capital Assets, continued 
State Water Project – Participation Rights, continued

In addition to system on-aqueduct power facilities, the State has, either on its own or though joint venture, 
financed certain off-aqueduct power facilities (OAPF).  The power generated is utilized by the system for 
water transportation and distribution purposes.  Power generated in excess of system needs is marketed to 
various utilities and California’s power market.  The District is entitled to a proportionate share of the 
revenues resulting from sales of excess power.  The District and the other water providers are responsible 
for repaying the capital and operating costs of the OAPF regardless of the amount of power generated. 

The District capitalizes its share of system construction costs as participation rights in the State water 
facilities when such costs are billed by the DWR.  Unamortized participation rights essentially represent a 
prepayment for future water deliveries through the State system.  The District’s share of system 
operations and maintenance costs is charged to expense as incurred. 

The District amortizes a portion of capitalized participation rights each year using a formula that 
considers the total estimated cost of the project, estimated useful life and estimated production capacity of 
the assets based upon information provided by the State of California. GASB Statement No. 51, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, requires that all intangible assets not 
specifically excluded by their scope provisions be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, the 
participation rights have been included with the District’s capital assets as shown in the schedule of 
changes in capital assets. 

(7) Compensated Absences 

(8) Long-term Debt 
Certificates of Participation 

Changes in compensated absences for 2010, were as follows:

Balance Balance Current Long-term
2009 Earned Taken 2010 Portion Portion

$ 376,796           739,274           (730,602)          385,468           289,101           96,367           

Changes in compensated absences for 2009, were as follows:

Balance Balance Current Long-term
2008 Earned Taken 2009 Portion Portion

$ 393,723           714,708           (731,635)          376,796           282,597           94,199           

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2010, were as follows:
Balance Additions/ Principal Balance

2009 Deletions Payments 2010

Long-term debt:
1998 – Certificates of Participation $ 14,915,000    -                 (770,000)         14,145,000     
1998 – Discount (220,253)          16,019             -                   (204,234)          
1998 – Loss on Defeasance (625,795)          45,512             -                   (580,283)          
2004 – Certificates of Participation 36,665,000    -                 (355,000)         36,310,000     
2004 – Premium 271,233           (10,959)            -                   260,274           

   Total long-term debt $ 51,005,185    50,572           (1,125,000)      49,930,757     

Less: Current portion (1,125,000)       (1,170,000)       

   Total Non-current portion $ 49,880,185    48,760,757     
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(8) Long-term Debt 
Certificates of Participation, continued 

1998 Certificates of Participation 

In April 1998, the District issued $21,925,000 of Refunding Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 
1998 (1998 COPs), with maturities from 1998 through 2023 and an average interest rate of 4.73%.  The 
net proceeds of approximately $21,150,000 (plus an additional $2.9 million of District funds) were used 
to accomplish an advance refunding (an in-substance defeasance) of $23,210,000 aggregate principal 
amount of the District’s Certificates of Participation (Refunding and Water Facilities and Improvement 
Project) Series 1991 and Certificates of Participation (Littlerock Dam Project) Series 1993A, with an 
average interest rate of 5.78%.  The initial escrow deposit was used to purchase state and local 
government securities.  These securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to 
provide for all future debt service payments on the Series 1991 and Series 1993A Certificates of 
Participation.

The advance refunding resulted in a different between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value 
amount of the old debt of $1,160,564.  This difference is being amortized through 2023 (the life of the 
debt) using the straight-line method.  The District completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt 
service payments over the next 25 years by approximately $6.5 million and to obtain an economic gain 
(the difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately 
$3.4 million. 

The future annual debt service requirements for the 1998 Certificates of Participation are as follows: 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2009, were as follows:
Balance Additions/ Principal Balance

2008 Deletions Payments 2009

Long-term debt:
1998 – Certificates of Participation $ 15,645,000    -                 (730,000)         14,915,000     
1998 – Discount (236,272)          16,019             -                   (220,253)          
1998 – Loss on Defeasance (671,307)          45,512             -                   (625,795)          
2004 – Certificates of Participation 37,015,000    -                 (350,000)         36,665,000     
2004 – Premium 282,192           (10,959)            -                   271,233           

   Total long-term debt $ 52,034,613    50,572           (1,080,000)      51,005,185     

Less: Current portion (1,080,000)       (1,125,000)       

   Total Non-current portion $ 50,954,613    49,880,185     

Year Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 800,000           705,250           1,505,250        
2012 840,000           667,250           1,507,250        
2013 880,000           625,250           1,505,250        
2014 925,000           581,250           1,506,250        
2015 970,000           535,000           1,505,000        

2016-2020 5,630,000        1,897,000        7,527,000        
2021-2023 4,100,000        416,750           4,516,750        

Total $ 14,145,000     5,427,750      19,572,750    

Less: current (800,000)          
Total non-current $ 13,345,000     
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(8) Long-Term Debt, continued 
2004 Certificates of Participation 

In August 2004, the District issued $38,285,000 of Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2004 
(2004 COPs), with maturities from 2008 through 2034 and an average interest rate of 4.90%.  The net 
proceeds are to be used to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain water 
facilities and to pay issuance costs of the debt.  Issuance of the COP’s resulted in a premium of $328,767 
which is being amortized over the life of the issue using the straight-line method.  Annual debt service 
requirements for the 2004 Certificates of Participation are as follows: 

(9) Net Investment in Capital Assets 

(10) Restricted Net Assets 

Year Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 370,000           1,759,892        2,129,892        
2012 380,000           1,746,942        2,126,942        
2013 395,000           1,733,642        2,128,642        
2014 410,000           1,718,830        2,128,830        
2015 430,000           1,702,430        2,132,430        

2015-2019 2,415,000        8,238,136        10,653,136      
2020-2024 6,060,000        7,598,653        13,658,653      
2025-2029 12,955,000      5,230,250        18,185,250      
2030-2033 12,895,000      1,651,500        14,546,500      

Total $ 36,310,000      31,380,275      67,690,275      

Less: current (370,000)          

Total non-current $ 35,940,000      

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 2010 2009   
Capital assets – not being depreciated $ 12,143,131      11,042,477      
Capital assets – being depreciated, net 150,315,630    153,741,125    
Certificates of participation – current portion (1,170,000)       (1,125,000)       
Certificates of participation – non-current portion (48,760,757)     (49,880,185)     

Net investment in capital assets $ 112,528,004    113,778,417    

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 2010 2009   
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents $ 131,357           80,607             
Restricted – investments 1,494,938      1,466,500        
Accrued interest payable – 1998 COPs (176,313)          (185,217)          

Net investment in capital assets $ 1,449,982        1,361,890        
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(11) Reservations of Unrestricted Net Assets

(12) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan 
For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program 
(Program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that 
elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of their 
salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are paid or 
otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for 
income tax purposes. 

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the 
participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are 
not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. 
Market value of all plan assets held in trust by the Lincoln Financial Group at December 31, 2010 and 
2009 was $2,726,336 and $2,357,381, respectively. 

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative 
involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are 
not shown on the statement of net assets. 

(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
Plan Description 

The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as 
a common investment and administrative agent for participating public agencies within the State of 
California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and the District. 
Copies of CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained form their executive Office: 400 P Street, 
Sacramento, CA, 95814. 

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 2010 2009

Non-spendable or long-term net assets:
   Materials and supplies inventory $ 684,870           803,894           
   Prepaid expenses and other deposits 249,878           266,257           
   Note receivable – property taxes from state 161,817           79,580             
   Deferred charges, net 742,052           779,946           

Total prepaid net assets 1,838,617        1,929,677        

Board designated net assets:
   Operations and maintenance reserve -                   2,500,000        

Undesignated net assets 319,859           1,553,728        

Total unrestricted net assets $ 2,158,476      5,983,405        
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 
Funding Policy 

The contribution rate for plan members in the CalPERS 2.0% at 55 Risk Pool Retirement Plan is 7% of 
their annual covered salary. The District makes these contributions required of District employees on their 
behalf and for their account. Also, the District is required to contribute the actuarially determined 
remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The required employer contribution 
rates for years 2010, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: 

The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statute, and the employer 
contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS. For fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, 
the District’s annual contribution was $968,147, $993,114, and $910,938, respectively, for CalPERS and 
was equal to the District’s required and actual contributions for each year. 

(14) Other Post Employment Benefits Payable 
During the year ended December 31, 2008, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 45, which 
changed the accounting and financial reporting used by local government employers for post employment 
benefits. Previously, the costs of such benefits were generally recognized as expenses of local government 
employers on a pay-as-you-go basis. The new reporting requirements for these benefit programs as they 
pertain to the District are set forth below.

Plan Description – Eligibility  

The District administers its post-employment benefits plan, a single-employer defined benefit plan (Plan).  
The following requirements must be satisfied in order to be eligible for post employment medical, dental 
and vision benefits: (1) Attainment of age 55, and 20 years for full-time service, and (2) Retirement from 
the District (the District must be the last employer prior to retirement).  

Plan Description – Benefits 

The District offers post employment medical, dental and vision benefits to retired employees who satisfy 
the eligibility rules. Spouses and surviving spouses are also eligible to receive benefits. Retirees may 
enroll in any plan available through the ACWA-JPIA medical, dental and vision programs. The 
contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and may be amended by the 
Board of Directors. 

Time Period 2010 2009 2008

Jan. 1 - June 30 10.392% 10.287% 9.817%
July 1 - Dec. 31 11.004% 10.392% 10.287%

Membership in the OPEB plan consisted of the following members as of December 31:

2010 2009 2008

Active plan members 90                    81                    87                    
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 10                    8                      5                      
Separated plan members entitled to but not
   yet receiving benefits -                   -                   -                   

   Total plan membership 100                  89                    92                    
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(14) Other Post Employment Benefits Payable, continued 
Funding Policy 

The District is required to contribute the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of the Employer, an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each 
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty 
years.  The current ARC rate is 3.22% for 2010 and 8.48% for 2009 of the annual covered payroll. 

The District will pay 100% of the cost of the post-employment benefit plan.  The District funds the plan 
on a pay-as-you-go basis and maintains reserves (and records a liability) for the difference between pay-
as-you-go and the actuarially determined ARC cost. 

Annual Cost 

For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the ARC cost is $1,945,603, and $197,855, or 10.17%, in 
contributions were made and the ARC cost is $535,321, and $62,848, or 11.74%, in contributions were 
made, respectively. The net other post-employment payable as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are 
$2,694,056 and $946,308, respectively. 

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the 
net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2010 and the two preceding years were as follows: 

The balance at December 31, consists of the following: 2010 2009 2008   
Annual OPEB expense:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,963,042        538,690           521,734           
Interest on net OPEB obligation 19,494             9,761               -                   
Adjustment to annual required contribution (36,933)            (13,130)            -                   

Total annual OPEB expense 1,945,603        535,321           521,734           

Change in net OPEB payable obligation:
Age adjusted contributions made (197,855)          (62,848)            (47,899)            

Total change in net OPEB payable obligation 1,747,748        472,473           473,835           

OPEB payable – beginning of year 946,308           473,835           -                   

OPEB payable – end of year $ 2,694,056        946,308           473,835           

Fiscal Annual Age Percentage Net OPEB
Year OPEB Adjusted of Annual OPEB Obligation

Ended Cost Contribution Cost Contributed Payable

2010 $ 1,945,603        197,855           10.17% $ 1,747,748        
2009 $ 535,321           62,848             11.74% $ 472,473           
2008 $ 521,734           47,899             9.18% $ 473,835           

Three-Year History of Net OPEB Obligation
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(14) Other Post Employment Benefits Payable, continued 
Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Plan 

The most recent valuation (dated December 31, 2010) includes an Actuarial Accrued Liability and 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability of $16,234,820. There are no plan assets because the District funds 
on a pay-as-you-go basis and maintains net assets equal to the remaining net post-employment benefits 
payable obligation. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) for the 
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, were $6,572,271 and $6,337,001, respectively. The ratio of the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to annual covered payroll is 247.02% and 70.96% as of December 31, 
2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision 
as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  
Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the 
time of each valuation and the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that 
point. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial calculations, actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 

Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Plan Assets Liability Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

12/31/2010 $ -                   16,234,820      16,234,820      0.00% $ 6,572,271      247.02%
12/31/2009 $ -                   4,497,022        4,497,022        0.00% $ 6,337,001      70.96%
12/31/2008 $ -                   4,497,022        4,497,022        0.00% $ 6,311,893      71.25%

Required Supplemental Information – Schedule of Funding Progress

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods:

Valuation date December 31, 2010
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost method
Amortization method Level percent of payroll amortization
Remaining amortization period 30 Years as of the valuation date
Asset valuation method 15 Year smoothed market
Actuarial assumptions:
   Investment rate of return 2.50% – Current LAIF rating (rounded)
   Projected salary increase 3.25%
   Inflation - discount rate 2.06%
   Individual salary growth District annual COLA
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(15) Risk Management 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the 
Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA), an 
intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers authority created to provide self-insurance programs for 
California water agencies. The purpose of the ACWA/JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of self-
insured losses and to purchase the appropriate amount of insurance coverage. At December 31, 2009, the 
District participated in the liability and property programs of the ACWA/JPIA as follows: 

� General and auto liability: The District has a zero deductible for general and auto liability. The 
District purchased additional excess coverage layers: $60 million for general, auto and public 
officials liability, which increases the limits on the insurance coverage noted above. 

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage: 

� Employee dishonesty coverage up to $100,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty, 
forgery or alteration and theft, computer fraud coverage’s.  

� Property loss is paid based on the replacement cost or actual cash value for the property on file. If 
the property is replaced within two years after the loss or otherwise paid on an actual cash value 
basis, to a combined total of $100 million per occurrence it is subject to a $2,500 deductible per 
occurrence.

� Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $50 million per occurrence, subject 
to various deductibles depending on the type of equipment. 

� Public officials’ liability coverage up to $1 million for each occurrence subject to the terms of the 
policy.  

� Workers’ compensation insurance provides coverage with a self-insured retention limit of $2 
million for all work related injuries/illnesses covered by California law. The District has 
purchased an excess insurance policy for an additional $2 million to statutory limits. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and 
there were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the years ending December 31, 2010, 
2009 and 2008. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount 
of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable 
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. 

(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to 
December 31, 2010, that have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.  

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 59 

In June 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus. This statement 
improves existing standards regarding financial reporting and disclosure requirements of certain financial 
instruments and external investment pools. This statement is not effective for this District until the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2010. This statement is not expected to have a significant impact on the 
presentation of the District’s financial statements. 
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(16) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 60 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements.  This standard address how to account for and report service concession 
arrangements (SCAs), a type of public-private or public-public partnership that state and local 
governments are increasingly entering into.  This statement is effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The impact of the implementation of this Statement to the 
District’s financial statements has not been assessed at this time. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.61, The Financial Reporting Entity, Omnibus. This
standard is designed to improve financial reporting for governmental entities by amending the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and local Governments.
This statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  The 
impact of the implementation of this Statement to the District’s financial statements has not been assessed 
at this time. 

(17) Commitments and Contingencies
State Water Contract

Estimates of the District’s share of the project fixed costs of the State Water Project (SWP) are provided 
annually by the State.  The estimates are subject to future increases or decreases resulting from changes in 
planned facilities, refinements in cost estimates and inflation.  During the next five years payments under 
the State Water Contract, exclusive of variable power costs, are currently estimated by the State to be as 
follows:

As of December 31, 2010, the District has expended $77,150,315 since the District started participating in 
the State Water Contract. 

According to the State’s latest estimates, the District’s long-term obligations under the contract, for 
capital and minimum operations and maintenance costs, including interest to the year 2035, are as 
follows:

Fiscal Year Amount

2010 $ 5,473,964        
2011 6,073,518        
2012 5,607,282        
2013 5,337,270        
2014 5,177,060        

Type of Long-Term Obligation Amount

State Water Project Contract:
   Transportation facilities $ 95,718,991      
   Conservation facilities 22,325,950      
   Off-aqueduct power facilities 5,010,619        
   Revenue bond surcharge 3,535,050        

Total $ 126,590,610
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(17) Commitments and Contingencies, continued
The amounts shown above do not contain any escalation for inflation and are subject to significant 
variation over time because the amounts are based on a number of assumptions and are contingent on 
future events.  Accordingly, none of the estimated long-term obligations are recorded as liabilities in the 
accompanying basic financial statements. 

Bay/Delta Regulatory and Planning Activities.  The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) is 
the agency responsible for setting water quality standards and administering water rights throughout 
California.  Decisions of the State Board can affect the availability of water to the District and other water 
users by means of public proceedings leading to regulations and decisions.  In 1995, the State Board 
adopted a Water Quality Control Plan establishing water quality standards and flow improvements in the 
Bay/Delta watershed. 

In August 2000, the California Federal (CALFED) Bay/Delta Program Record of Decision (Decision) 
was approved with mandates to improve water quality, enhance water supply reliability, augment 
ecosystem restoration, and assure long-term protection for Delta levees.  During its first three years, 
CALFED has invested more than $2.0 billion in hundreds of local and regional projects to meet these 
program goals. 

In May 2004, a Delta Improvement Package was proposed to facilitate implementation of the Decision.  
Funding is expected to be provided by state and federal appropriations and contributions from local users, 
including the District.  CALFED’s objective is to allocate project costs based on a beneficiaries pay 
policy, that is new costs commensurate with benefits received.  At this time, the exact allocation of costs 
between the federal, state, and local users has not been determined, and therefore, the District cannot 
estimate the extent of timing of its contributions at this time. 

There are other pending actions that may adversely impact the District’s ability to control the sale of 
water transported through the SWP into its service area.  The impact on future revenues of such actions 
cannot be determined. 

Construction Contracts

The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or 
modification of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The financing of such 
construction contracts is being provided primarily from the District’s replacement reserves and advances 
for construction. The District has committed to approximately $2,566,078 in open construction contracts 
as of December 31, 2010. These include the following: 

Estimated
Costs to

Project Name Complete

10th – 20th Street/Avenue Q main replacement $ 625,000           
9th – 12th Street/Avenue Q main replacement 500,000           
Storage tank recoating 360,000           
Well 11A Rehabilitation 300,000           
Avenue Q/32nd Street main replacement 229,187           
Littlerock Dam sediment removal 150,000           
Strategic water resources plan 125,000           
30th Street/Palm Blvd. main replacement 107,807           
Various other minor projects 169,084           

Total $ 2,566,078      
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(17) Commitments and Contingencies, continued
City of Palmdale v. Palmdale Water District 

On May 13, 2009, the District’s Board of Directors adopted a new water rate structure, known as the 
water budget rate structure.  Under this new rate structure, which the California Legislature determined 
can be an effective tool to eliminate waste and prevent the unreasonable use of water, District customers 
are provided a monthly allocation of water determined by a mathematical formula which applies various 
factors.  The percentage of usage that exceeds that allocation is placed in tiers, with increasing water 
rates.  This pricing structure is consistent with what many other water agencies have adopted in their 
efforts to use limited water resources more efficiently. 

On May 14, 2009, the City of Palmdale (City) filed a lawsuit, Los Angeles Superior Court Case No. 
BC413432 (Rate Litigation), to challenge the District’s adoption of the new rate structure.  The City 
contended the District violated Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution both procedurally 
and substantively.  

In addition, the City contended that the new water rate structure results in rates that exceed the reasonable 
cost of the service the District provides, and that the resulting rates charged to a parcel are not 
proportional to the cost attributable to providing water service to that parcel.  

The City also filed a separate lawsuit under Code of Civil Procedure Section 863, known as a reverse 
validation action (Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. BC413907, the “Validation Action”), 
seeking to invalidate the District’s new rate structure and the actions taken by the District and the 
Palmdale Water District Public Facilities Corporation to approve financing of the Certificates of 
Participation.  The City based the Validation Action on the same alleged constitutional violations on 
which is based the Rate Litigation.

On March 12, 2010, the court issued its ruling that rejected the City’s challenge in the Validation Action 
and validated the District’s new rate structure and the actions taken in noticing, adopting and 
implementing the structure.   

The City has appealed the trial court’s ruling in the Validation Action.  The Rate Litigation has been 
stayed while the appeal in the Validation Action is pending because the final judgment in the Validation 
Action should render the Rate Litigation moot. 

In the event the trial court’s decision in the Validation Action is reversed on appeal, it is likely the case 
would be remanded to the trial court for further proceedings to determine the nature of the relief to be 
granted, which could involve significant monetary obligations.  As of the date of this report, the District 
has not budgeted for this contingency.  The District feels it will ultimately prevail in this litigation. 

Other Litigation 

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. 
Nevertheless, after consultation with legal counsel, the District believes that these actions, when finally 
concluded and determined are not likely to have a material adverse effect on the District’s financial 
position, results of operations, or cash flows. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors 
Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Palmdale Water District (District) as of and for the 
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated April 8, 2011.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. 
A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of 
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or 
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there 
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District’s financial statements that is more 
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the District’s internal control. A material 
weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected by the District’s internal control. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

April 8, 2011 
Cypress, California 
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B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

DATE:  June 7, 2012               June 13, 2012        

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS           Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Bob Egan, Financial Advisor 
 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 – STATUS REPORT ON CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
AND CURRENT CASH BALANCES AS OF APRIL, 2012. 

  

 
 
Attached is the Investment Funds Report and current cash balance as of April, 2012.  The reports will be 
reviewed in detail at the Board meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT FUNDS REPORT

DESCR April-12 March-12
A/C # VALUE VALUE
CASH
0-0103 Citizens/US Bank - Checking 443,846.41 (239,795.52)
0-0104 Citizens- Merchant 72,961.00 121,622.95

Bank cash 516,807.41 (118,172.57)

0-0119 300.00 300.00
0-0120 3,400.00 3,400.00

TOTAL CASH 520,507.41 (114,472.57)

INVESTMENTS

0-0110 UBS ACCOUNT SS 11469 GG 
2,781,037.21 2,284,493.64

250,000.00 250,000.00

3,031,037.21 2,534,493.64
0-1110 UBS ACCOUNT SS 11475 GG

250,000.00 250,000.00
1,164,492.98 1,164,472.48
1,414,492.98 1,414,472.48

0-0115 LAIF 11,652.22 11,641.28

0-0111 UBS ACCOUNT SS 11432 GG
250,000.00 0.00

791,639.42 121,994.66

Accrued interest 3,118.10 23,154.24
US GOVERNMENT SECURITIES:

ISSUE EXPIR MARKET MARKET
DATE ISSUER DATE RATE PAR VALUE VALUE

FNMA 04/11/12 5.375 500,000 0.00 500,595.00

FHLB 04/16/15 2.90 400,000 0.00 400,360.00

FHLB 10/26/15 1.625 500,000 516,490.00 515,030.00

FNMA 07/27/16 2.00 500,000 501,870.00 502,355.00

FHLB 03/28/17 1.00 500,000 501,735.00 501,200.00

2,400,000.00 1,520,095.00 2,419,540.00

2,564,852.52 2,564,688.90

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 7,022,034.93 6,525,296.30

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED CASH 7,542,542.34 6,410,823.73

RESTRICTED CASH
0-1120 1998 Debt Reserve Fund

FHLB par 1.4Mil matures 10/18/13 3.625% interest 1,467,578.00 1,470,168.00
Federated Treasury Obligation MM 207,481.67 182,106.67
Accrued interest 1,832.63 22,978.47

1,676,892.30 1,675,253.14

GRAND TOTAL CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH         9,219,434.64 8,086,076.87

Checking 520,507
UBS MM 4,445,530
LAIF 11,652
UBS Investment 2,564,853
Restricted 1,676,892

Total 9,219,435

UBS RMA Government Portfolio

TOTAL MANAGED ACCOUNT

TOTAL Restricted CASH

UBS RMA Government Portfolio
UBS Bank USA Dep acct

UBS Bank USA Dep acct
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

UBS Bank USA Dep acct

April 30, 2012

PETTY CASH
CASH ON HAND
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P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 
 
DATE:  June 6, 2012       June 13, 2012 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS     Board Meeting 
FROM: Michael Williams, Finance Manager/CFO 

VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7.3 - STATUS REPORT ON 2012 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, 
REVENUE AND EXPENSE AND DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REPORTS FOR 
APRIL, 2012   

 
Discussion: 
 
Presented here are Balance Sheet and Profit/Loss Statement for the period ending April 30, 2012. 
Also included are Year-To-Year comparisons and Month-To-Month Revenue Analysis and 
Expense Analysis for the month of April.  Finally, I have provided individual departmental 
budget reports through the month of April, 2012. 
 
With four months of the budget year complete, target percentages should be at or below 33.3% 
for expenditures and at or above that mark for revenue.   I will discuss some areas of the 
statements during the presentation. 
 
Balance Sheet: 

 Page 1 is our balance sheet on April 30, 2012.  Our assets equal our liabilities and equity 
at $172,009,256.  Most significant change is in current assets which increased by $1.1 
Million. 

 
Profit/Loss Statement: 

 Page 3 is our profit/loss statement on April 30, 2012. 
 Operating revenue is at 27.02% of budget. 
 Cash operating expense is at 27.65% of budget. 
 All departments are operating at 32% of budget or lower. 

 
Year-To-Year Comparison P&L: 

 Page 7 is our comparison of April 2011 to April 2012. 
 Total operating revenue is down by $22K or 1.44%.  
 Operating expenditures are up by $82K or 6.04%.  
 Page 8 is a graphic comparison of water consumption. Units billed were up by 16% with 

total revenue per unit down 15%, and we had 163 more active connections.  
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager  -2-   June 6, 2012 

 
 

Revenue Analysis Year-To-Date: 
 Page 9 is our comparison of revenue, year to date. 
 Operating revenue is down in 2012 by $106k or 1.76% compared to 2011.  However, 

looking at strictly our water sales revenue, we exceed last year’s levels by $136K. 
 Total revenue is about par. 

 
Expense Analysis Year-To-Date: 

 Page 11 is our comparison of expense, year to date. 
 Cash Operating Expenses in 2012 are up by $180K or 2.9% compared to 2011. 
 Total Expenses are up in 2012 by $725k or 7.6% compared to 2011 due to OPEB accrual 

expense and GAC purchase. 
 
Departments: 

 Pages 14 through 22 are detailed budgets of each department.  As stated earlier, all 
departments are below the target 33.3%, and there are no significant events to discuss. 

 
Non-Cash Definitions: 
 
Depreciation:  This is the spreading of the total expense of a capital asset over the expected life 
of that asset. 
 
OPEB Accrual Expense:  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) is the recognized annual 
required contribution to the benefit.  The amount is actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB 45.  The amount represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year. 
 
Bad Debt:  The uncollectible accounts receivable that has been written off. 
 
Service Cost Construction:  The value of material, parts & supplies from inventory used to 
construct, repair and maintain our asset infrastructure. 
 
Capitalized Construction:  The value of our labor force used to construct our asset 
infrastructure. 

 



Palmdale Water District 

Balance Sheet Report 


For the Four Months Ending 4/30/2012 


ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Market Adjustment 

Receivables: 
Accounts Receivables - Water Sales 
Accounts Receivables - Miscellaneous 
Allowance for Uncollected Accounts 

Interest Receivable 

Assessments Receivables 

Meters, Materials and Supplies 

Prepaid Expenses 


Total Current Assets 

Long-Term Assets: 
Property, Plant, and Equipment, net 
Participation Rights in State Water Project, net 
Bond Issuance Cost, Net 

Restricted Cash: 
Debt Reserve Fund - 1998 Bonds 
Rate Stabilization Fund 
Installment Payment Account - 2004 Bonds 
Installment Payment Account - 1998 Bonds 

Total Long-Term Assets & Restricted Cash 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND DISTRICT EQUITY 

Current Liabilities: 
Current Interest Installment of Long-term Debt 
Current Principal Installment of Long-term Debt 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
OPEB Liability 
Deferred Assessments 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long-Term Debt: 
1998 - Certificates of Participation 
2004 - Certificates of Participation 

Total Liabilities 

District Equity 
Revenue from Operations 
Retained Earnings 

Total Liabilities and District Equity 

Year-to-Date 
2012 

$ 522,930 
7,022,035 

$ 7,544,965 

$ 

$ 

1,447,155 
50,152 

(264,336) 
1,232,971 

$ 
1,874,814 

694,215 
155,134 

$ 	 11,502,098 

$ 122,860,135 
35,278,604 

691 ,527 
$ 158,830,265 

$ 1,676,892 

$ 1,676,892 

$ 160,507,157 
$ 172,009,256 

$ 201,182 
1,220,000 
5,222,428 
5,062,634 

833,329 
$ 	 12,539,574 

$ 	 11,802,524 
35,805,662 

$ 	 60,147,760 

$ (1,873,773) 
113,735,268 

$ 172,009,256 

Printed 6/612012 9:56 AM 	 Page 1 



BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 30,2012 


$158,830,265 

$1,676,892 Assets 
$11,502,098 

$172,009,256 

Current Assets : 

• Long-Term Assets: 

Restricted Cash : 

$111,861,496 

Liability & Equity 
$12,539,574 

$172,009,256 

$47,608,186 

Current Liabilities : 

Long-Term Debt: 

District Equity 
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Palmdale Water District 
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement 
For the Four Months Ending 4/30/2012 

Thru 
March A~ril Year-to-Oate Adjustments 

Adjusted 
Budget 

%of 
Budget 

Operating Revenue: 
Wholesale Water $ - $ - $ $ 175,000 0.00% 
Water Sales 1,129,469 423,673 1,553,141 8,145,000 19.07% 
Meter Fees 2,579,297 861,943 3,441,240 10,400,000 33.09% 
Water Quality Fees 257,722 102,466 360,188 1,550,000 23.24% 
Elevation Fees 82,009 33,249 115,258 525,000 21.95% 
Other 409,920 76,579 486,499 1,250,000 38.92% 
Total Water Sales $ 4,458,41,6 $ 1,497,910 $ 5,956,326 $ - $ 22,045,000 27.02% 

Cash Operating Expenses: 
Directors $ 34,399 $ 5,868 $ 40,267 $ 154,000 26.15% 
Administration 851,142 213,134 1,064,276 3,547,000 30.00% 
Engineering 287,092 94,130 381,222 1,169,000 32.61% 
Facilities 820,080 239,848 1,059,927 3,490,500 30.37% 
Operations 1,069,649 316,985 1,386,633 5,113,750 27.12% 
Administrative Services 700,280 212,373 912,652 2,788,750 32.73% 
Water Conservation 51,634 16,665 68,299 223,500 30.56% 
Human Resources 57,403 15,284 72,688 267,850 27.14% 
Information Technology* 115,828 113,032 228,859 (1,300) 735,450 31.12% 
Water Purchases 706,662 96,594 803,256 2,800,000 28.69% 
Water Recovery (80,398) (152,919) (233,317) (200,000) 116.66% 
Capitalized Expenditures* 38,952 53,343 92,295 1,300 413,800 22.30% 
GAC Filter Media Replacement 219,829 219,829 1,550,000 14.18% 
Total Cash Operating Expenses $ 4,652,721 $ 1,444,165 $ 6,096,887 $ - $ 22,053,600 27.65% 

Non-Cash Operating Expenses: 
Depreciation $ 1,780,049 $ 576,751 $ 2,356,800 $ 7,800,000 30.22% 
OPEB Accrual Expense 603,924 147,678 751,602 2,000,000 37.58% 
Bad Debts 3,045 792 3,837 100,000 3.84% 
Service Costs Construction (18,605) (4,722) (23,327) 125,000 -18.66% 
Capitalized Construction (197,592) (71,021 ) (268,613) (1,000,000) 26.86% 
Total Non-Cash Operating Expenses $ 2,170,822 $ 649,478 $ 2,820,300 $ - $ 9,025,000 31.25% 

Net Operating Profit/(Loss) $ (2,365,127) $ (595,733) $ (2,960,860) $ - $ (9,033,600) 32.78% 

Non-Operating Revenues: 
Assessments (Debt Service) $ 915,757 $ 305,252 $ 1,221 ,009 $ 4,000,000 30.53% 
Assessments (1 %) $ 334,246 $ 111,415 445,662 $ 1,500,000 29.71% 
Interest 9,169 1,860 11,029 60,000 18.38% 
Capital Improvement Fees 693,287 693,287 1,286,848 53.87% 
State Grants 250,000 0.00% 
Other 70,897 9,649 80,546 100,000 80.55% 
Total Non-Operating Revenues $ 2,023,357 $ 428,177 $ 2,451,533 $ - $ 7,196,848 34.06% 

Non-Operating Expenses: 
Interest on Long-Term Debt $ 625,664 $ 208,555 $ 834,219 $ 2,490,000 33.50% 
Amortization of SWP 386,835 128,945 515,780 1,680,000 30.70% 
Capital Lease 212,000 
Water Conservation Programs 7,945 6,501 14,446 150,000 9.63% 
Total Non-Operating Expenses $ 1,020,445 $ 344,001 $ 1,364,445 $ - $ 4,532,000 30.11% 

Net Earnings $ (1,362,216) $ (511,557) $ (1,873,n3) $ - $ (6,368,752) 29.42% 

* Budget adjustments by General Manager per Appendix A 

Prepared 6/6/2012 8:59 AM Page 3 
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Human Resources 
$72,688 

1% 

Water Conservation 
$68,299 

1% 

Information Technology 
$228,859(% 

Capitalized Expenditures 
$92,295 

2% 

$381,222 

Water Purchases 
$569,939 

Cash Operating Expenses 

YTO 04/30/12 
$6,096,887

GAC Filter Media 
Replacement 

$219,829 
4% 

Directors 
$40,267 

1% 
Directors 

Administration 

Engineering 

Iii Facilities 

W Operations 

Administrative Services 

iii Water Conservation 

Human Resources 

.". Information Technology 
Engineering 

Iii Water Purchases 
6% 

Capitalized Expenditures 

GAC Filter Media Replacement 
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Personnel to Operations Exp 
YTD 04/30/12 

3% 

$439,689 $96,918 
2% 

$6,096,887 
PERS Workers Camp, Vac. Exp., Life 

~ Salaries 

II Taxes 

iii Health Ins. 

iii PERS 

Iii! Workers Camp, Vac. Exp., Life 

Operations 
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Palmdale Water District 
Profit and Loss Statement 

Year-To-Year Comparison - April 

Operating Revenue: 
Wholesale Water 
Water Sales 
Meter Fees 
Water Quality Fees 
Elevation Fees 
Other 

2011 2012 
A~ril A~ril 

$ - $ -
404,350 423,673 
889,492 861,943 
92,257 102,466 
31 ,106 33,249 

102,620 76,579 

Change 

$ 
19,323 

(27,549) 
10,209 
2,143 

(26,041 } 

% 
Change 

4.78% 
-3.10% 
11.07% 
6.89% 

-25.38% 

Consumption Comparison 

2011 2012 
Units Billed 441 ,947 512,664 

Active 26,127 26,290 
Vacant 1,502 1,352 

Rev/unit $ 3.44 $ 2.92 
Rev/con $ 58.17 $ 56.98 

Total Water Sales $ 1,519,825 $ 1,497,910 $ (21,915) -1 .44% Unit/con 16.92 19.50 

Cash Operating Expenses: 
Directors $ 10,825 $ 5,868 $ (4,957) 45.79% 
Administration 275,286 213,134 (62,153) -22.58% 
Engineering 91,624 94,130 2,506 2.74% 
Facilities 159,129 239,848 80,718 50.73% 
Operations 314,396 316,985 2,588 0.82% 
Administrative Services 223,047 212,373 (10,674) -4.79% 
Water Conservation 16,400 16,665 265 1.62% 
Human Resources 15,816 15,284 (531 ) -3.36% 
Information Technology 30,109 113,032 82,922 275.40% 
Water Purchases 214,236 96,594 (117,642) -54.91% 
Water Recovery (12,292) (152,919) (140,627) 
Capitalized Expenditures 23,300 53,343 30,043 128.94% 
GAC Filter Media Replacement 219,829 219,829 
Total Cash Operating Expenses $ 1,361,877 $ 1,444,165 $ 82,289 6.04% 

Non-Cash Operating Expenses: 
Depreciation $ 570,283 $ 576,751 $ 6,468 1.13% 
OPEB Accrual Expense 162,134 147,678 (14,456) -8.92% 
Bad Debts 280 792 511 182.26% 
Service Costs Construction 11,267 (4,722) (15,988) -141.91% 
Capitalized Construction (85,714} (71,021 } 14,694 -17.14% 

Total Non-Cash Operating Expenses $ 658,250 $ 649,478 $ (8,772) -1.33% 

Net Operating Profit/{Loss) $ (500,301) $ (595,733) $ (95,432) 19.07% 

Non-Operating Revenues: 
Assessments 
Interest 
Capital Improvement Fees 
State Grants 
Other 
Total Non-Operating Revenues 

$ 

$ 

416,668 
23,950 
11,955 
76,200 
23,277 

552,049 

$ 

$ 

416,668 
1,860 

9,649 
428,177 

$ 

$ 

(22,089) 
(11 ,955) 
(76,200) 
(13,628} 

(123,872) 

0.00% 
-92.23% 

-58.55% 
-22.44% 

Non-Operating Expenses: 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Amortization of SWP 
Capital Lease 
Water Conservation Programs 
Total Non-Operating Expenses 

$ 

$ 

212,801 
117,346 

330,147 

$ 

$ 

208,555 
128,945 

6,501 
344,001 

$ 

$ 

(4,246) 
11 ,599 

6,501 
13,854 

-2.00% 
9.88% 

4.20% 

Net Earnings $ (278,400) $ (511,557) $ (233,158) 83.75% 
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YEAR-TO-YEAR COMPARISON 

April '11 -To- April '12 


Percentage Change 

10.00% 
6.04% 

Operating Revenue 5.00% 

Cash Operating Expense 
0.00% 

Non-Cash Operating Expense 
-1-5.00% 

Non-Operating Revenue 

-10.00% Non-Operating Expense 

-15.00% 

-20.00% 

-25.00% 

Percentage Change 

20.00% 

15.00% 

10.00% 

5.00% 

0.00% 

-5.00% 

-10.00% 

-15.00% 

-20.00% 
-15.04% 

Units Billed (AF) 

Active Connections 

IiiITotal Revenue per Unit 

.,ilTotal Revenue per Connection 

Units Billed per Connection 

2011 2012 
Units Billed (AF) 1,015 1,177 16.00% 
Active Connections 26,127 26,290 0.62% 
Non-Active 1,502 1,352 -9.99% 
Total Revenue per Unit 3.44 2.92 -15.04% 
Total Revenue per Connection 58.17 56.98 -2.05% 
Units Billed per Connection 16.92 19.50 15.28% 
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Palmdale Water District 
Revenue Analysis 

For the Four Months Ending 4/30/2012 
2012 

2011 to 2012 Comparison 

Thru Adjusted %of Thru % 
March A~ril Year-to-Date Bud~et Budget March April Year-to-Date Change 

Operating Revenue: 
Wholesale Water $ - $ - $ - $ 175,000 $ 0.00% 
Water Sales 1,129,469 423,673 1,553,141 8,145,000 19.07% 43,295 19,323 62,618 4.20% 
Meter Fees 2,579,297 861,943 3,441,240 10,400,000 33 .09% 40 ,297 (27,549) 12,748 0.37% 
Water Quality Fees 257,722 102,466 360,188 1,550,000 23.24% 33,865 10,209 44,074 13.94% 
Elevation Fees 82 ,009 33,249 115,258 525,000 21.95% 15,211 2,143 17,355 17.73% 
Other 409,920 76,579 486,499 t ,250,000 38.92% {217,193~ {26,041 ~ {243,234 ~ -33.33% 
Total Water Sales $ 4,458,416 $ 1,497,910 $ 5,956,326 $ 22,045,000 27.02% $ (84,524) $ (21,915) $ (106,439) -1.76% 

Non-Operating Revenues: 
Assessments $ 1,250,003 $ 416,668 $ 1,666,671 $ 5,500,000 30.30% $ - $ - $ 0.00% 
Interest 9,169 1,860 11,029 60,000 18.38% 11,244 (22,089) (10,846) -49 .58% 
Capital Improvement Fees 693 ,287 693,287 1,286,848 53.87% 200,970 (11 ,955) 189,015 37.48% 
State Grants 250,000 0.00% (76,200) (76,200) 
Other 70 ,897 9,649 80,546 100,000 80.55% 24,179 {13,628) 10,551 15.07% 
Total Non-Operating Revenues $ 2,023,357 $ 428,177 $ 2,451,533 $ 7,196,848 34.06% $ 236,393 $ (123,872) $ 112,521 4.81% 

Total Revenue $ 6,481,773 $ 1,926,087 $ 8,407,859 $ 29,241,848 28.75% $ 151,870 $ (145,787) $ 6,082 0.07% 

Operating Revenue : 
Water Sales 
Meter Fees 
Water Quality Fees 
Elevation Fees 
Other 
Totall Water Sales 

$ 

$ 

2011 
Thru 

March 

1,086,173 $ 
2,539,000 

223,857 
66,797 

627,112 
4,542,940 $ 

April 

404,350 
889,492 

92,257 
31 ,106 

102,620 
1,519,825 

Year-to-D ate 

$ 1,490,523 
3,428,492 

316,114 
97,903 

729 ,733 
$ 6,062,765 

Adjusted 
Budaet 

$ 9,400,000 
10,650,000 

1,600,000 
560,000 

1,175,000 
$ 23,385,000 

% of 
Budaet 

15.86% 
32.19% 
19.76% 

62.10% 
25.93% 

Non-Operating Revenues: 
Assessments 
Interest 
Capital Improvement Fees 
State Grants 
Other 
Total Non-Operating Revenues 

$ 

$ 

1,250,003 
(2,074) 

492 ,317 

46,718 
1,786,963 

$ 

$ 

416,668 $ 1,666,671 
23,950 21,875 
11,955 504,272 
76,200 76,200 
23,277 69,994 

552,049 . $ 2,339,012 

$ 5,000,000 
120,000 
250,000 
500,000 
175,000 

$ 6,045,000 

33.33% 
18.23% 

201.71 % 
15.24% 
40.00% 
38.69% 

Total Revenue $ 6,329,903 $ 2,071,874 $ 8,401,777 $ 29,430,000 28.55% 
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REVENUE COMPARISON YEAR-TO-DATE 


A ril '11-To-A ril '12 


6.00% 

5.00% 

4.00% 

3.00% 

2.00% 

1.00% 

0.00% 

-1.00% 

-2.00% 

-3.00% 

4.81% 

-1.76% 

0.07% 

Percentage Change 

Operating Revenue 

Non-Operating Revenue 

Total Revenue 
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Palmdale Water District 

Operating Expense Analysis 
2011 to 2012 Comparison 

For the Four Months Ending 4/30/2012 
2012 

Thru Adjusted %of Thru % 
March A~ril Year-ta-Date Budget Budget March A~ril Year-to-Date Change 

Cash Operating Expenses: 
Directors $ 34,399 $ 5,868 $ 40,267 $ 154,000 26.15% $ (357) $ (4,957) $ (5,314) -11.66% 
Administration 851,142 213,134 1,064,276 3,547,000 30.00% (150,245) (62,153) (212,398) -16.64% 
Engineering 287,092 94,130 381,222 1,169,000 32.61% 7,651 2,506 10,157 2.74% 
Facilities 820,080 239,848 1,059,927 3,490,500 30.37% (39,692) 80,718 41,026 4.03% 
Operations 1,069,649 316,985 1,386,633 5,113,750 27.12% 79,668 2,588 82,257 6.31% 
Administrative Services 700,280 212,373 912,652 2,788,750 32.73% 22,335 (10,674) 11,661 1.29% 
Water Conservation . 51,634 16,665 68,299 223,500 30.56% 3,667 265 3,932 6.11% 
Human Resources 57,403 15,284 72,688 267,850 27.14% 375 (531 ) (157) -0.21% 
Information Technology 115,828 113,032 228,859 736,750 31.06% 115,828 82,922 101,997 80.40% 
Water Purchases 706,662 96,594 803,256 2,800,000 28.69% 292,437 (117,642) 174,795 27.81% 
Water Recovery (80,398) (152,919) (233,317) (200,000) 116.66% (76,044) (140,627) (216,671) 1301 .60% 
Capitalized Expenditures 38,952 53,343 92,295 412,500 22.37% (60,398) 30,043 (30,354) -24.75% 
GAC Filter Media Replacement 219,829 219,829 1,550,000 14.18% 219,829 219,829 
Total Cash Operating Expenses $ 4,652,721 $1,444,165 $ 6,096,887 $ 22,053,600 27.65% $ 195,225 $ 82,289 $ 180,761 2.96% 

Non-Cash Operating Expenses: 
Depreciation $ 1,780,049 $ 576,751 $ 2,356,800 $ 7,800,000 30.22% $ 78,038 $ 6,468 $ 84,506 3.72% 
OPEB Accrual Expense 603,924 147,678 751 ,602 2,000,000 37.58% 352,571 (14,456) 338,115 81.77% 
Bad Debts 3,045 792 3,837 100,000 3.84% 593 511 1,104 40.42% 
Service Costs Construction (18.605) (4,722) (23,327) 125,000 -18.66% (23,007) (15,988) (38,995) -248.87% 
Capitalized Construction (197,592) (71,021) (268,613) (1 ,000,000) 26.86% 102,847 14,694 117,541 -30 .44% 
Total Non-Cash Operating Expenses $ 2,170,822 $ 649,478 $ 2,820,300 $ 9,025,000 31.25% $ 511 ,042 $ (8,772) $ 502,271 17.81% 

Non-Operating Expenses: 
Interest on Long-Term Debt $ 625,664 $ 208,555 $ 834,219 $ 2,490,000 33.50% $ (12,739) $ (4,246) $ (16,985) -2 .00% 
Amortization of SWP 386,835 128,945 515,780 1,680,000 30.70% 34,797 11,599 46,396 9.88% 
Capital Lease 212,000 (500) (500) 
Water Conservation Programs 7,945 6,501 14,446 150,000 7,445 6,501 13,946 
Total Non-Operating Expenses $ 1,020,445 $ 344,001 $ 1,364,445 $ 4,532,000 30.11% $ 29,003 $ 13,854 $ 42,857 3.24% 

Total Expenses $ 7,843,988 $2,437,644 $10,281,632 $ 35,610,600 28.87% $ 735,270 $ 87,370 $ 725,888 7.60% 
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Palmdale Water District 

Operating Expense Analysis 
2011 to 2012 Comparison 

For the Four Months Ending 4/30/2012 
2011 

Thru Adjusted %of 
March April Year-to-Date Budget Budget 

Cash Operating Expenses: 
Directors $ 34,757 $ 10,825 $ 45,581 $ 146,200 
Administration 1,001 ,388 275,286 1,276,674 3,176,000 40.20% 
Engineering 279,440 91.624 371.064 1.127.000 32.92% 
Facilities 859.772 159.129 1.018.901 3,317.000 30.72% 
Operations 989.980 314.396 1.304.377 5.071.050 25.72% 
Administrative Services 677.944 223.047 900.992 2,762.200 32.62% 
Water Conservation 47,967 16,400 64.367 212.500 30.29% 
Human Resources 57.029 15.816 72.844 273.000 26.68% 
Information Technology 96.752 30.109 126.862 712.500 17.81% 
Water Purchases 414.225 214.236 628,461 3.000.000 20.95% 
Water Recovery (4.354) (12.292) (16.646) (200.000) 8.32% 
Capitalized Expenditures 99.349 23.300 122.649 557.300 22.01% 
GAC Filter Media Replacement 1.600.000 0.00% 
Total Cash Operating Expenses $ 4,554,249 $1,361,877 $ 5,916,126 $21,754,750 27.19% 

Non-Cash Operating Expenses: 
Depreciation $ 1.702.011 $ 570.283 $ 2.272.295 $ 6.850.000 33.17% 
OPEB Accrual Expense 251.354 162,134 413,487 550.000 75.18% 
Bad Debts 2,452 280 2.733 100.000 2.73% 
Service Costs Construction 4,402 11.267 15.669 125,000 12.53% 
Capitalized Construction (300,439) (85.714) (386.154) (1.000.000) 38.62% 
Total Non-Cash Operating Expenses $ 1,659,780 $ 658,250 $ 2,318,030 $ 6,625,000 34.99% 

Non-Operating Expenses: 
Interest on Long-Term Debt $ 638,403 $ 212.801 $ 851,205 $ 2.541.000 33.50% 
Aniortization of SWP 352.038 117.346 469.384 1.579.000 29.73% 
Other 500 500 
Total Non-Operating Expenses $ 990,941 $ 330.147 $ 1,321,089 $ 4,120,000 32.07% 

Total Expenses $ 7,204,970 $2,350,274 $ 9,555,244 $32,499,750 29.40% 

Prepared 6/6/2012 9:03 AM Page 12 



EXPENSE COMPARISON YEAR-TO-OATE 


April '11-To-April '12 


Percentage Change 

17.81% 

0 .00% 0.00% 

20.00% 

18.00% 

16.00% 

14.00% 

12.00% 

10.00% 

8.00% 

6.00% 

4.00% 

2.00% 

0.00% 

" Cash Operating Expense 

.	 Non-Cash Operating Expense 

Non-Operating Expense 

Total Expense 
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Palmdale Water District 

2012 Directors Budget 


For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 


YTD ORIGINAL ADJUSTED 
ACTUAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-01-4000-000 Directors Pay $ 11,400 $ 45,000 $ - $ 33,600 25.33% 

Employee Benefits 
1-01-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 929 5,500 4,571 16.90% 
1-01-4010-000 Health Insurance 27,263 93,500 66,237 29.16% 

Subtotal (Benefits) 28,193 99,000 66,237 28.48% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 39,593 $ 144,000 $ - $ 99,837 27.49% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-01-4050-000 Directors Travel, Seminars & Meetings 

Subtotal Operating Expenses 
675 
675 

10,000 
10,000 

9,325 
9,325 

6.75% 
6.75% 

Total 0 & M Expenses $ 40,267 $ 154,000 $ - $ 109,162 26.15% 
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Palmdale Water District 
2012 Administration Budget 

For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 

YTD 
ACTUAL 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

ADJUSTED 
BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-02-4000-000 Salaries $ 147,930 $ 479,250 $ 331,320 30.87% 
1-02-4000-100 Overtime 3,006 6,000 2,994 50.10% 
1-02-4000-200 On-Call 16,770 64,000 47,230 26.20% 

Subtotal (Salaries) $ 167,706 $ 549,250 $ 381,544 30.53% 

Employee Benefits 
1-02-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 12,970 42,000 29,030 30.88% 
1-02-4010-000 Health Insurance 29,575 76,750 47,175 38.53% 
1-02-4015-000 PERS 33,817 90,500 56,683 37.37% 
1-024020-000 Worker's Compensation 37,782 200,000 162,218 18.89% 
1-02-4025-000 Vacation Benefit Expense 53,803 35,000 (18,803) 153.72% 
1-02-4030-000 Life Insurance 5,334 7,500 2,166 71.11% 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 173,280 $ 451,750 $ $ 278,470 38.36% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 340,986 $ 1,001,000 $ $ 660,014 34.06% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-02-4050-000 Staff Travel 
1-02-4050-100 General Manager Travel 
1-02-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 
1-02-4060-100 General Manager Conferences & Seminars 
1-02-4070-000 Employee Expense 
1-02-4080-000 Other Operating 
1-02-4110-000 Consultants 
1-02-4125-000 Insurance 
1-02-4130-000 Bank Charges 
1-02-4135-000 Groundwater Adjudication 
1-02-4140-000 Legal Services 
1-02-4150-000 Accounting Services 
1-02-4155-000 Contracted Services 
1-02-4165-000 Memberships/Subscriptions 
1-02-4170-000 Elections 
1-02-4175-000 Permits 
1-02-4180-000 Postage 
1-02-4190-100 Public Relations - Publications 
1-02-4190-900 Public Relations - Other 
1-02-4200-000 Advertising 
1-02-4205-000 Office Supplies 
1-02-4215-200 Natural Gas - Office Building 
1-02-4220-200 Electricity - Office Building 
1-02-4230-100 Maint & Repair - Office Building 
1-02-6300-100 Supplies - Janitorial 

$ 3,976 $ 
482 
555 
949 

15,892 
2,591 

70,146 
102,597 
33,720 
84,051 

260,773 
15,750 
9,274 
8,212 

78,451 
1,400 
6,653 
4,793 

961 
233 

7,266 
1,917 

10,759 
1,711 

177 

8,000 $ 4,024 49.70% 
5,000 4,518 9.63% 
3,000 2,445 18.50% 
4,500 3,551 21.09% 

40,000 24,108 39.73% 
20,000 17,409 12.95% 

200,000 129,854 35.07% 
325,000 222,403 31.57% 
130,000 96,280 25.94% 
925,000 840,949 9.09% 
475,000 214,227 54.90% 

20,000 4,250 78.75% 
50,000 40,726 18.55% 

110,000 101,788 7.47% 
70,000 
20,000 18,600 7.00% 
30,000 23,347 22.18% 
30,000 25,207 15.98% 

1,000 39 96.10% 
3,000 2,767 7.76% 

20,000 12,734 36.33% 
5,000 3,083 38.34% 

50,000 39,241 21.52% 
(1,711) 

1,500 1,323 11.80% 
Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 723,290 $ 2,546,000 $ $ 1,831,161 28.41% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 1,064,276 $ 3,547,000 $ $ 2,491,175 30.00% 
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Palmdale Water District 

2012 Engineering Budget 


For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 


YTD ORIGINAL ADJUSTED 

ACTUAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET PERCENT 
2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-03-4000-000 Salaries 
1-03-4000-100 Overtime 

Subtotal (Salaries) 

$ 

$ 

239,065 
55 

239,120 

$ 

$ 

767,000 
7,500 

774,500 

$ 

$ 

527,935 
7,445 

535,380 

31.17% 
0.73% 

30.87% 

Employee Benefits 
1-03-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 
1-03-4010-000 Health Insurance 
1-03-4015-000 PERS 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 

20,729 
52,611 
53,531 

126,871 $ 

59,250 
158,000 
144,250 
361,500 $ $ 

38,521 
105,389 
90,719 

234,629 

34.98% 
33.30% 
37.11% 
35.10% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 365,991 $ 1,136,000 $ - $ nO,009 32.22% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-03-4050-000 Staff Travel $ 1,105 $ 4,250 $ 3,145 26.01% 
1-03-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 1,005 2,750 1,745 36.55% 
1-03-4155-000 Contracted Services 2,093 6,000 3,907 34.88% 
1-03-4165-000 Memberships/S u bscri ptions 1,207 3,000 1,793 40.22% 
1-03-4250-000 General Materials & Supplies 381 2,000 1,619 19.06% 
1-03-8100-100 Computer Software - Maint. & Support 9,440 15,000 5,561 62.93% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 15,231 $ 33,000 $ - $ 17,769 46.15% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 381,222 $ 1,169,000 $ - $ 787,778 32 .61% 
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Palmdale Water District 
2012 Facilities Budget 

For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 

YTD 
ACTUAL 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

ADJUSTED 
BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-04-4000-000 Salaries $ 438,498 $ 1,424,000 $ 985,S02 30.79% 
1-04-4000-100 Overtime 5,788 45,000 39,212 12.86% 

Subtotal (Salaries) $ 444,286 $ 1,469,000 $ 1,024,714 30.24% 

Employee Benefits 
1-04-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 39,029 112,SOO 73,471 34.69% 
1-04-4010-000 Health Insurance 128,270 394,000 265,730 32.56% 
1-04-4015-000 PERS 99,915 266,000 166,085 37.56% 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 267,215 $ 772,SOO $ - $ 505,285 34.59% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 711,501 $ 2,241,500 $ - $ 1,490,787 31.74% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-04-4050-000 Staff Travel $ - $ 3,000 3,000 0.00% 
1-04-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 449 3,000 2,551 14.97% 
1-04-4155-000 Contracted Services 3,565 33,000 29,435 10.80% 
1-04-4215-200 Natural Gas - Buildings 1,558 4,500 2,942 34.62% 
1-04-4220-200 Electricity - Buildings 11,781 17,500 5,719 67.32% 
1-04-4225-000 Maint. & Repair - Vehicles 17,680 45,000 27,320 39.29% 
1-04-4230-100 Maint. & Rep. Office Building 536 18,000 17,464 2.98% 
1-04-4235-110 Maint. & Rep. Equipment 1,823 7,500 5,677 24.30% 
1-04-4235-400 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Wells 19,158 150,000 130,842 12.77% 
1-04-4235-405 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Boosters 20,526 SO,OOO 29,474 41.05% 
1-04-4235-410 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Shop Bldgs 4,718 10,000 5,282 47.18% 
1-04-4235-415 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Facilities 2,611 15,000 12,389 17.41% 
1-04-4235-420 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Water Lines 118,189 400,000 281,811 29.55% 
1-04-4235-425 Maint. & Hep. Operations - Littlerock Dam 101 25,000 24,899 0.40% 
1-04-4235-430 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Palmdale Dam 7,680 25,000 17,320 30.72% 
1-04-4235-435 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Palmdale Canal 5,000 5,000 0.00% 
1-04-4235-455 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Heavy Equipment 12,623 40,000 27,377 31.56% 
1-04-4235-460 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Storage Reservoirs 7,SOO 7,500 0.00% 
1-04-6000-000 Waste Disposal 8,735 20,000 11 ,265 43.68% 
1-04-6100-100 Fuel and Lube - Vehicle 56,188 130,000 73,812 43.22% 
1-04-6100-200 Fuel and Lube - Machinery 20,149 43,000 22,851 46.86% 
1-04-6200-000 Uniforms 5,443 20,000 14,557 27.22% 
1-04-6300-100 Supplies - Misc. 16,527 SO,OOO 33,473 33.05% 
1-04-6300-800 Supplies - Construction Materials 10,262 100,000 89,738 10.26% 
1-04-6400-000 Tools 3,338 12,000 8,662 27.81% 
1-04-7000-100 Leases -Equipment 4,788 15,000 10,212 31.92% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 348,427 $ 1,249,000 $ - $ 900,573 27.90% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 1,059,928 $ 3,490,500 $ - $ 2,391 ,360 30.37% 
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Palmdale Water District 
2012 Operation Budget 

For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 

YTD 
ACTUAL 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

ADJUSTED 

BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REM.4!INING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-05-4000-000 Salaries 
1-05-4000-100 Overtime 

Subtotal (Salaries) 

$ 

$ 

495,595 
24,148 

519,743 

$ 1,619,250 
60,000 

$ 1,679,250 

$ 1,123,655 
35,852 

$ 1,159,507 

30 .61% 
40.25% 
30.95% 

Employee Benefits 
1-05-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 
1-05-4010-000 Health Insurance 
1-05-4015-000 PERS 

45,029 
122,128 
111,840 

128,500 
367,500 
304,000 

83,471 
245,372 
192,160 

35.04% 
33.23% 
36.79% 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 278,997 $ 800,000 $ - $ 521 ,003 34.87% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 798,740 $ 2,479,250 $ - $ 1,644,658 32.22% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-05-4050-000 Staff Travel $ 3,122 $ 8,000 $ 4,878 39.02% 
1-05-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 3,366 9,500 6,134 35.43% 
1-05-4120-100 Training - Lab Equipment 3,500 3,500 0.00% 
1-05-4155-000 Contracted Services 13,714 59,000 45,286 23.24% 
1-05-4175-000 Permits 9,262 51,000 41,738 18.16% 
1-05-4215-100 Natural Gas - Wells & Boosters 13,017 150,000 136,983 8.68% 
1-05-4215-200 Natural Gas - WTP 523 3,000 2,477 17.43% 
1-05-4220-100 Electricity - Wells & Boosters 336,073 1,450,000 1,113,927 23.18% 
1-05-4220-200 Electricity - WTP 35,678 185,000 149,322 19.29% 
1-05-4230-110 Maint. & Rep. - Office Equipment 500 500 0.00% 
1-05-4235-110 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Equipment 2,175 15,000 12,825 14.50% 
1-05-4235-410 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Shop Bldgs 690 6,000 5,310 11.50% 
1-05-4235-415 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Facilities 11,314 38,000 26,686 29.77% 
1-05-4235-445 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Telemetry 94 2,250 2,156 4.17% 
1-05-4235-450 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Hypo Generator 7,250 7,250 0.00% 
1-05-4236-000 Palmdale Lake Management 11,802 15,000 3,198 78.68% 
1-05-4250-000 General Material & Supplies 288 
1-05-4270-300 Telecommunication - Other 837 2,250 1,413 37.20% 
1-05-4300-300 Testing - Edison 12,000 12,000 0.00% 
1-05-6000-000 Waste Disposal 1,140 15,000 13,860 7.60% 
1-05-6200-000 Uniforms 3,175 10,000 6,825 31 .75% 
1-05-6300-100 Supplies - Misc. 3,705 15,000 11,295 24.70% 
1-05-6300-200 Supplies - Hypo Generator 1,631 6,750 5,119 24.16% 
1-05-6300-300 Supplies - Electrical 3,500 3,500 0.00% 
1-05-6300-400 Supplies - Telemetry 5,934 7,500 1,566 79.12% 
1-05-6300-600 Supplies - Lab 15,360 35,000 19,640 43.89% 
1-05-6300-700 Outside Lab Work 18,080 65,000 46,920 27.82% 
1-05-6400-000 Tools 1,436 6,500 5,064 22.09% 
1-05-6500-000 Chemicals 95,479 450,000 354,521 21.22% 
1-05-7000-100 Leases -Equipment 3,000 3,000 0.00% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 587,893 $ 2,634,500 $ - $ 2,046,895 22.32% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 1,386,633 $ 5,113,750 $ - $ 3,691,553 27.12% 
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Palmdale Water District 
2012 Administrative Services Budget 

For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 

YTD 
ACTUAL 

2012 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

2012 
ADJUSTMENTS 

2012 

ADJUSTED 
BUDGET 

REMAINING 
PERCENT 

USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-06-4000-000 Salaries 
1-06-4000-100 Overtime 

Subtotal (Salaries) 

$ 

$ 

469,421 
5,584 

475,006 

$ 1,531,250 
25,000 

$ 1,556,250 

$ 1,061,829 
19,416 

$ 1,081,244 

30.66% 
22.34% 
30.52% 

Employee Benefits 
1-06-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 
1-06-4010-000 Health Insurance 
1-06-4015-000 PERS 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 

41 ,382 
127,157 
106,559 
275,098 

119,250 
381,000 
286,500 

$ 786,750 $ -

77,868 
253,843 
179,941 

$ 511,652 

34.70% 
33.37% 
37.19% 
34.97% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 750,103 $ 2,343,000 $ - $ 1,573,481 32.01% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-06-4050-000 Staff Travel $ - $ 250 250 0.00% 
1-06-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 898 1,000 102 89.80% 
1-06-4155-300 Contracted Services 3,217 14,500 11,283 
1-06-4155-100 Contracted Services - Infosend 71,976 205,000 133,024 35.11% 
1-06-4165-000 Memberships/Subscriptior,lS 500 500 0.00% 
1-06-4230-11 0 Maintenance & Repair - Office Equipment 1,000 1,000 0.00% 
1-06-4235-440 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Large Meters 10,000 10,000 0.00% 
1-06-4235-470 Maint. & Rep. Operations - Meter Exchanges 63,419 125,000 61,581 50.74% 
1-06-4250-000 General Material & Supplies 2,145 4,000 1,855 53.62% 
1-06-4260-000 Business Forms 3,022 10,000 6,978 30.22% 
1-06-4270-100 Telecommunication - Office 8,069 30,000 21,931 26.90% 
1-06-4270-200 Telecommunication - Cellular Stipend 5,260 17,000 11,740 30.94% 
1-06-4270-300 Telecommunication - Cellular 420 3,000 2,580 
1-06-4300-200 Testing - Large Meter Testing 3,525 21,500 17,975 16.40% 
1-06-7000-100 Leases - Equipment 597 3,000 2,403 19.91% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 162,549 $ 445,750 $ - $ 283,201 36.47% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 912,652 $ 2,788,750 $ - $ 1,856,682 32.73% 
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Palmdale Water District 

2012 Water Conservation Budget 


For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 


YTD ORIGINAL ADJUSTED 
ACTUAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-07-4000-000 Salaries $ 45,971 $ 151,750 $ 105,779 30.29% 
1-07-4000-100 Overtime 417 1,250 833 33.39% 

Subtotal (Salaries) $ 46,389 $ 153,000 $ 106,611 30.32% 

Employee Benefits 
1-07-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 3,988 12,000 8,012 33.24% 
1-07-4010-000 Health Insurance 5,139 15,500 10,361 33.16% 
1-07-4015-000 PERS 10,783 28,500 17,717 37.83% 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 19,910 $ 56,000 $ - $ 36,090 35.55% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 66,299 $ 209,000 $ - $ 141,868 31.72% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-07-4050-000 Staff Travel $ 28 $ 1,000 $ 972 2.78% 
1-07-4060-000 . Staff Conferences & Seminars 299 500 201 59.80% 
1-07-4190-.300 Public Relations - Landscape Wori<shoplTraining 280 2,500 2,220 11.18% 
1-07-4190-400 Public Relations - Contests 500 500 0.00% 
1-07-4190-500 Public Relations - Education Programs 137 5,000 4,863 2.74% 
1-07-4190-700 Public Relations -General Media 875 3,000 
1-07-6300-100 Supplies - Misc. 382 2,000 1,618 19.10% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 2,000 $ 14,500 $ - $ 10,375 13.79% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 68,299 $ 223,500 $ - $ 152,243 30.56% 
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Palmdale Water District 

2012 Human Resources Budget 


For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 


YTD ORIGINAL ADJUSTED 
ACTUAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-08-4000-000 Salaries $ 37,926 $ 127,500 $ 89,574 29.75% 

Employee Benefits 
1-08-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 
1-08-4010-000 Health Insurance 
1-08-4015-000 PERS 

3,284 
5,758 
8,924 

10,000 
17,250 
24,000 

6,716 
11,492 
15,076 

32.84% 
33 .38% 
37.18% 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 17,966 $ 51,250 $ - $ 33,284 35.06% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 55,892 $ 178,750 $ - $ 122,858 31.27% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-08-4050-000 Staff Travel $ 231 $ 3,000 $ 2,769 7.69% 
1-08-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 250 2,000 1,750 12.50% 
1-08-4095-000 Employee Recruitment 228 3,000 2,772 7.60% 
1-08-4100-000 Employee Retention 1,325 1,500 175 88.33% 
1-08-4105-000 Employee Relations 2,207 3,500 1,293 63.05% 
1-08-4110-000 Consultants 1,000 1,000 0.00% 
1-08-4120-100 Training-Safety Consultants 8,238 38,000 29,762 21 .68% 
1-08-4121-000 Safety Program 1,000 1,000 0.00% 
1-08-4165-000 Membership/Subscriptions 1,946 1,600 (346) 121 .62% 
1-08-4165-100 HRISafety Publications 124 1,000 877 12.35% 
1-08-6300-500 Supplies - Safety 2,247 33,500 31,253 6.71% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 16,795 $ · 89,100 $ - $ 72,305 18.85% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 72,688 $ 267,850 $ - $ 195,162 27.14% 
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Palmdale Water District 

2012 Information Technology Budget 


For the Four Months Ending Monday, April 30, 2012 


YTD ORIGINAL ADJUSTED 
ACTUAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET PERCENT 

2012 2012 2012 REMAINING USED 

Personnel Budget: 

1-09-4000-000 Salaries $ 63,341 $ 195,250 $ 131,909 32.44% 
1-09-4000-100 Overtime 993 3,000 2,007 33.09% 

Subtotal (Salaries) $ 64,334 $ 198,250 $ 133,916 32.45% 

Employee Benefits 
1-09-4005-000 Payroll Taxes 5,620 15,500 9,880 36.26% 
1-09-4010-000 Health Insurance 13,268 40,000 26,732 33.17% 
1-09-4015-000 PERS 14,320 37,000 22,680 38.70% 

Subtotal (Benefits) $ 33,208 $ 92,500 $ - $ 59,292 35.90% 

Total Personnel Expenses $ 97,542 $ 290,750 $ - $ 191 ,201 33.55% 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
1-09-4050-000 Staff Travel $ 89 $ 3,000 2,911 2.97% 
1-09-4060-000 Staff Conferences & Seminars 8,167 15,000 6,833 54.45% 
1-09-4120-100 Cogsdale Reimplementation & Templates 21,075 70,000 48,925 30.11% 
1-09-4155-300 Contracted Services - Computer Vendors· 31 ,941 105,000 (1,300) 71,759 30.80% 
1-09-4165-000 Memberships/Subscriptions 500 500 0.00% 
1-09-8000-100 Computer Equipment - Computers 35,021 45,000 9,979 77.82% 
1-09-8000-200 Computer Equipment - Laptops 10,000 10,000 0.00% 
1-09-8000-300 Computer Equipment - Monitors 177 2,000 1,823 8.86% 
1-09-8000-400 Computer Equipment - Printers 71 2,500 2,429 2.83% 
1-09-8000-500 Computer Equipment - Toner Cartridges 3,714 3,000 (714) 123.81% 
1-09-8000-600 Computer Equipment - Other 27,440 35,000 7,560 78.40% 
1-09-8100-100 Computer Software - Maint. and Support 113 70,000 69,888 0.16% 
1-09-8100-150 Computer Software - Cogsdale Maint and Support 70,000 70,000 0.00% 
1-09-8100-200 Computer Software - Software and Upgrades 3,510 15,000 11,490 23.40% 

Subtotal Operating Expenses $ 131,317 $ 446,000 $ (1,300) $ 313,383 29.53% 

Total Departmental Expenses $ 228,859 $ 736,750 $ (1,300) $ 504,584 31.12% 

• Budget adjustments by General Manager per Appendix A 
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Engineering Department Projected Payout Schedule
June - 2012

Project Title 2012 Budget Budget No. Payee Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Strategic Water Resources Plan 25,000$           PL02 ESA 7,733$        12,336$      11,894$      1,280$           9,000$           

Littlerock Dam Sediment Removal 270,000$         NCP02

EIR/EIS Aspen 11,719$      3,257$        3,966$        10,939$      14,000$      14,000$      14,000$      14,000$      14,000$      14,000$      

Cost Recovery Payment USFS 119,416$    

Spec. No. 0903 - 9th/12th Street East 683,000$         RCP08 VCI 182,825$    137,230$    187,320$    104,529$    86,084$      

Acquisition of Tax Defaulted Property 18,000$           NCC04 LA County 18,000$      

Annual Tank Maint. (Year 5 of 5) 360,000$         RCP05 Utility Services 355,147$    

Well No. 11A Rehabilitation 200,000$         RCP23 Layne 215,030$    80,000$      

Avenue S and Downing - Water Main Replacement 125,000$         RCO18 TBD 30,886$      10,000$      

Spec. No. 0902 - Ave. Q-3, Division, Sumac 525,000$         RCP07 TBD 75,000$      150,000$    150,000$    150,000$    175,000$    150,000$    

Lighting Replacement -$                     N/A ORION 68,163$      68,163$      

WTP Security System 50,000$           NCP01 TBD 25,000$      25,000$      

Total Projected Payout: 190,558$     280,701$     202,471$     323,525$     87,364$       492,135$     247,163$     189,000$     189,000$     164,000$     189,000$     164,000$     

Water Quality Fund 2012 Budget Budget No. Payee Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2012 Granular Activated Carbon Supply 1,550,000$   N/A

2012 Change-Outs Calgon 219,829$    434,000$    217,000$    217,000$    

GAC Vessel at Underground Booster Station TBD 200,000$    160,000$    40,000$      

Total Water Quality Projected Payout: -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 219,829$     434,000$     417,000$     377,000$     40,000$       -$                 -$                 -$                 

= Approved for Payment

6/7/2012
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P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: June 6, 2012   June 13, 2012 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matthew R. Knudson, Engineering Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON RESOLUTION NO. 12-7 AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 
APPLICATION TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
RESOURCES TO OBTAIN A LOCAL GROUNDWATER ASSISTANCE 
GRANT FOR THE LITTLEROCK CREEK RECHARGE AND 
RECOVERY PROJECT AND TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 
RESPECT THERETO. 

 
Recommendation: 
 

Staff recommends approving the attached Resolution No. 12-7 authorizing the 
submission of an application to the California Department of Water Resources to obtain a 
Local Groundwater Assistance (LGA) grant for the proposed Littlerock Creek Recharge 
and Recovery project and to enter into an agreement with respect thereto. 

 
Background: 
 

The Local Groundwater Management Assistance Act of 2000 (California Water 
Code Section 10795 et seq.) was enacted to provide grants to local public agencies to 
conduct groundwater studies or to carry out groundwater monitoring and management 
activities. The proposed Littlerock Creek Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project is 
ideally suited for LGA funding being that the District has adopted the Antelope Valley 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan and the work we have done and continue to 
do on the Strategic Water Resources Plan. If there is a grant awarded to the District, the 
funds will be utilized to prepare a feasibility study for this project. 

 
The LGA grant is worth up to $250,000.00 with no matching funds required. On 

April 25, 2012, the Board authorized the District to enter into an agreement with 
Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. in the not-to-exceed amount of $35,000 for the 
preparation of the LGA grant application. The California Department of Water Resources 
requires each applicant to submit documentation, such as a resolution adopted by the 
applicant’s governing body, designating an authorized representative to file an 
application for LGA grant and enter into an agreement with the State of California. The 
Department of Water Resources, who is administering this grant, issued the final 
guidelines on May 3, 2012, and the grant application is due on July 13, 2012. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA:  Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager    June 6, 2012 

 
 
Strategic Plan Element: 
 

This work is part of Strategic Goal 2.2 – Improve reliability of groundwater 
through local groundwater storage projects. 
 
Budget: 
 

The approval of the attached Resolution No. 12-7 will have no impact on the 2012 
Budget. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 
 Proposed Resolution No. 12-7 
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RESOLUTION NO. 12-7 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PALMDALE WATER 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO THE 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES TO OBTAIN A LOCAL 
GROUNDWATER ASSISTANCE GRANT PURSUANT TO PUBLIC RESOURCE 

CODE §75001, ET. SEQ. FOR THE LITTLEROCK CREEK RECHARGE AND 
RECOVERY PROJECT AND TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT 

THERETO 

WHEREAS,  Palmdale Water District (“District”) is an irrigation district formed 
under Division 11 of the California Water Code; and  

WHEREAS, the District is a “local agency” within the meaning of California Water 
Code §10701(a) and therefore is eligible to apply for a Local Groundwater Assistance 
Grant administered by the California Department of Water Resources; and  

WHEREAS, the District is in the process of developing a project known as the 
Littlerock Creek Recharge and Recovery Project, which will enable the District to more 
effectively and efficiently manage its groundwater resources for the benefit of its 
customers; and  

WHEREAS, a grant from the California Department of Water Resources under 
the Local Groundwater Assistance Grant Program will be of significant benefit to the 
District and its customers in bringing the Littlerock Creek Recharge and Recovery 
Project to fruition. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
Palmdale Water District hereby authorizes and directs that an application be made to 
the California Department of Water Resources to obtain a Local Groundwater 
Assistance Grant (the “Grant”) pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and 
Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Public Resource 
Code §75001, et. seq.). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the District’s Board of Directors authorizes 
the District’s General Manager to enter into an agreement to receive the Grant for the 
Littlerock Creek Recharge and Recovery Project, and the General Manager, or his 
designee, is hereby authorized and directed to prepare the necessary data, conduct 
investigations, file such applications and execute such grant agreements with the 
California Department of Water Resources as may be appropriate in connection with the 
Grant. 
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Manager and the staff of 
Palmdale Water District are hereby authorized and directed to take such other and 
further action that may be necessary or appropriate to carryout and further the purposes 
of this resolution. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Palmdale 
Water District on June 13, 2012. 

 

 

             
President      (date) 
 
 
             
Secretary      (date) 
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P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: June 6, 2012   June 13, 2012 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM:  Mr. Peter Thompson II, Operations Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager  

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON PALMDALE FIN AND FEATHER CLUB DOCK PLATFORM 
CONSTRUCTION GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR NEW 
CONSTRUCTION OR REPLACEMENT OF DOCKS AT PALMDALE 
LAKE AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION OF NEW DOCK 29A. 

 

 
 
Recommendation: 

 
Staff and the Facilities Committee recommend approval of the Palmdale Fin and 

Feather Club Dock Platform Construction Guidelines and Procedures for new 
construction or replacement of docks at Palmdale Lake and approval of the construction 
of new Dock 29A to be located between Dock 29 and Dock 30. 

 
Alternative Options: 
 

The alternative is for the Fin & Feather Club Board of Directors to approve dock 
plans on an individual basis as no guidelines and procedures currently exist. 
 
Impact of Taking No Action: 
 

Current practices will continue.  No new dock will be constructed. 
 
Background: 
 

In an effort to streamline their processes, the Fin & Feather Club Board of 
Directors developed and adopted specific guidelines and procedures for either new 
construction or for the replacement of old and condemned walkways and docks.  District 
staff concurs with these guidelines and procedures. Staff has reviewed the new guidelines 
and believes it offers good guidance for dock repair and construction and helps prevent 
potential contamination of the lake from these activities. 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
VIA:   Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager    June 6, 2012 
 
 

The Palmdale Fin and Feather Club Board is requesting the addition of New Dock 
29A. The addition of new Dock 29A will have no detrimental impact on the lake or the 
District and will be constructed following the Fin and Feather Board approved new 
guidelines and procedures for new construction of docks.  This new dock will be of 
benefit to the Fin and Feather Club to alleviate dock crowding.   
 
Strategic Plan Element: 

 
This work is part of Strategic Element 2.0 Natural Resources Management.  

 
Budget: 

 
Approval of the guidelines and procedures and construction of the new dock will 

have no impact on the District’s budget. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 
 Current lease between the Palmdale Water District and the Palmdale Fin and 

Feather Club 
 Palmdale Fin and Feather Club Dock Platform Construction Guidelines. 
 Letter from Palmdale Fin and Feather Club Board President Perry Duggan 
 Map of Palmdale Lake showing potential placement of Dock 29A. 
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&§UJI;MENI TO EX'JEND AGUEMEW' OF'LEASE 
I 

This Agreement to Extend Agreement ofLease is entered into and effective as of 
the 13th day ofDecetnber, 2006, by and between PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
("Districttt) and PALMDALE FIN AND FEATHER CLUB, INC. C'ClubU

). 

RECITALS 

A. . The District and the Club previously entered into an Agreement ofLease 
dated November 25, 1996 (the "Lease Agreement',), under wbich the Club agreed to 
lease from the District, and the District agreed to lease to the Club, the "premises" 
defined in the Lease Agreement in accordance with the provisions ofthat agreement. 

. B.. The Lease Agreement provides that the term ofthe Club~s lease ofthe 
premises will expire on December 31, 2006, and the Club desires to extend the 'term ofits 
lease ofthe premises for ten (10) additional yeats. The District is amenable to extending , 
the term ofthe Club's lease for that additional period in accordance .with the tenns and 
conditions set forth below. 

.' NOW, TI!EREFORE. for good and valuable consideration, the parties agree to 
this Agreement to Extend Agreement ofLease, as follows: 

1.· Revisign to &at Property Excluded ftpm Leg. Exhibits A and B to the 
Lease Agreement are deleted in their entirety and are replaced by Exhibits A and B 
attached hereto, which add to the real property excluded frOm the defined pr~ses the 
cross--~ched property on those exhibits situated immediately southeast of the entnmceto 
the D;istrict's Water Treatment Plant at the intersection ofSib Street East and Avenue S. 

2. :ijxtension ofTetm.. The term of.the Club's lease ofthe premises.is 
extended, to terininate on December 31. 2016. The District also grants tO'the Club the 
exclusive right to renew the lease on that subsequent termination for two additional five­
year tenns, which right to renew must be exercised by written notice from the Club to the 
District delivered at least ninety (90) days prior to the above.referenced termination date. 
The District may evaluate and adjust the rental amount as necessary prior to accepting 
eaCh five-year option. 

3. .!lIg. In addition to the provisions ofParagraph 2 ofthe Lease Agreement 
concerning use ofthe premises by the Club, the Club shall comply with all conditions 
required by the Los Angeles County Regional Planning Commission in its 
Nonconforming Review Case No. 03-159-{S), as approved by said Commission on 
November 17.2004. A copy ofthose conditions is attachedheteto as Exhibit C. 

4. . Payment for Water Used by Club. The Club will be responsible for 
paying for water it uses at the premises, which shall be paid on'an annual basis with the 
Club's annual rent payment in aecordance Vf,ith Paragraph 7 ofthe Lease Agreement. For 
the calendar year 2007, the Club shall pay $800.00 per month for its water use, for a total 
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annualpayment of$9,600.00 for that year. Thereafter, the Club shall pay for water used 
,based on its actual metered usage from the prior calendar year. By way ofexample, the 
amount the Club shall pay for water use in calendar year 2008 shall be based on its actual 
usage in calendar year 2007. 

, ' 

S. ~ Agreement to Remgin in Eff~ Except as amended by Paragt:apbs 
1 through 4 ottbis Agreement to :Extend Agreement ofLease, the ~ Agreement sha11 

, remain in full force and effect. 

Signed the date and year first written above. 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 	 PALMDALE FIN & FEATHER 

CLUB,JNC. 


BY~~" 

Charles R. Love. Sr., President 

BY~~ 

, DieJe Wens, Secretary 
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AVENUE 

LAKE PAlMDALE 

----_._-_. PROPERTY LIHE 

~ ADDITIONAL EXClUDED PROPERTY 
1O~.A.Ao"""1:IoAoi1J.A,l (LEASE RENEWAL) PAUDAlE DITCH-­

CD DAM 

® NORTHERLY" EASTERLY OF THE DAM &. THE SOUTH 
SIDE CF THE LAKE. EAST OF PALMDALE DITCH 

® OUTLET WORKS 

~ WATER TREATMENT PlANT 

~ HYDROELECTalC STATION &. 
ENERGY DISSIPATQR FACILITIES 

P.W.o.- PAlIiOALi FIN & FEATHER 
CLl. LEASE AGREEMENT 

_-l'IiiiiP­__ IC~","'.uUl~u· PRC:ft:RTY FOR LAKE rM.•...,"........ 
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~~~ EXCLUDED PROPERTY 

~ ADDITIONAl EXCLUDED 
1IlO~ (LEASE RENEWAL)__-.c......U 

• E.XISTING STRUCTURES 

C CLUB DOCKS (ODC1( NUMSERS) 

P PRIVATE DOCKS 'DOCK NUMBERS) 

LAK£ PALMDALE 

PROPERTY, 
PALt.I)AlE' OJTCH-_r 

PALM)ALE WATER DISTRICT 
.202t lAST AWilUl 0. 'M.lIMLE. CA. t3IIIO 

.61....1 .... 1" 

P.W.D.- PALMDALE FIN &FEATHER 
ClUB LEASE AOREENENT 
EXISTING STRUCTURES 

. EXtUBlT .,,­

1 
.tI' 
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·NONCONFORMING ~EVlEW CASE NO. 03-:159-(5) , Page 1 014 
FI~Ai.. CONDITIONS ' 

1. 	 This grant ,authorizes 'the ,continued· Qperatton ~ maintenance of,anon..proflt 
hunting, .fis~ng" trap :shooting, archery club, ~ a trap. and baltsh~p, a ·live-ln 
caretaker· and the storage 'of boats and rea:eaUonal:vehlcles for l1lembers of'the 
Club as deptcted on ,the' approved ExhIbH "A'''' sabJect to an of the folJQwlng . 
conditions of approval. ' 

'2. ~riless"otherwise apparent ~m the context. the term "permittee'- shalf. include th~ 
': apptlcant and: any other per.son, corporatfoni or other:enUly making use of this grant. 

This grant ,shall' not be effeCtIve ,for any purpose-until the permittee; and the owner 
of the sUbject property If other ,than the' permittee,have.flled at ,the office of. the 
Department of Regional PlannIng 811 affidavit·Wifing that they are a~are Of, and 
agree tG .~pt; all of·th~ conditions' of this grant and that the oon~itIons·of the grant 
'have bean recorded ,as required, by Conditi~ No.8, and urrtll all required monies 
have been paid pursu~ to Condition No. 1.0. . ' . ' 

.4. 	 The. perrnlttee· shall defend, Jndemnity' an(ftlold harmless the County; its agents, 
offiCers, and employees from any'c1atm. actiOn~ ,or pl'()C88dlng against the ColJnty or 
Its agents, officers, Or employees.to 'attack, set·Qide, VoId or:annul this permit 
approval,.-.\Yhich actroh is brought wJthfn the applicable time period ~f Government ' 
Code SectIon '65(;)[)9, or other appllcabl& limitation period. TIle COunty sMiI nolly 
the permittee of any claim, ,~, or proCeeding and the County shall reasonably 
-cooperat~ In the defense. ' 

'5. 	 ,In the event ~at any Claim,~, ~r,proceeding as desCribed abov& .isfne,:i. against 
the County. the 'permittee shall wl1hln ten days of the ~ng pay ~ Department of 
Regional .Planning an initial deposjt of· $5,OOO,frorn which ~tual costs. shalf be 

'.. ,bUled afId deducted for the purpos~ of ~rayfng.the expenses lnyolved ,In the 
departments cooperatIOn in the defense, including but not limited to, depOsitions, 

. testimony. and,other assistance to perm1ttee orpennltteWs counsel. The permittee 
•shall aIs() pay the following supplemental depositS, from which actual costs shall be 

bDJQd and deducted: 
, 	 . 

, 	 , 

'8.' ' 	 If dU;ring,ttte·litigation process, actual costs incurred reach.SO'-percent of the 
amount, on d~posit,- the permittee shall, ~posIt additional funds sufficient to 
bring the.~ up to the amount of the InWal de~1t. There is no limit to 
the num~r of supplemental ~Its' that may be r~quired prIOr to 
compl~tlon of the litigation. . .' '.' . '. 

b. 	 At ,the sole discretion Of the permittee, -the amount of an 'Initial or· 
.supplemental.dEtposit may exoeeQ,the minimum amOunts defined herein. 
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~JNAt. CONDlnONS , '. 


The 'cost for ool'ection' eod duplication of records 8nd other related documents will 

'be paid by the perm\tleein atcor'dilnce with Se¢iori 2.170.010 of ,the 'Los Angeles 

COunty ~ode. ' , 


~ , . , 

6: 	 This 'grant will'&xpire unle,ss tised within- 60 days frOm the d$te of approv.,aI.
, 	 , ' 

7. 	 ,If any material provision of this grant is held or ~ectar8d' to be ·Invatid, the permit 
, shall be voielandthe privileges granted hereunder shall'lapss: ' 

8. 	 Prior to the uSe of this grant, the tennsand conditions 'of the grant s~all be reoon:led 
In the office of the County Recorder. In addition, ~pon any transfer or lease of the 
proPerty during tJ1e tel111 of this graot, the permittee shall.promptJy provide a copy of 
the grantand Its condiUons to the traJ:taferee or lessee, as applicable, of the subject 
property. " 

, 9. 	 ' . thi8 gram8halUermioate on NOvember 17, 201~ 

, ~pon writterl' ~Pllcati~ Of~'pe~ittee made no~~,thari six «() months prior to 
NoVember 16, 2016. the tenn Qf'this grant shaD ~ extended· by thEt Director of 
Planning'for a period not to exceed ten ,(10) years, as p~ovided.herein·,below. The ' 
Director shalf grant f1uch extension unless it finds one of the foUowIng:· (1) that the: . ' 
permlttee has failed to adhere to th~ conditions of approval and such failu(e'h8s not ' 
been timely corrected upon written notice thereof, and' (2) ,that ~ use Is, not In 
compliance ~ all. 'appllcable laws. and regul~. J:f either of the'foregolng 
,ftodlngl$. Is made· by the Director, the' ftxtension mayb~ dented. Subsequent . 
extenSions.may: be ,granted by the, Commission upon written application made no 
less ~an slx (6) month$ prior to the expira1ion of the p~ous extenSion~ '.' 

10. 	 1118 subject property shall be maintained . and operated in full complIance with the 
conditions of tht$ grant and· any law, statute, ordinance, or other regulation 
appUcableto any development or activity on the subj8ctpropeny. FaJlure of the 
.pennJ1:tee,to cease any development or activity not In such full eompHanoe 8h~1 be a 
violation of these conditions. Prior to the use of tf:lls grant. the permltteesh,1f 
~p6sit with the COunty of Los Angeles the· sum of S9OO.qo..Th8$8 manias 'shall be 
placed in a ,performance fund which shall b8 'used exc:tU$iyely,to compensate the 
Department of Regional· Plarinlng for all expenses incurred while Insp8Qting the 
premises to dete~ne the permittee's compliance with the conditions ofapprova.t, 
Including adherence to development in accordance with the site plan on file. The 
fund prOVides ~!Ix em bI"nnlallnspecttons (every other y.~). The inspections , 
'shall be unannounced.' . " 	 , . , 

If additiOll4llnspectlons are required to ensure compliance with 111& conditions of 
this' grant, or ,If'any inspection dIscloses ,1halthe'~subject, prQP8l'fy is being used In 
violation of any ~ndftlon of this grant. the permltte~ shall .~ financ,lally responsible; 
for and shall reimburse ti18 Department of Reglona' Planning 'for all additional 
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~NAL CON,OmeNS 

InSpectl.ons' and for any enforcement efforts necesSary.to bring the subject property . 
, into compliance. The Charge for additionall.nspeetions shall be the amount equal to 
the ~ry cost"at .the 'time of payment. The, current recovery cost 1$ $150.00 per 
inspection.' , 

11. 	 Notice ;s ~rebygiven that any person violating a provi8~n 'of this gr~ is guilty of'a 

'misdemeanor~ Notice is further given that t~e RegIonal Planning COmnlJ..iqn or ~ 

hearing officer may, after conducting a public hearing, revoke or'modify ~his grant, ,it 

the COmmission or hearing officer,finds that these conditions have been- violated or 

'that this grant has been exercised so as to be detrimental to the public health or 

safety or' so as to be a nulsanpe. ' 


,,1.2; 	 All requirements Q(the Zpning Or4lnanee and of the, speelflc'~ning of 'the subject 
property mU$t be ,compIled, 'with' unless sp~lfically modified by th\s'~, ~ $Jet 
forth in 1hese conditions or shown On the approved plans. ' ' 

, ,13. " Thes~bject pr~rty, shall be develop.ad and maintained' in com{l1,lance, With 
requirements: of the Los Al1geles Qounly Department of Health Se~. , Ad~a1E:l , 
water ,and sewag$ dlsposaf facilities shall be provided to the satisfaction' of said . 
department. 

, . 
14.' All,' structures sh~1 complV with .the requirememsof the Division ()f. Building 'and 

Safety of !haLOs,Angeles q~unty Department of Pu~icWorks., " :," " ' , . 

15. 	 All structu~, walls', and fences open to public view sh~ltemain free of extraneous 
markings, drawings. or stgnage. These .shalllncJude ,any of the abOve that ,do, nOt 
directly relate to the use subj~ to this grant C?r that do not provide pertinent 
information abOUt the premlses~ The·onlY exceptions shall be seasonal decorations 
or signage provided under the auspitlf)S of a civic or non"'f)roflt organization. In the 
event, any such extraneous markings occur, the .pemiittee ,shall remove or cover' 
said markings, drawings", or signage 'wHttln 24 hourS of'such ocamence., W$ither 
Permitting. Paint utilized in covering such markings shall De of a co~r1hat matches, 
as clo~ely as possible. the color Of the adjf1cent surfaces. ' ' , 

. , 

16., 	 The property shall be maintained In sUbstantial conformance.with' the 
' 

approved ' 
exhibit ~A·. In the event that subsequent revised plans are ,subri'titted, the permltfee , 
,shallsubmlt'1hree (3) copies of the proposed' plans to the Director for review and 

.' 	 approval. All revised plans must be a~panied byt~ written:8uthoriiation Of the , 
property owner. ',' 

1'7. 	 The permittee ,hall mai~tain aU landscaping In,a'neat~ ci&anand health~"aonditi()n, 
including, proper pruning, weeding, removal of litter, fertilizing and replaCement of 
plants when necessary. Watering facifdies shall consist of a permanent water· 
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efficient IrrigaUon. system. SU.cth as "bUbblers" or drip irrigatiOn, for Irrigation of, all 
landscaped areas except Where·the.re is tuff or O1her'ground cover• 

. 18. 	 'fhe p9nnl1t~e shall maintain all areas'of the subject p~perty free of Jitter and 
debris. 

·19. .	The operati~ arid~~enance of the ~reationaJ club shall futther be subject to 
all oUhe following restrictions: " . 	 . ' 

a. 	The P.8rmittee shall provide and continuously maintain Ii minimum of 79 on.. 
site automobile parking spaces.; At least, one (1) of ~ spaces shall, be 
van-a~ible and reserved for perSons wi1h disabilities.' The reqiJIred 
parking spaces Btlall be continuously available for vehicular parking only and . 
·shall'not be u~,fOr storage. vehicu~ repair, or ~ny ~erun..uthorized use;. 

~. 	 off-site parkin~ for club members and guests Is expressly prohlbtted; . 

c. 	 During special events the permittee shaH direct' visitmsto· on-site-parking 'and 
ensure u.t. driveways are not obs1ructed;' '. . . : 	 ' . 

. d. ' Any parking tot and ~r exterior Iigh1ing shalt be hooded and dl~tedaway 
from neighboring resitlences to :prevent dlrect'illumlnatlon arid glare, ~. the 
,exception of sensor-activated secu~ 'lightS andfor low level lighting along all. 

. peciestrl&n walkways leading to and from the parking lot; 

e. 'Storage of Recreational Vehicles and ~ on the subject property shall be 
,for member:s of the Club only'and not open to·th~ public;:: . 

. f. The trapshooting hours of ,operation shall 2I:.WL be 'Sundays, 'from 9 a.:m. to 4. 
p.m., Year round. and additionally Wednesdays from ~. p.m. to sunset during 

. dayligtu savings time; and . 

g. 	 The permittee·shaft post a sign at the front gate with the caretaker's and the 
Department of Regional Planning's Zoning Enforcement Section telephO.ne 
number. 

RJF: MBM 
1211/2004 
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AGREEMENT OF LEASE 

AGREEMENT AND LEASE made this2ti' day of~'f:I., 1996, by and between 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT (District) and PALMDALE FIN AND FEATHER 

CLUB, INC. (Club). : 


. This Agreement and LeaSe is made' with reference t~ the following: . 

For many years, Club ;has operated a club for fishing, bunting and other . 
recreational purposes under a lease with District covering portions of the ~ real : 
property owned by District. .'.' 1.~: 

District is the OWIler, of Palmdale Cake (Lake) and certain land contiguous to and i 

sUrrounding the lake. located on: the Southerly side of Avenue·S and extending generally 
from the Antelope Valley Freeway on the .West to Sierra Highway on the East, all in 
Pahndale, Los Angeles County,: California.' The real property owned by the District is 
shown on Exhibit "A" and is bounded by wire fencing. Real property excluded from the 
lease to the Club is also shown on Exhibit "Alt. References on the ex:hib.it cOITespond to 
the following areas: 

1) 	 Palmdale Dam; 

2) 	 Areas Northerly and Easterly of the Dam, the area on the South side of the 
Lake, East of the Palmdale' Ditch for hunting and fishing. The following 
uses are allowed at locations identified on Exln'bit "A": 

. a. . 	 .Archery praCtice' . 
b. 	 Dog training . 
c. Lake ac~ss' 

d.' . Use of perimeter road 

e. 	 one trip per day across the Dam by the Caretaker; 

' .. 

. 3) 	 The area adjacentt~ the outlet works; 

4) 	 The area adjacent; to the· 2.6-milllon gallon reservoir arid the Water 
Treatment Plant, and all of the area·North or West of the Water Treatment 
Plant site; and, 

. S) 	 The area adjacent to the hydroelectric station and energy dissipater facilities 
Southwest of the Lake. 

, The real property, less the above exclusions, is referred to in this Agreement as the 
"premises".' . 

" 1 
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The present lease between District and Club expires on December 3t.<1996. Club 

wishes to continue leasing the premises, and District is willing to execute such a lease 

subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 

< 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1) TERM I 
District hereby leases to' Club, and Club hereby leases from District, the above­

I' 

Idescribed premises for a period: of ten years beginning January 1. t997, and terminating 

December 31, 2006. District also grants to Club the e."{clusive right to renew this lease on 

itstennination for two additional five-year tenns. If Club elects to renew the lease, it
< 

shall notify District in writing of that election at least 90 days prior to the tennination of . 

th~ lease period. District reserves the right to evaluate and adjust the rental amount as 

necessary prior to accepting each five-year option. 


<, 

: ' The lease peribd.described in this section is subject to termination as pr~vided in 
the remaining secti~ns' of the Agreement Nothing in this Agreement constitutes a joint 

. ventUre or partne~hip between District and Club regarding the Club's operati~ns. 

2) USE 
< During the lease' period, Club shall haVe the exclusive right of fishing, hunting. 


sport shooting, picnics, and Club meetings on the Palmdale Lake and on the prelIlises. , 

The parties understand and agree that ~s lease is not a lease of any present or future 

mechanical facilities 'or of any Water but is a lease only of the right to conduct approved 

activities on the premises, SUbject to the. provisions of this lease. The parties also 

understand and agree that such aCtivities are subject to applicable local, State and Fe'deral 

laws and regulations for the premises. I:t: at any time, both hunting and fishing on, the . 

premises shall be pro,hibited by any government law, order or regulation, then this lease ' 

and any renewal of it shall be .tenninated .. 


, < District does not guSrantee the presence of water on the premises to accommodatC', . 
approved activities. Club agrees; that District may, without prior notice, withdraw water 
from' Palmdale Lake from time; to time for any District use, and may, if necessary;" 
withdraw all the water on the premises. . ' 

. . Club agrees to 'provide : security for the premises including posting against< 

trespassing. The signs shall be of such size and frequency as will be adequate to give full 
notice to all persons thatthe prenlises are restricted. Club shall assume the responsibility 
for prosecution of members an~ non-members < for violations whenever violators are 
apprehended. . ' : : < , • < 

< Club agrees to prevent entry by its members. officers, or employees into the 
excluded areas of the' property listed in the preamble to this agreement for any purpose 

2 
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oth~r ~an proViding security forthe'premises or maintenance activities r~~sted by the ' 
District. ' 

Club agrees to maintain the, premises using' volunteers, community service 
.workers, or other forces as required. Maintenance activities shall include facilities 
constructed"and,operated by Club, reasonable trimming of trees and other landscaping, 
,trash and litt~r collection, an~ clearing vegetation from the road mid-height on the East 
side, of the Dam to and inc1U 'g the West face on the Dam. Club shall be responsibl,e for 
the disposal of all waste mate .at resulting from maintenance activities. " ' 

, . ,.,. , ,', 'f 
: 3) LIMITATIONSION USE AND TERM ' ,,: , 
: Club understands and ~cknowledges that the real property comprismg the premises 

is owned and held by'Distri~ in trust for the people within the Palmdale Water District, 
and that the public use'of District property is paramount to any other usej' Accordingly, 
Club agrees that the u~e of and weration on the premises by Club are at all times subject ' 
to the prior and paramount use of District for any lawful District purpose. Further. the 
terms of this lease are subje~t to the superior riSht of District to re-negotiate, the 
conditions of the lea~e as required by District operations upon six months' written notice 
by District. Club agrees that failure to reach agreement on any change proposed by 
District will result in ~nnination ofthe Agreement. 

, 4) FACILITIES,," 
Existing facilities" on the premises are shown on ExhIbit "B" attached to the 


Agr~ement. 'The parties agree to handle'relocation and removal, new construction, and " 

ownership upon tennination according to the following paragraphs. 
 t::'" , 

, ~ , 

, : a) R~location and RemoYa1: IfDistrict at any time ha$ n~~j~tific~tioD:for
exercising its right to use the premises for any lawful District pmposeand' use shall . , 
require the relocation or complete removal of Club's facilities, District shall so notifY' , ' 
Club in writing. Club shall have six months from the date of the notice to complete the : 
relocation or removal Any relocation or removal not completed within the six months' : . 
shall be done by the District at the expense of the Club.' Arrangement for payment of the 
subject costs will be submitted to and approved by the District Board ofDirectors. 1 

, I 

: b) New Constmction;' ~lub agrees duit it will not lnake major alterations, or 
, improvements on the premises; without first securing written authorization from the 
District. Major alterations or improvements shall be defined as any dock, pier, shelter, 
etc. constructed,in the Lake' and;the construction of any building, fenee, 'wal~ road~y, , 
etc. on the remaining propertY.. Club shall remove' any unauthorized alterations or 
improvements constructed by Club upon notice from District within the time frame stated 
in Paragraph 4.a and shall hold D,istrict hannless from such costs. " , 

, , 

. Any authorized alterations or improvements made by Club shall be at its cost. 
Club agrees to insure. compliance ofany contractors used to construct authorized projects 

3 



: , 

:.1 

with District ~surance requirements, indemnification statements and lien protection for 
the premises" ," i', " :,: " :' 

, j, ' 	 : 

'c) Terlniitation:of Aareement: Oistrict will detennine the need an~ Usefulness of, : 
any alterations or improvements in place when tennination procedures are' executed under ' 
the Agree~erit' Club shall;be notified of the detennination and shall ~e' respon#ble for 
the cost of :' removing those: alterations or improvements so directed, by. District 
Remaining' alterations or. improvements constructed on the premises, shalJ become 
District's property at no cost to District. : " 

S) INSuRANCE, , 	 ' ". 
Ciub agrees at, aU times to maintain a policy of insurance namlng Disttict as " 

additional insured against all liability 'for 'injury to person or damage ,to propertY on the 
premises or resulting from Club's use of the premises, A $2,000,000 liability insurance 
coverage is required by District. The District reserves the right to set the pmitS for such I 

policy and to change the limits as detennined necessaty with six months notice. Failure 
,of Club to provide and maintain the r~quired coverage shall constitUte a brea~h of the 
Agr~ement an~ grounds for termination of the Agreeinent 	 ' 

Proof'of insurance c'o~rage shall be submitted to District Withi'n 30 ~ys of I 

obtaining or renewing it and shall consist of a Certificate ofInsurance with the required 
provi:sions sh~ 	 ': ' 

; 	6) INDEMNIFICATION' ': , 
Club shall indemnify 'and hold hlumless the District and its officers,' officials, i 

employees, ,and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses,' and eXpenses 
including attorney'rees ansing out of the perfonnance of the occupation described herein; 
caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Club, anyone directly , • 
or indirectly employed by the Club or anyone for whose acts the Club may beJiable,' ; 
except where caus~d by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of i 
the District.' ,.' 	 , , . , : 

7) RENT.. , ' 	 " 
, The rental for the premises shall be $3,000 per calendar year or five percen~ of the" 

gross' receipts: of Club as, per· Club's annual audit for the previous c,alendai year1 • 

whichever is greater, pa~le on February 1S of each year in advance. Said amount must' . ,. 
be submitted to Di~trict Wi~ 30 days. If, through no fault of Club, hunting and fishing 
become impossible on the premises for ~y reason, then Club shall pay rental of three '. 
percent f:'Jf the gross receipts during the period hunting and fishing are not possible. The ~ . i 

regular rental s~all resume when hunting and fishing are restored. ' 
. ',' . 	 " 

:' : 

, 8), : REPORTS AND AUDITS " 
Club shall prepare an annual report covering each year's activities and receipts; , 

Information ,in 'the report'shall includc but not be,limited to, membership infonnationr:'t 

'4 
!' " 



..•." .. 

, . 1 

!'. i 
11 ~ I 
Ir! j 	 • • 

,~. : ., . i 
Idues, fines, ~e' iaJ. incomet re~l income and various types of expenditure~., The report : 
1 

shall.be:.audit , by a cer:tifiedp;u?lic accoUntant and/or by Dis~~s auditors~ at tf!~ option . 1 

of DIStrict. G st: of Club's audIt shall be bome by Club. DIstrict shall be furnished a ' 
,copy of the :' ~l rePort and audit as soon as they are prepared. If the audit iJidicates a 
correction to. ~ount of rent paid is needed, Club shall report this to District along 

I 

with a p~eti or request for payment as nccessazy. ; ."! , 
1t'i ' , 	 . : . 

9) ~1Y1AWS OFT~CLUB .. : ' " : .,,' 
Club ~~e~ to, ~ond~ct: Its operations under a ,set of Bylaws that; are subject to 

District~s revi.C1W ian~, approv~ prior !O revision.. Appro~. Bylaws s~al1;;become 
Appendix A of.lli~ Agreement and contam the folloWIng as a Jlll!llIllUJn: :' . 

, Jj::! !. ,\';: '. : 	 . I ..: " 

a) Ad~ 'te policing regulations" over the conduct upon the 'premise.s of it'$ , 
memb :' ~ ensure. compliance with the Bylaws; . ' :' .:' , " • 
b) Res onsibility for the prosecution of members for any violatioIJ of:State or ' 

• 1 	 . • 

,County ~8W'S or regulations relating to the premises; 	 , :,' : 
,eX Adi'luon..arid enforcement of rul~st regulations and bylaw~. for tll.o 0l'erationS 

of the Cl ,by an elected Board ofD.trectors; , ". : ,., . 

d) Am.· ber m1,1St own ,real property withhl and reside witbhl the bOundaries of 

the DiS~'ct 'to b~ ~ligible as an officer in Club; . : :" . ' ' 
·e):, Lac, aiemoerShip.iri:Club shall be limited to owners of real propertY witbhl
the boun aries of the Palmdale Water District; , ','i: : 
f). Only rical members may Vote, and each local member shall: be en,rltled to one 
vote and ~Y not vote by proxy; : : ::. ;'., . 
g), Ass" iate memberships may be gmuted to. persons to WhOlD 'the· Board of. " 
Diretto : : of ~lub may see fit to extend such membership, upon paym~nt ofproper, 
dues and'initiation fees.. Associate m~bers shall enjoy all the privileges 'of 19c~ 
meniber~ except th~~ they may not vote or hold office; ,: ' . ..1 .' , : , 
h)' The', rivileges of.Club, except that of holding office and votblg, shall be: 

.' ',' 	 I

'. 	 extended to the immediate ,family of each member onlssociate member. The term ' 
"iinme~t~ family" means spouse and'dependentminor children; ;: i ' .... . ,. ." 
i) Due~' setting and increases by Club shall be determined: by;its Board of' 
Directo1U·.; • ' . ,i . a' •. \ ' 	 . 
.: 3i ': . ' , , 	 ' ! 

10)' " T.' S:';'. ,: ' 

. " Club in :lts use of the premises agrees to comply with such law, .ordinances,'·or 


I, , 	 ,'. ' , 

regulations of ~. g~lVemmenta1 bodies or agencies which District is obligated, to observe.:' 	 I 
I. ClubshallaIsp ,pay before delinquency any taxes, or assessments le:ri,ed by any: ' 

governmental ~ency on' Club's leasehold interest or upon any other interest of Club in' 'I 
Ithe premises ~4 ,~e improvements on the premises made by Club. Receipt ~of payment . 

shall be submitt<=d to District. , : 	 . .' '. 
~ ; ( 	 ,,: I 
T ' , 	

, " 

:p, " 	
, .! u: . . 	 . , 1 

,,;' . 
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11) CARETAKER AS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
" 

, 
Du.ririg, the period of this ilease and any renewal, Club shall' employ a' caretaker ' 

who shall reside' on the 'premise,s ;at all times: The caretaker sball be the employee of the 
Club. and Club shall assume all'liability for, and hold District harmless from, any and alI 

,claims. including,: but not limited to, wages, workers compensation claims, ,disability 
benefits, unemployment benefits or claims for bodily injury or damage to property, ,which 
may ~se by virtue of the,employment or presence ofthe caretaker on the premises. 

, 12)' DEFAULT 
'In the ev-ent of default in'the payment of rent, maintenance of insurance coverage, 

or of other covenants of this lease byClub, District shall serve written notice on, Club of 
such default. . 'If the default is: not cured within ninety days after the receipt of such 
notice, .District may declare this lease tenninated or evaluate conditions. leading to the 
default. " 

13), ASSIGNMENT 	 :! 
·l 

This lease may not be assigned, and the premises may not be' sublet, without the 
written consent of District. Any assignment or sublease without the written consent of 
District shall be void. 

SIGNED the date and year first above written. 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT· PALMDALE FIN & 

By: ~ I 'e.Ct![ili;;J::r
Presi ent ants Board ofDirectors 

.', 

.'	, 
i 
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 PALMDALE FIN AND FEAtHER CLUs t INC. 

,:. \ , BYLAWS , 
!', \ AU c.hanges as of February (Ii, 1989 incot'Por.a:t;,d 

I !': l · \. ARTICLE I I 
: [I !.. (, ! CORPORATBD POWERS ,\', , 

, ~~ eo~~pOra~ed!powe~8 o.f'thts dub shall be ve~l:ed itt:,. u~~rJ ~f"ntne' (9) 
melltber;. ~ five (S>' o( whom ,ball ba the of fletU's of the club. Bach: Dinctot' 
.halllb~ a member 1~ good standing holding membership. certificate.: in. the c.lub, 
and five (S)lDirectoT8 sball·constitute a quorum tor the transactibD of business. 

l "\ :. I 

, \ ;I' 
, I \ ARTtCLB II 
:' \1 'I; SEAL 
I ' I, t; ,I Tlt1:s corporation shall have a nal consisting of 

drculllferenee. thei. words "PALMJ)AL'Z 'IN &. FEATJI'ZR CLUB,.I 
! 

Ca 11 forn~4 ." , 

I ; 'I 
',\ ARTICLE III 
, , I ,; "; " "OFFICE 

. ~ 

. \ 
! 
1 
I 

a circle bavingon its 
incorporated \~y 24,1945 

1 
1< 

II .. ' ' 
, . 

~(~ eor-PoraJt~ ahall mdntain its p,rlncf.ple offtcl!' in tbe cob~y ;of 
LOB An8e~e•• atat~ o('~aliforn18, but may h4ve offie•• and t~8nsaetl business 
at: 8ue~ :t)tber; plac,es fAs the Board of ~ireetot'8 may from tl~ to ,timf! appOint.

; :,'1 ' :, " ' . ; 
, : : ARtICl..'B IV , . 
: ' ! ~. , BOARD OF, DIRECTORS I, ': . 
i)', ," i . 

Si-~Uon 1. 'The; Board of Dh'eeton shall consi!1t of nine (9) tile.mbe1'8, 
five (S):of vhom ahatl b_ the:officet'B of the club. and any flv.: (S} shall 

, l ' , . 
con8t:l.t~t~ aqIlOl'u'm' a~ any Directors meeting. : 1 . . 

Se~tion 2.., The !Director.s shall be elected at. tneannual l1lee.ting~ ,They 
ShIll, aerye fo'r. two' (.2) Years t snd until theit' successors are e1eete'd. 'No . , 
members 'e~ected 'to ~I:he Board 'ol tHt'Cletors sha11 seNe as a membe1: oath.e." BOllt'd 
far more 'than two (2) :eonsec:utive terms,ot' a total of four (4) year" oonlfee­
utively. :~hef.r: tUM of, office wall begin immediately after election;. There 
shall b~ ,~lte1:'nate :elections of directors. four (4) one year. and fiYe (5) 
elected ,t.ne next year.~ Vacancies :I..n. the Board o( Directors Irhall be ~Uled 
by t~e Di~eetor8' renuditing in offiee, though 'le88 than a quorum, and Isuch mem'" 
bera 80 "ppointe4 s".U hold office until hh sueeeuor h elected. i ' 

Seeti~n 3". : (~ lI~all be the duty of the Board of Director. '~o p"~'on 
thequaU.f~e&Uon8 of dl applicants' for membership, or anociate meMbershipt 
to tra~.act all business and and handle all funds aftne club; .lind t~ establish 

: I." i 
any rule.· .nd resulatl.ona necessary for tbe pt:o~r c.onduct of the c:lu.b.' , 

Sec~~?n4tl " ~e ~ard of lllt:e.c:ton shall have the power to'9u8~nd' o'r 
expel anY,lDelllbel' OJ: i:4s8ociate mem.ber guilty of Violating club rulu, or goUty 
of condu~t \vhiCh :tb~ BO,al'd may' consider detrimental to the best inttn"~.t, of 
the clubt, ,;. '. F j, 

':, 'I "l . 1\,1 ' . ' ~ 

~ • I ~ " i 
" I 'i ' '[ 
~ " I ~ 
, : ,\' 
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i '. 'ART[CLEV 	 T~ Ii 
1 I'::i OFFICERS 	 II I! ;. :i: 

The Off~C~~8 of: t~is ~lub shall be President, Vice-Presidertt, iR~~~.~~iing 
Secretar1"Hetllbetship Secre,tary and 'I're8sut'er,wo'sball be ele~ted ~nl\ually 
by a .majority v~teof th~ B.oard at A' ,meeting called for, the purpos~ qt :~leet .. 

.	lng off:teet'S.: .( Said, officers 8ba11 be elected froh! the membership: qf !the Board 
of ;Dir~ctol"S. ;. , \ .. ;. \ i·~ , 

, . 	 i . .A:~~;~~E:; 	 : I : " I"l'~' 
. 	 .' I ' ! i I ) 

The President :.hall: preside over all the meetings of the .c~ub .an.~ Direct: ­
01'8., and sn.ll :af.sn alr the: certificates of membershipl also alf eO,nt:r,aets 

, and otber instruments of 'w~itln81 which shall have first been'a,pt'o~e:d; ~y the 
. Board Of D1re~tot:a!l and shaJl draw cheeks from the treaaury whet;! th;ererr di ­
rected by the Board, of Directors. .• 	 Ii" ' . 

, :' 1;\ 
ARTICLE VII I.: 

VICE; PRESIDENT I ,~ . 
.!.!' . . .'I '; . 
theIn ene of, the: absence of the President or his inability to ,act', 
I '.! : ~Vice President ,sha11 act' as President, 
! ".I.

IARTICLE VItI 
! 

I ,SECRETARIES AND TREASURER 
! . ~ 

Sel;Uon 1,: The Recording Secretary shnll keep a full and c,ompie~~i:record 

~ . 

:1 • 

ot the' proe".cHng_ of the Board of D1.rector'1I and of the llleeUng f'f en, 'lI1em,bera; 
.hall keep t1l41 !Jed ie! the Club and sUh the sallie to Bueh paper,' liI~d'l ~n~tru­
mants as may be· required in the regular eourse of business; shaH

l
mak~ 'service 

of suehi notices: as may be neeesBary and proper; shall $upervise ~nd;c6ntrol
• 	 I • t • I I . • 

the keG.,ins: of the ~ooks and records of the club, shall dhcharg~ 8~cb',o,ther 


duties' as perta~n t~ the office or as .prescribed by the Board ofl Dit:e4~ors. 

: Section 2.; Tbe Memberehip Secretary shall make and IIIsintd.,. a 'c:crmP"lete 


'recoX'd of ALL active members, shall collect membership dues at1~ fees, :shall 

be responsible for such dues a:nd fees 'until turned ovet" to the tt-ea~ui.e:l:;'t 'and 

shall eount~x:slgn' each J1te~bershlp certificate.' . .! L ItJ 


SecU.on 31., The. Treasurer ahall redve and safely keep all fundI ;0(1 the' 
club and de~ollit' the, same in. such banks ot' bantt as may be desi~n,ted: b:y; ~he 
.Board of Director8. : Such funds shall be paid out only on the ch~eki( of..the 
club, signed by.the President and' countersigned by the Trea8urer~ Als~!.:: the 
Tt'eseurer shall :suP7rvlae and control the keeping of the accounti' o~ t~~)~lub, 
and shall be t'espon8~b1e, for· each quarterly audit of the account IbOOkB~ \. ) 

· . . ARTICLE IX . \ ' ; I·n 
MEETINGS. OF THE CLUB . \. ; LI ; 

· Se.etlon~ I" : The: club shall hold its annual meeting for the' ~l~cti~~ ;:of 

Directors and Officers and' other business on the first Monday of Dee~~be~ of 

each, year, if not a legal ho~ldaYI and if a legal holiday, then'on the!next 

8ecu~ar day toll~win~ at 7.130 O'Clock P.M. :: il i::; ... 


·Section! 2t ': Spechl meet:ings of tbe members and the Board o~ Di~ec.~or8 

may be cal1e~ at:eny;tlme by ,the President or at tbe written requ~stio~:five 

(S) membera.! ,,' 	 :. .: 	Ii.;' 

I ';i
I .. , 
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ART~C~ IX·'lt~nr' " ,;: i:, ( 

Bo.~d~!:~!!-t+=~:::.~::t::: ::t::.~:: ::.t:.:.~~.:: ::'lr::~d:jl'::h
loeai'/iember oft-the club five (5) daye be.fo-re lIu~h meetings, ';\ ,,':j.',' 

Section 5. f Notices of all meetings of tb~ Directors sbsll:~. m411,d to 
~ach meMber'of the Boa.rd of Dlrecto1:s<at teaat ten (10) day. 'be,fqrca su~" lIleat- ; 

ing~ "(" ;' l f, " , ' t! ,:\:.' 

•!. .• I [ .. :1'~lFtcA~n~~~!RSHIP . .lif 
: C,.rtU:lcue: of Membeubip shall be of such fOTlQ and device ,a,. the ~oard,

! of Di.~'¢ton -7:; dect and each CerHficate tJhdl be dgned by' th~ Pruldent 
and 'counter.iai";,, by the Membership' Secl'retary,. Each, Certificate ,.hdl e~pre8lS'I on it_I face it., ~umbart elate' o,! laauane:e and the penon to whom ),~ ill 1a:!lu~d. 
B.ch,~~tifieatel _hall bear, the c~rpoiate SBAL of the club, and .~'ll contai.n,

! a .tatement pdnted 1n cle,4r type that the, corporation I.e not on~! for:: prpftt 
and th~t th~ Membersbip ee:rtificateh :'I'IonJtr<llnsferable an~ tlon-:r~signa~~le. 
Mell\ber~hip ahaUl'be by calendar year, :, ii, \: 

, ,'No. Cert1#c!te of, Membership may ~e issued to any member' or: ~s,()cb., e 
member :w!thoUI: id~e. paymenti of regular specified dues:" and tfub8~q~~nt",app'~ov81 

or t"" ......'·rr'·.,.... ARTICtll xx . ., : n·:·1; 
l i, MEMBERSHIP 1'\ 1: 
, ! " W 

Lo~a1 Membenhip in th1a club ,&811 be 1:Lmited to oWl\eu of :~ea1 pr~p­
erty '~l~hln 'the.] ~oundariee :of' the Palmdille Water District, : .1 '! " ,!h" 

lot be el1g1b.le to be,an officer'in thi' club. one 'lltU8t own r:e'alpro~erty 
,within "nd re,si~e;, within the boundaries, of the Palmdale Water Di~~rict. l . 

Only Local Im,embers My vote and each toe~l member. shall be: e;ntitled ",to ' 
one, (1) IVQte anti IIISY not vote, by prokY.; , I 'I' , ll:. ' 

\ " I ,

~$61oe!ate m,embershlpe l118y be granted to penons to wbom I:he Board ofl' O{-' , 
rectors :lIIa1 ~~e it~t to extcmd ',such lIIemb~rship, upon, payment of p~~perdu~. ': 
and ,initiation (a,s. Aaaoc:f.ate memben shan enjoy all. the privU~ge. ot;1 Lo­
cal mem~ers, ex<::ept that they ma,y not vote nor bold office. ,I,,::, ih 

' The; pdvUeg~8 of the club, except rn;>lding office and voUng,,! shall .~e' 

';t1lllllediafle family'f me-an, ,huaba:nd, wife and dependent ..{nor chUdr~n" It JIJ~'­

lor memb~r aha11; be II dependen't child fiolD the age 0 f 18 to, 21 'Yeats of a"j paid 

adult :lIIember in good atand1nR.: ,: 1, ';I 


. I:, ; I' " 'j J' , ',jl\:ARTICLE XII 
l' A: I,'; , ' 

, " " " ' INI'U 710N ~s AND DUES l : ;' II: 
Sec~ion It ,'~ues and Inletion Fees shall be eet at the annual eleetiQn. 

Any motion tQ '(\n8n'ge the, dues must be apP't"oved by a majority of memben pfes­
ent. A~y \change ~n; DUES an~ INIATrOll nE~ is. to bee~me d fect 1ve: fl~~ the: ~~xt 
calendar ,year. l' .' " Ii" ' 

... ~ "j 1: " , l:\' " 1': 
, 1 ' .I i. ' I:: 

i Iii 11I 
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ARTICLE XIII j I.: 
5USPENS'tON AND gXPULSION OF KEMSttllS ' \', 

• I' I\. 
I ' I"

The Board ot Directors shall have pow~r to 8uf~end oT'expel an~ member 
or a••ociate member guilty, of violating rulea, or ~uilty of conduct '~~ich th~ 
Eoard' of Df.recton lIISy consider detdmenta 1 to the'! best interest of ..the dub.

l . , "!'I 

! ' ARTICLE XIV! ~: 
i VACANCIES ·1 ',.. r~ 

If the 9fflce of President abaH become vacant, the V1ce:PrfUlide!l~ shall 
iflll'lledhtely lIuc.ee«d: to that office. 'The Vice-,Pruideney ah.n tben bel fUled 
by' an electioq cat led for that purpose. If the of~lce of Reeordins ~e~retary. 
Member.hip Secretary or Trea&UTer sball become vaca~t, the Board Of ~lrector8 
'haU bavetM powr to'appoint a metnber to fill the vacant office un~il lIIuch 
t1~ as 'the elub \1181 meet to elect a neW off1cer~ ~aeancie8 In the ~?ard of 
Directors .halt be filled by the Boar4 of Dlrec:torlJ~ tn accordancll wf.t,~\the: 
provisions of Art1eleIV. Section 2, and Article XI of t'J:teae Bylaws. un~f.l' , 
an et..etlan can be held by the membership at the, next meeting' (if' the '~lU:b fol~ 
lowing the occurance of the V'acancy. , "I,. :'" Ii '\ 

, ' . r ' l! Ij ARTICLE XV in!' 

I 


AKIUlDMENTS I '1 ' 

! I:: t 

i'l
! Amend.uta to the lIylaW8 may be proposed at regula'!' meeting_ of tbe IDem'" 

benh1p 6n1y. ' , I ' .r: \' 
. Any moti,on to change theae Bylaws must be laid :0",er 'to tbe ••con~; 're,Ular ,
meeUng for final vote.! '.' I, 'ji . 

To become effective. sueh motion to change the Bylaws must be sent by , 
ItIllU to all Local.members, and must receive. a majority vote of: the ballots 

I 

returned.' , i" 


Il,: . 
" Ii' 

, ARTICLE XVI I: : 
RleDA'UON.i FISH1NG ANI) HUNTING REGULATIONS' ;'. ,1 • 

, i L;'I ' , ' I I' , 

The Board of Direetors shall bave the power to heue and enforce re'gula"I tiona rebUnl to ft'shing and bUDtin~••nd all such iegulatlon. 'a hailed byj t:be Board :of Dlreetot'8 IIhdf have tbe 118me force and 'effect at .a Bylawto:f, the." 
CorpOration. " " I ,,, \' 
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A NON·PROFIT CORPORATION o ORIGINAL 
S- I - ;J.,o I 2,. 

These guidelines, procedures and materials are an outline of the new construction or 


replacement constructions of old and condemned walkways and docks. 


These guidelines are a result of the accumulation of existing docks that have endured the harsh 


environmental elements and daily use from past years" 


These new structures will be handicap accessible and provide Ell safe platform inwhich all 


members may use. 


These guidelines have been approved by the Palmdale Fin and Feather Club .Board of Directors 

Perry Duggan-______--:..-I­__...:......~_:::::..~~+..:...,....__--

Chris Gravois - --!>.o~~~~e:=__...;.r;~~-tr..,J...I..--

Doug Wilson - ---+~""""".-=.--ft-"_1I-----'=-.:=-------

Eddie Bastedo ­
----'=-~--~~~~----------

Bob Zinner­
--~~---+-+--7-----~-----=~ 

Peter Salgado - """""'-:...;...<:.......,~..."..r..::.-::::...:.!::..--fl.-'-J~f-'fJ---

larrypeters~P~ 



UUL;I\ t-'LA I I-UHM 
20ft x 15ft 

SUPER STRUCTURE [] ORIGINALDOUBLE 

. ZERO FORCE BRACE 

1-4 2x3x2-1/2 

ANGLE IRON SUPPORT TASS 

WELD ALL 

1-8 2x2 ANGLE IRON 

>-, 30 INCHES 

ALL SUPPORT PIPE TO LAKE BASE 
SCH 40 GLV PIPE 



Dock Walk Way 

• Free standing (not attached to dock platform. 

• Wheel chair access. 4' OR LARGER 

• iX6 double, edges and center. 

• Walkway top 2XIOXS' finished. 

• Zero force. brace, opposite sides, every 4th walkway support pipe. 

• 	 Hand rail one side only at 40" from top of walkway deck 

STANDARD MINIt.UN WIDTH 4 FEET 

VVALK VVAY VVIDTH 

8 FEET 

.. 

FLAT 2x6 
ON TOP OF 

DOUBLE 2x6 

~ 

http:MINIt.UN


OUTER TOP RAIL AND DECK 

I 

I 


I
[] ORIGINAL 
I 


I: 
3-8 GAP AT EACH 2x10 DECK PLATE 

.. 

2X2 ,ANGLE ON TOP 

: I 
I 

I 



PICNIC DECK 
12ft x 20ft 

SUPER STFlUCTURE 

ZERO FORCE BRACE 

1-4 2x3x2-1/2 

ANGLE IRON SUPPORT TABS 

WELD ALL 

1-8 2x2 ANGLE IRON 

BOLTED 

All SUPPORT PIPE TO LAKE BASE 
SCH 40GLV PlPE 

o ORIGINAL 

---~~:---'---~~-



o ORIGINAL 

Zero Force Brace Platform Support Ties 

1 W'..,..1 Ji:I" Pipe 2X2 or 2X3 angle iron 

45 angle or less Bolted or weld, 3/8 bolt 

LAKE 

BASE. 


Platform Cross 


Brace support 


2X angle iron bolted 3/8 
 Weld 6"X6" steel tabs to side of angle iron. 2 

places equal distance apart with screw hole pre­

drilled. 

Attach 2X6 cross supports on top of 2X2 angle 

iron screw to welded tabs • 

..
... 



Dock Platform Option 1 

• 	 . Platform top pipe, weld 2X2 

angle iron on top outside 

wedge. 

• 	 Weld tabs to outer edge of 

angle iron. Screw to cross brace 

lumber. Top Deck 2XIO or 2X12 ~bs 

• 	 Platform: 
Top pipe weld 2"X3I X3/8" 
8 inches long. Bottom weld 2' 

side flush to outside edge, 3" 

outside edge, 3" outside down. 

Bolt to dock pipe support. 

2)( 12. t>1\ 
.DECK 
2XIO 



Dock Platform Option 2 o ORIGINAL 

.• Platform top plate may use 

.. 3x3x114 angle iron bolted 

with 2-3/8 or larger bolts, 

washers and nuts or welded to 

pipe supports. 

3x3x114 

• 	 Top plate tabs welded on 

outside edge of angle iron. 

Screws or lag bolts used to 

secure base plate lumber to 

platform top plate. 

NOTE: When welding angle iron to support 

pipe, no future adjustment is available. 



FASTENERS 

HAND RAIL TOP PIPE 

T - FASTENER 


BOTH SIDES 

IISIMPSON '/ 21/400 
STRONG-TIE PGT 

SCh'40 GALV PIPE
PIPE TO WOOD / . 



Prohibited Materials 

• Treated lumber 

• Plywood 

• Particleboard 

• T-ll-Panel 

• Masonite 

• Dry wall screws 

• Rope, chain or.cable for hand railing 

• Tires 

• No painted docks 

• STYROFOAM FLOATING DOCKS OR WALKWAYS 

• 

• 



Approved Lumber. Hardware and Sealer 

[J ORIGINAL 
Lumber: 

• Douglas Fir #2 or better. 

Sealer: 

• Boiled Linseed Oil or Thompson's Water Seal. 

Screws: 

• Deck mate coated 3" screws. 
• Screw head PSD·2·2 
• Pan Tapping screws # 12 X 2 1/2 A 

Bolts: 

• Galvanized or Zinc plated. 

Washers: 

• Galvanized or Zinc. 
• 3/8 X 1" zinc and 3/8X2" zinc. 

Nuts: 

• Lock Tite . Zinc harden steel # 5 bolts as needed on dock platform. 
• Hardened steel bolts (zinc) #3 as needed for walkway and railing. 

Nails: 

• Bright ring shank common nails 8d • 2 1/2" 6.35cm. To be used with Simpson 
Strong Tie,Teko's Joist Hangers and other steel fasteners as needed. 

Screws: 

• Hex-Washer self drill screws. Zinc pipe - platform support, walkway that passes 
through water to lake base. SCH40 galvanized rninimum. 

*Steel and iron may be used above water level. 



! 

Approved Fasteners 

[] ORIGINAL 
Simpson Strong Tie: 

1. Pipe to wood, P6T ( see diagram) 
2. Pipe to T-Fastener 
3. Teko 
4. Joist Hangers 
5. Steel square 1/4 x 2112 x 21112 center span. 

*Each corner wrap. Steel 13 gauge and all support tabs. 

'C, "'.1:. ...... !,·e:·; 11, .. :,1,';:. ':.1 



o ORIGINAL 

Dock Platform - Super Structure Materials List 

• Pipe: SCH 40 Galvanized 21/4 od 21ft, 13 pes. 

o Pipe: Zero Force Brace. 1 1/2 od, 18 gauge (or better), 21ft, 10 pes. 

• Pipe: SCH 402 1/4 od Galvanized 16ft, 3 pes. 

o Center truss: Square steel tube, 3 x 3, 16ft, 1 pes. 

o Angle iron: 2 x 2 x20' , 12 pes. 

o Angle iron: 1/4 x2x 3 x 10' ,3 pes. 

o Angle iron: 3/8 ~ 2 x 3 x 26' ,4 pes. 

o Steel tabs: 6" x 8" (to be welded at supports) 34 - each platform. 

o Steel Corner Fasteners: 13 gauge 5" x 16" 

• !\Iuts, bolts, washers, deck screws, and hex-washer self tap screws as needed. 



Lumber Take-off 

Walkway: 


Eaeh 5' x 20' section = 240" = 


• 2 x 6 x 12' =6 
• 2 x 6 x 10' =6 
• 2 x 6 x 10' =5 Braee 
• 2 x 10 x 10' = 13 

Platform Deek over Pipe: 

Eaeh 5' x 20' . 

• 2 x 6 x 10' - 40 pes. 
• 2 x 6 x 8' - 20 pes . 
• 2 x 10 x 16' - 26 pes . 
• 2 x 12 x 16' - 3 pes. 
• 2 x 12 x 1 0' - 2 pes. 
• 4x 6 x 8' - 7 pes 

Total: 98 

Pienie deek: 

12' x 20' 

• 2 x 6 x 8' - 20 pes. 
• 2 x 6 x 10' ~ 40 pes. 
• 2 x 10 x 8'- 3 pes. 
• 2 x 10 x 1 6' - 26 pes. 
• 2 x 12 x 12' - 4 pes. 
• 4 x 6 x 8 - 6 pes. 

100 ft. of walkway 12' - 30 
100 ft. of walkway 10' - 30 

100 ft. of walkway 65 pieees/130 pieees 

."' "", ;'<,/.:'~ ,,,;, ,,' ,.~,;~~ ,::.'; i~"!:~:~l,J;:«:':";'~' j("~:lni;~~\;:'):~i;EJ:i 
I 
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POST OFf:ICE BOX 56 • PALMDALE, CA 93590 

PHONE (661) 947..2884 • FAX (661) 947.2832 

ANON-PROFIT CORPORATION 

Palmdale Water District, 

The Fin and Feather Club Board of Directors would like to submit for your 

consideration, the construction ofa new dock to be located on the south side of the lake, 

just east of the PWD building. The exact location is to be between existing Club Dock 

number 29 and private member Dock 30. The new dock will be referred to as Dock 29A. 

All construction is to be completed under the new guidelines submitted to PWD at 

the Fin and Feather board meeting of May 1st, 2012. 

-Palmdale Fin and Feather Club 

~j)~ 
PLi7'..5' / I'".) t;:"'}I.f-r­
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P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: June 6, 2012   June 13, 2012 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Randy Hardenbrook, Equipment Mechanic Spvsr. 
 Mr. Tim Moore, Facilities Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.9 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON DECLARING DISTRICT VEHICLES AS SURPLUS AND 
OFFERING SAME FOR SALE. 

 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 

Staff and the Facilities Committee recommend District vehicles PWD09FACV-19 
and PWD09FACV-10 be declared as surplus property and offered for sale. 
 
Background: 
 

Truck 19 (PWD09FACV-19) is a 1996 Ford F250 with 151,000 miles. The utility 
bed has been removed and re-utilized to up-fit Truck 85.  

 
Truck 10 (PWD09FACV-10) is a 1998 Ford F150 with 110,000 miles. While this 

is not the highest mileage truck, it has an anti-lock brake issue rendering the truck unsafe 
to operate. The issue cannot be resolved due to lack of parts availability.  
 
Strategic Plan Element: 
 

This work is part of Strategic Element 3.0 Infrastructure Management. 
 
Budget: 
 

The impact to the Budget will be positive depending on the sale of the vehicles. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.9



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: June 6, 2012   June 13, 2012 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matthew R. Knudson, Engineering Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.10 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE 
ACTION ON PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR 
MONITORING AND REPORTING OF WIND TURBINE 

 

 
Recommendation: 

Staff and the Facilities Committee recommend the District enter into a 
professional services agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for remote monitoring 
and diagnostics services associated with the wind turbine for a period of 3-years in the 
not-to-exceed amount of $10,000 per year. 

 
Background: 

The attached proposal will cover continuous on-line performance and equipment 
monitoring of the District’s wind turbine located at the Leslie O. Carter Water Treatment 
Plant by Black & Veatch Corporation, which will closely monitor and track the 
performance and efficiency of the wind turbine and inform the District of any anomalies 
that may be detected in order to ensure peak performance and revenue generation of the 
wind turbine. Black & Veatch is waiving all set-up fees associated with this project and 
will also be providing quarterly reports that will include a summary of wind speeds, 
power expected, power generated, operational availability and the offset billing for 
Southern California Edison bills. 
 
Strategic Plan Element: 

This work is part of Strategic Goal 3.0 – Infrastructure Management 
 
Budget: 

The approved 2012 Budget has $23,274 available for contracted services, and if 
the Board accepts this proposal, the agreement will take effect July 1, 2012, and $5,000 
will be paid out under the 2012 Budget. 
 
Supporting Documents: 

 Proposal submitted by Black and Veatch Corporation – Remote Monitoring & 
Diagnostics Services 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.10
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1.0 Summary 
Long-term and sustained excellence in wind turbine performance and availability improvement requires an 
investment in people, processes, and tools. Through the unique PowerPlantMD solution, Palmdale Water 
District can leverage Black & Veatch's PowerPlantMD software platform and Kansas City based Monitoring 
& Diagnostics Center staff to bring best-in-c1ass monitoring and diagnostic process management as a 
complement to your plant operations and maintenance str('ltegies. This proposal provides a basic 
understanding of all aspects of the PowerPlantMD solution with specific scope and pricing for software and 
services requested by Palmdale Water District. . 

1.1 Black & Veatch 
Black & Veatch is a single-source supplier for consulting, engineering, procurement, and construction 
services around the globe. The employee-owned company has more than 8,500 professionals located in 
over 90 offices worldwide. The core competencies of managing projects and application ofkey 
technologies allows Black & Veatch to deliver services that help its clients create value for their 
stakeholders. Within our Consulting Engineering Services j Renewable Service (CESjRS) business we 
provide industry leading asset management services that focus performance optimization, operations, and 
maintenance and outage services for our clients operating in regulated and competitive environments. 

1.2 PowerPlantMD Platform 
The PowerPlantMD Platform is an integrated software suite providing data transparency between plant 
planning processes, measured operations data, and maintenance activities. The software platform is built 
generically such that existing planning tools (spreadsheets, databases), process data historians, and 
performance monitoring tools can be integrated. The platform integration capabilities extend across asset 
types to include renewable generation, fosiJ generation, and water treatment facilities enabling the client to 
monitor all assets in a single location. While all existing client tools and processes are integrated, 
PowerPlantMD can provide any missing functionality such that regardless of the current level of 
sophistication. See APPENDIX A for more information on the platform software capabilities. 

1.3 PowerPlantMD Monitoring & Diagnostics (M&D) Center 
The Black & Veatch PowerPlantMD Center was founded in 2001 as a means for helping our clients take 
tangible steps toward achieving their ever more demanding plant operations and maintenance goals. The 
Center is designed to leverage Black & Veatch's industry leading power engineering consulting capabilities, 
20+ years of performance monitoring expertise, and the industry defining PowerPlantMD Platform 
software. Black & Veatch's PowerP}antMD Center process has been applied to 99 units representing over 
28,000 MW of power generation capacity. Each of our clients is available as a positive reference. Black & 
Veatch has the scale of resources and flexibility to make any outsourced monitoring program a success! 

The PowerPlantMD Center is process centric, not tools centric. Some plant assets operate at a high enough 
capacity factor to justify the implementation of advanced optimization tools. For other plant assets it may· 
be difficult to cost justify any performance analytic tools beyond the plant historian. All operating plants, 
however, can benefit financially from a proactive Monitoring & Diagnostics program. Through 
PowerPlantMD, Black & Veatch excels at helping our clients make more effective use of the myriad of 
available plant data and tools, whatever the level of sophistication. Success in this effort is vital to real and 
sustainable improvement in plant efficiency, capacity and reliability as well as enabling the plant's O&M 
team to improve the ratio of proactive to reactive activities. Key to a successful monitoring and diagnostic 
program is an effective process to support the communication associated with diagnosis, prioritization, and 
action planning. PowerPlantMD.com proVides a user friendly communication environment for discussing 
and diagnosing plant problems, planning remedial action, and knowledge capture. 

http:PowerPlantMD.com


Black & Veatch has developed a methodology and process that properly balances the roles of software 
tools, processes and people; encompassing four primary elements. 

Anomalv Detection &Di(.11lnoSis - Leverages the capability of advanced mathematics and technology to 
enable automated "mining" of plant data for meaningful plant equipment and process anomalies. The 
analytical talent of the engineers are properly focused on validating and diagnosing these anomalies rather 
than simply handling and screening data. 

Trend Analvsis & Quarterly Reporting - Supplements the anomaly detection process by leveraging 
automated long-term trend analysis to identify problems that aren't readily apparent through the Anomaly 
Detection & Diagnostics process. A wind power specialist will review the data and provide a customized 
report. I 

i 

See APPENDIX B for more information on the PowerPlantMD M&D Center process. 
I 
i 

I 
I 

I 

I 
i 

I 



2.0 Scope of Work 
In this section, we provide the specific proposed scope of work for teaming the Black& Veatch 
PowerPlantMD Center with Palmdale Water District staff to create a successful plant monitoring and 
diagnostics program. 

2.1 Program Setup 
Program setup includes several tasks required to ensure adequate personnel and data resources exist to 
support the program. The program setup fee is a one-time cost. 

Team 

Black & Veatch will work with the client to define the "Core Team" whiCh includes Black &Veatch 
personnel in Kansas City and Denver and extends to key plant operations personnel. The Core Team is 
responsible for the success of the program. 

Below is a summary of the typical team members and their role. The Plant Team Leader is part of the Core 
Team and will require someone that is able to spend a few hours each quarter to administer the program 
from the client perspective and to provide B&V with certain data and information. 

Black & Veatch Monitoring - This project willbe managed from Kansas City by one of the project 
managers identified in the organization chart of APPENDIX B. Day to day technical oversight and 
supervision of all monitoring functions will be provided by Matt Wood. Two performance 
engineers from the PowerPlantMD Center will be assigned to directly support this project. Our 
entire technical support team will be available as needed to the Team. A Black & Veatch wind 
expert will provide quarterly analysis and reporting to supplement the day-to-day monitoring. 

Plant Team Leader - It is expected that someone at the plant will be assigned as team leader and 
primary contact for Black & Veatch. This person is typically a plant engineer but can also be an 
operations, maintenance, or I&C lead as well. This person will provide review and oversight of 
problem alerts and corrective action recommendations, as well as direct communication and 
follow~through with other plant personnel. 

Black & Veatch will submit a detailed data request checklist including a prioritized list of data and why it is 
needed. The plant is responsible for providing design data to be assembled by B&V into our M&D Center 
plant data repository. This data is used in the program setup and also remains available to the monitoring 
team to aid in problem diagnosis activities. 

Black & Veatch will work with the customer IT and Network Security professionals to define an acceptable 
remote access process. Discussions will begin based on a B&V proposed network diagram that shows how 
our MDtransfer process works to securely push data from the customer netWork into the PowerPlantMD 
Center. B&V will leverage all existing customer owned tools to the extent feasible in order to provide the 
highest value service. This often includes a real-time data historian and SCADA. In addition, other existing 
plant level tools may be leveraged including, predictive maintenance reports, operations and maintenance 
logs, work order viewing systems, drawing vaults, etc. These systems, if accessible, provide important 
insight and context into plant operations and maintenance that will improve the effectiveness and 
efficiency of the remote monitoring program. B&V will provide the PowerPlantMD software to enable the. 
remote monitoring program. Added details for each of these software components is included in 
APPENDIXA. 
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• PowerPlantMD Base Modules 
o MDtransfer,MDcalc, MDarchive 
o MDfilter, MDaJerts 
o Trend Analysis Workbooks 

• PowerPlantMD Functional Modules 
o Alerts Module 
o Issues Module and client web portal (www.PowerPlantMD.com) 

2.2 The PowerPlantMD Monitoring Process 
This section details the specific activities associated with thti! proposed services. These processes, and the 
associated tools used, are described in more detail in APPENDIX B. Monitoring wiJ\ include process and 

. equipment performance as well as equipment health parameters. 

Using the PowerPlantMD Alerts Module, B&V will provide monitoring, assessment, and evaluation of 
generated data anomalies. Monitoring will occur in real time on all B&V business days from 6 AM to 6 PM 
in the US Central Time Zone. All detected problems will be screened and validated against all available 
forms of context information, B&V experience, and the PowerPlantMD.com knowledge base. Once 
validated to the extent practical, potential impacts and risks wiJ\ be estimated and the problems will be 
communicated to the Team, as appropriate; through PowerPlantMD.com. Escalated communication, as 
appropriate, will include e-mail. pagers and phone calls. Feedback and corrective action on these issues 
will be handled on a cost/benefit basis. Other communications will be directed as required to the 
appropriate individuals and in support of the appropriate processes within the plant. 

Once each quarter, B&V will run and analyze the automated Trend Analysis Workbooks. Based on the 
aggregate of potential issues found from the Anomaly Detection and Diagnostics process and potential 
problems detected through the Trend Analysis Process, Black & Veatch will work witll the plant to diagnose 
all relevant problems and to plan corrective action through PowerPlantMD.com. Posting of potential 
problems to PowerPlantMD will include focused and prioritized information with quantified deviations and 
actionable recommendations. Where appropriate, easy to follow diagnostic steps or test plans are included 
to aid in plant physical diagnostics when data alone doesn't determine root cause. 

On a quarterly basis B&V will provide a report to Palmdale in a format similar to that shown in Appendix C, 
or as mutually agreed to by both parties. This report will include summary of wind speeds, power 
expected, power generated, operational availability and the offset billing for Southern California Edison. 

Regular plant meetings have proven to be very beneficial across Black& Veatch's entire base of 
PowerPlantMD clients. Black & Veatch will facilitate a conference call once a quarter to follow the status of 
active problems posted on PowerPlantMD.com but have the flexibility to meet additional plant needs. 
When detailed reports are delivered, a conference call will be used to review the issues and action plans 
with the team. Black & Veatch will communicate follow-up items from these meetings via email. 

Other questions or opportunities for improvement may arise, either through B&V observation or through a 
request from the plant. These vary from a question about a poorly performing process or chronic 
equipment problem to a specific request to study a retrofit option or capital improvement. Through 
documentation of current performance, comparison to industry standards, and its extensive knowledge 
and experience, Black & Veatch can provide technical insight into potential options within the context of 
expected performance and economic viability. A limited amount of assistance on these types of problems 

I 
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may be provided within the context of normal monitoring activities, but certain instances will warrant 
escalation, as defined in the cost section below. 



3.0 Compensation and Schedule 

3.1 Cost 
Black & Veatch offers the below fixed cost pricing for Palmdale Water District. This pricing is good for the 
calendar year 2012. Note that the pricing is dependant upon a 3-year service contract with annual 
payment due in the 1st quarter. 

Cost 

One-Time Setup Fee 

- Design data collection and survey 

- Support client network and PC setup 

- Implement MDtransfer 

- Implement MDcalc, MDalert, and MDtrend tools 

- PowerPlantMD.com setup 

- Team kickoff meeting via conference call 

Waived 

Yearly Fee for Performance & Equipment Health Monitoring 

- Anomaly Detection & Diagnosis Process 

- Trend Analysis & Report (l-per,quarter) 

- Escalation from Detected Anomalies 

- Team Conference Calls 

- Use of PowerPlantMD.com 

$10,000 

The scope defined in Section 2.2 includes Routine Escalations from core monitoring activities. Routine 
Escalations include such things as solving occasional remote connection or computer problems, additional 
data analysis within current time periods to help understand a potential problem, discussions with plant 
personnel to help understand a potential problem, and reacting to routine plant performance questions 
asked by the plant. Routine Escalations would typically not include things such as a specific request from 
the plant to help with a capital project evaluation, evaluation of a long term issue outside of current time 
periods, or travel to the plant for testing or diagnostics outside of normal visits defined in Section 2.2.3. 
Any requests that are not Routine Escalations will be noted as such by alack & Veatch and we will proceed 
with execution of such requests only after written agreement of the scope and expected cost. The cost of 
any such escalations will be billed on a time & material basis in addition to the regular monthly fees. Labor 
and standard office expenses will be billed based on the hourly rate schedule provided in Appendix D of 
this proposal. All other expenses including but not limited to travel and equipment will be billed at cost as 
incurred. 

3.2 Invoices 
Upon award of this work, Black & Veatch will issue an invoice to cover the first year fixed fee. Payment is 
net-30 days. 

3.3 Contractual Agreement 
Black & Veatch and client will negotiate mutually agreeable terms and conditions prior to award. 



APPENDIX A. B&V PowerPiantMD 
® 

Platform 
The PowerPlantMD® Platform is a fully integrated software suite providing transparency across plant 
planning and operations and maintenance functions. The software and resulting user experience is 
centered on the best practice outlined below. 

PLAN: Users assemble multiple market, generation, performance, and cost scenarios. Sensitivity analyses 
are run and a final plan is determined which sets an annual budget. 

FORECAST: Real-time comparison of month-to-date actual data is shown versus budget and the user can 
forecast new end-of-year projections. 

PERFORM: Unit performance is tracked relative to history and plan or forecast. Where a variance occurs, 
users drill down into equipment metrics to identify cause, impact, and corrective action. 

DIAGNOSE: Predictive analytics provide early detection of performance and equipment health parameters 
deviating from predicted.values. Contextual data and diagnostic rules help determine cause, impact, and 
corrective action 

ACT: Identified and diagnosed issues are prioritized relative to other activities and the history of all issues 
and actions are stored and searchable within the system database. 

A.l Base Modules 
The base software functionality includes several modules that collectively integrate existing plant data into 
the PowerPlantMD Platform within the Kansas City located data center. Once data is within 
PowerPlantMD, certain data transformation and caJculationengines operate in the background to enable 
PowerPlantMD functionality. These transformation and calculation engines are briefly described below: 

• 	 MDtransfer provides secure Internet transmittal of data from the plant DCS, SCADA, or data 
historian system(s). 

• 	 MDcalc provides data transformation and thermal performance calculations. 
• 	 MDarchive provides data archival and averageing for rapid long-term data retrieval. 
• 	 MDfilter provides data filtration based on user defined filters or operation modes. 
• 	 MDalert executes the predictive analytics alerting functionality to support anomaly detection. 

A.2 Functional Modules 
• 

an executive roll-up 
EXECUTIVE DASHBOARD MODULE provides 

of past, present, and 

future information available 

fromall purchased modules. 

It combines dashboard views 

and tabular views of the data 

as well as shows a variance 

analysis view that shows the 

status of fleet/station/unit 

versus target or plan. 
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• 	 RELIABILITY PLANNING MODULE uses the 
B&V developed PowerRAMTM software for 
modeling and Monte Carlo based 
simulation of unit reliability and 
availability. The user creates multiple 
scenarios based on varying equipment 
selection, system design, and outage 
maintenance frequency and the software 
provides a disttibutionofunit 
reliability/availability. 

• 	 PERFORMANCE MODULE integrates results 
from the client's existing real-time 
performance monitoring calculations or the 
B&V Online Performance Monitoring 
(OPM) system. It provides the actual 
performance information used by each of 
the other modules. Raw measured and 
calculated data are retrieved from the 
process data historian and shown on 
dynamic charts that begin with overall 
fleet, plant, or unit performance (output, 
heat rate, or C02 rate) trend then provides 
drill-down into individual system losses 
and context parameters that allow the user 
to identify the source of a performance 
issue. 

• 	 ALERTS MODULE enables our remote 
monitoring and diagnostics center service. 
Smart alarms are configured that highlight 
data that is not updating (such as due to a 
communication or sensor error) or data 
that has statistically deviated from that 
predicted by the pattern recognition 
algorithm. From the primary alarm screen, 
the user can drill down into a diagnostic 
view that provides full contextual 
information to help determine the cause of 
the anomaly. Also, the user can drill down 
into the model viewer to understand 
and/or modify the data model and 
correlations driving the prediction. The 
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center staff detects, diagnoses, and quantifies the impact of issues then works with the client to 

prioritize and resolve the issues. 


I
• ISSUES MODULE provides a useful way for 

! 

the Black &Veatch and client team to share 

and communicate information related to 
 Ithe diagnosis and correction of issues. 
Issues are organized into user defined 
categories such as "Operational Issues", 
"Maintenance Issues", "Instrumentation 
Issues", etc. The database of past issues 
(knowledge) is searchable. File sharing is 
provided via the right window pane for 
easy access to manual plant data, 
inspection reports, performance test 
reports, etc. Each user has access to only 
those data aggregation groups allowed. 

I 
! 

I 



APPENDIX B. B&VPowerPlantMD 
@ 

Center 
The Black & Veatch PowerPlantMD® Monitoring & Diagnostic (M&D) Center was founded in 2001 to help 
our clients take quick and tangible steps to achieving their ever more demanding plant performance and 
reliability goals. Black & Veatch has developed a standardized monitoring and diagnostic process that has 
achieved proven results for numerous power generation clients providing competitive edge in the 
emerging competitive marketplace. This process and the resulting PowerPlantMD service offering are 
introduced within this section of the proposal. 

B.l Black & Veatch PowerPlantMD Center Overview 
Plant information systems can provide a wealth of information regarding current, emerging and evolving 
plant issues. Frequently, such issues are clouded by variations in load, weather, fuel quality, sensor quality, 
or a lack of direct measurement to "see" the issue. Plants also tend to lack the resources and tools 
necessary to effectively evaluate the myriad of data to identify specific and meaningful equipment and 
process performance issues. Transforming disparate data sources into meaningful and actionable 
information requires complementing data and analytical tools with a standardized process and 
methodology encompassing the following guidelines. 

III Successful monitoring and diagnostics goes beyond the tools and data. 
III Performance monitoring and equipment health monitoring solutions only yield value when 

integrated within a plant performance improvement culture. 
III Monitoring and diagnostic methods and processes produce value when plant operations and 

maintenance are integrated. 
III The process needs to be centered on determining root cause and corrective action plans with 

accountability. 

Black & Veatch has developed and refined a Monitoring & Diagnostics process that has produced proven 
and sustainable success for our clients over the past five years. 
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The goal is to provide an effective and low cost methodology to help customers move from generating data 
to generating action. This fosters a transition of plant O&M process from reactive to proactive. Due to the 
wide variability and capabilities of plant level data historians and other analytical software tools, the 
process must generally be independent of the tools. For most customers, this means maximizing the use of 
existing plant data and software analytical tools infrastructure with the ability to supplement these tools 
where there are gaps. 

B.2 PowerPlantMO Service 
An effective monitoring and diagnostic program can bring significant value to any power plant asset. 
PowerPlantMD is designed to help plants achieve the benefits of a proactive M&D process regardless of the 
tools in place at the plant. The PowerPlantMD service addresses the following needs. 

II1II Means to efficiently sift through the available data to identify meaningful anomalies 
II Means to validate anomalies and correlate to potential root cause(s) and outcomes, including the 

criticality of issues in terms of impact and timing 
II1II Means to effectively leverage available plant resources to assist in diagnosis and corrective action 

~anning . 
II1II Means to document, communicate, and coordinate action plansacross plant operations, 

maintenance, and management as well as a means to track results to ensure accountability and 
sustainability 

Effective communication of potential problems with the plant is a vital function of PowerPlantMD. Plant 
operations and maintenance personnel need to be involved in the M&D process, however, they need the 
process to facilitate effective time management and resource allocation. The PowerPlantMD setup process 
maps out a core and extended plant team and defines communication guidelines. Based on this, B&V 
leverages aU communication methods based on the criticality of the problem at hand. Additionally, the 
Www,PQwerPJantMp.cQm website offers a means for user friendly problem diagnostic dialogue and 
tracking among key plant personnel and Black & Veatch. The web site can be used for tracking the 
complete life-cycle of each problem from identification, to criticality assessment, to diagnosis and 
corrective action planning and finally to closeout. See the following example. 



Step 1 -- Problem Identification 

Step 2 -Initial Recommendation and Criticality Assessment 



Step 3- Problem Diagnosis Dialogue With the Plant and Remedial Action 
v 

Depending on problem severity and criticality, alternate methods of communication include e-mail 
alerts as shown below and call to the control or other designated plant contact. 

Unit 2 10 Fan Oomper Position; 
Rectmtly the 10 fan -daml:.er I)ositkins d~creased 10 aO% Th(l de'Cfe-asea occlIITed when $.ir heater 9SS side ptaS$l,.Ir6 drops 
decreased last w~ek Trye lower DP'$ increfise the nitHuin Oil the 10- fsns ,A,t aO% the d~mper positions a:~ sWI 11)% 
hik)i1ar th~fn !''Iornudlt' -accep\~bJe levels likiily due to als'.'Cltsd fl~le g<llS leak;1l'9'; c~!'ClIlata-d using 1hs $tacl~ CEfv1S Sse the 
Mtachetl trend for n"lor~- details 

PowerPlantMD.com is also a database containingthe collection of all problem diagnostics and 
resolution information from previously identified plant issues. This knowledge is searchable by 
plant staff to aid in future diagnosis activities and can be an important resource for future 
performance engineering and predictive maintenance staff. 

http:PowerPlantMD.com
http:daml:.er


The four principal analytical components of the PowerPlantMD process are described in more detail below. 
The communications structure outlined above is fully utilized in all four of the described components of the 
PowerPlantMD Service. 

ELEMENT #1: ANOMAL V DETECTION & DIAGNOSTICS 

With the rapid adoption of modern global plant historians over the past decade, most plants have 
convenient access to a myriad of plant data. However, convenient access does not necessarily translate into 
actionable value without the ability to provide context to that data in a manner that is useful in problem 
identification, diagnosis, and resolution. 

To that end, Black & Veatch applies a process featuring advanced mathematics and technology on the front­
end to "find" meaningful anomalies for engineer evaluation, and economically driven contextualization on 
the back-end to establish both problem criticality and priority. More specifically, the anomaly detection 
and diagnostics process can be outlined as follows: 

III MDalerts Pattern Recognition Software to Alarm Statistically Relevant Deviations 

Data models use automatic learning methodology 
~ Steady state process and equipment out of service data filtering 

Application of multi-variable linear regression modeling for prediction 
Dynamic alarming via comparison standard error computation to both predicted and historic averages 

• Engineer Review 

Filters triggered alarms to assess alarm criticality 

" Issues recommendation focused on diagnosis and economic impact 


Communicates with plant staff to establish an appropriate action plan 

l1li PlantActionjPlanning 


" Operations troubleshooting 



Implementation ofoperational changes 

Short and long term maintenance planning 


This process is implemented as a service in which B&V engineers review and diagnose alarms in real time 
throughout a 60 hour per week monitoring period. The following figure shows some screen-shots from 
B&V's MDalerts Module, the front-end data processing and alarming component to this element. 

Anomaly List &Diagnostic Drill-Down Views 

I 
I 

I 


I 

i 

I 
i 

I 
I 

I 


I 

i 

IModel Configuration & Model Drill-Down Views i 

IELEMENT #2: TREND ANALYSIS & RECONCILIATION 
I 

Black & Veatch supplements the Anomaly Detection & Diagnostics process with this "on-demand" overall 
plant performance review. Slowly developing performance issues may not be detected by the anomaly I 
detection process and this process provides a secondary mechanism to ensure pro-active detection. 
Furthermore, comparing long-term and short-term operational trends provides important context to 
changes in plant equipment and system performance that can be critical to supporting problem diagnostic 
efforts. 

Available plant data is initially reviewed to determine necessary trends and performance calculations that 
may not be readily available within the data historian or through existing plant performance trends. The 
analysis portion of the process can be broken down into specific components as itemized below: 

Automated data handling and charting of major equipment and process trends 
Performance data analysis and review by PowerPlantMD staff 
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III Evaluation/review of all long term degradation 
III Quantification, prioritization, and documentation of issues 

Black & Veatch has specially developed data handling and analytical tools to support this process as a 
supplement the existing plant-owned tools. The following figure shows screen-shots of our Trend Analysis 
Workbook and a sample of the. trends generated. 

Trend Analysis Workbook 

Additional benefits to this process include: 

III Provides important insight and context into the problems previously identified through the 
anomaly detection process 

III Active monitoring of impact(s)/benefit(s) of corrective action plans in progress 

ELEMENT #3; OUTAGE/OVERHAUL ANALYSIS 

The outage/overhaul analysis process is an on-demand study and review focused on documenting pre- and 
post-outage/upgrade. performance. Metrics, both performance and economic, are compiledto summarize 
the observed change in operational performance. The following figure provides a general example of an 
analysis conducted to review a steam turbine upgrade. 



Palmdale Water District I 

Overhaul Analysis Report 

I 
ELEMENT #4: TEAM MEETINGS & CONFERENCE CAllS I 

Periodic meetings with lead representation from plant operations, maintenance and managementare an I 
essential element for ensuring sustainability and long-term success. The meetings can be held monthly, 
bimonthly or quarterly and provide for the following. 

II Team accountability and follow-through 
II Review of results and status of action plans from previous meetings 
III Review, prioritization, and corrective action planning related to problems found through the 

anomaly detection and trend analysis processes . 
II Planning of activities related to outage/overhaul analysi' process. 
III Opportunity for Black & Veatch to perform supplemental on-site diagnostics, tests, etc. 

Often times, other questions or opportunities for improvement or process optimization arise, either 
through B&V observation or through a request from the plant. These vary from a question about a poorly I 
performing process or chronic eqUipment problem to a specific req uest to study a plant redesign option or 
capital improvement. Through documentation of current performance/comparison to industry standards, 
and its extensive knowledge and experience, Black & Veatch can provide technical insight into potential I 
options within the contexts of expected performance and economic viability. A limited amount of 
assistance on these types of problems, depending on the magnitude of effort, can be provided within the 
context of normal monitoring activities. 

B.3 Black & Veatch PowerPlantMD Organization 
Black & Veatch has implemented performance monitoring tools for over twenty years and has operated a 
remote monitoring center for over 10 years. Black & Veatch has a large and experienced full-time staff of 
performance engineering professionals dedicated to helping our customers identify and diagnose 
performance related problems. In addition, the PowerPlantMDCenter can leverage the wide range of 
expert level engineering resources available throughout the Black & Veatch Energy organization. The 
PowerPlantMD Center organizational structure is shown on the following page. Below are short bios ofthe 
lead professionals. 

Mr. Scott Stallard serves as Vice President in charge of Asset Management Services within B&V Energy. In 
this role, he is responsible for management of the business and solutions associated with a wide range of 
operational issues including fuels, plant performance, O&M, and plant/portfolio optimization. The 



principle focus for Mr. Stallard and his group lies in the area of processes, tools, and solutions that are 
geared toward helping the power generator better address the technical and financial challenges facing the 
generator in today's market. Mr. Stallard has been actively involved as a consultant in helping power 
generators address performance, maintenance, and fuel issues to improve reliability, enhance fuel 
flexibility, and better manage capital and O&M expenditures. 

Mr. David Brill serves as Associate Vice-President in the ConSUlting Energy Services (CES) business line of 
Black & Veatch Energy. As a Senior Project Manager for power plant asset management services, Mr. Brill's 
primary responsibility is for oversight and development of B&V's performance engineering products and 
services. 

Mr. Matthew Wood serves as project manager and supervisor of the PowerPlantMD Center. In this role, he 
is involved in the daily operation of all aspects of the PowerPlantMD Center and manages all related 
technologies and processes. 

B.4 Black & Veatch PowerPlantMD Center Infrastructure 
The PowerPlantMD Center includes the physical infrastructure and technology required to support remote 
monitoring functions. The Center provides secure, high speed Internet-based capability to support data 
access and handling for multiple customers and plant sites. It also provides an ideal environment for our 
remote monitoring engineers and analysts to provide focused effort on the plants they are monitoring 
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while also providing a teamwork environment where shared experiences and the Black & Veatch 
knowledge base can help facilitate rapid recognition and diagnosis of newly emerging problems. 

NETWORK & DATA PROTECTION 

Black & Veatch shares our clients' concern for maintaininga secure environment in which data can be 
retrieved, analyzed, and stored. Therefore. Black & Veatch makes every effort to protect the networks. 
computers, arid data from computer viruses and network intrusions. To minimize the potential for such 
attacks Black & Veatch uses several layers of hardware and software protection including network 
firewalls, antivirus software, and a secure room for restricting access to computer hardware utilized for 
remote monitoring services. Our network data protection and facility have been audited by three large 
utilities to ensure compliance and in each case has passed the test. 

HARDWARE 

As mentioned above, the remote monitoring service primarily uses the Internet for connectivity to client 
sites. A diagram of the typical hardware configuration is shown below. The computers used by the remote 
monitoring service are protected from Internet-based attacks by several layers of hardware protection. 

SOFTWARE 

In addition to the hardware protection outlined above, software protection is also provided. Each 
computer used for Black & Veatch's remote monitoring service is configured with Symantec Endpoint 
Protection software to provide network firewall security and anti-virus atthe individual PC level. Each 
computer is continually updated with the latest virus definition files. 

Plant #1 
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B.5 Black &Veatch Experience 
The PowerPlantMD Center customer base has grown steadily from our first client in 2001. The 
PowerPlantMD process has been applied to 99 units, representing over 28,000 MW of power generation 
capacity. We understand that clients expect value and we strive to deliver. We believe the most impressive 
testament to the value that our Center delivers is that each of our clients entered into a pilot program 
period and 100% have continued using our services beyond the pilot period. See the below references. 

REFERENCES 

LG&E-KU - Brown, Cane Run, Ghent, Green River, Mill Creek, & Trimble County Stations 
LG&E-KU entered into a one year pilot of the PowerPlantMD service starting January 1, 2010. Two -500 
MW units were selected for the pilot program, which was managed by Jeff Simpson, head of the corporate 
PdM department. In October 2010, LG&E-KU signed a five-year fleet agreement covering all 18 of their U.S. 
coal units. 

Contact: Mr. Jeff Simpson - Sr Mechanical Engineer (502) 627-4354 


Minnesota Power - Boswell Units 1-4 

Minnesota Power has been utilizing Black & Veatch's OPM system since 1993 and became a PowerPlantMD 
subscriber in 2003, initially for Unit 3. The other units were later added to the process. Boswell has 
limited engineeringstaffto devote to proactive monitoring of plant performance. Minnesota Power hired 
Black & Veatch to establish a process to ensure operations and maintenance decisions are informed and 
aligned with reliability, efficiency, capacity and financial goals. 

Contact: Mr. Lester Flem - Sr Performance Engineer (218) 313-4621 

Contact: Mr. Rick Fannin - Plant Engineer (218) 313-4788 


City Utilities ofSpringfield (CUOS) - Southwest Station Unit 1-2 

CUOS is a long-term OPM system user and a PowerPlantMD subscriber since 2003. The Southwest Station 

is a single 190 MW coal fired unit located in south central Missouri. This plant is known fOJ;" high reliability 

and is critical to meeting the native electrical load of the City of Springfield and surrounding region. CUOS 

has directed Black & Veatch's efforts to diagnose a few key stealth performance losses at the plant. Unit 2, 

currently under construction, monitoring has been added to aid in the new unit startup and tuning process. 


Contact: Mr. Bryan Feemster - Plant Manager (417) 831-8853 


Hoosier Energy - Merom Station Unit 1 & 2, Ratts Station Unit 2 

Merom subscribed to PowerPlantMD on both units in 2008. These are 500 MW coal fired units located in 
western Indiana. Ratts station was added later in 2011. 

Contact: Mr. Rob Hochstetler - VP Power Produciton (812) 876·0542 
Contact: Mr. Mark Kramer - Merom Engineering Manager (812) 356-4291 x3160 
Contact: Mr. John Kunkle - Ratts Production Engineer (812) 354·8941 

Wisconsin Public Service - Weston Station Unit 3 & 4 

WPS subscribed to a pilot of PowerPlantMDon Weston Unit 3 in 2007. This is a 360MW coal fired unit 
located in Wisconsin. Following completion of the pilot, Weston added Unit 4 monitoring. 

Contact: Mr. Travis Haupt -Performance Engineer (715) 843-2335 
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Basin Electric Power Cooperative ~ Antelope Valley Unit 1 & 2, Laramie River Unit 1, 2, & 3. & Leland 
Olds Unit 1 & 2 
Basin is a long-term OPM system user and in 2007 subscribed to a pilot of PowerPlantMD at both units of 
the Antelope Valley Station. These are two 490 MW lignite fired unit located in North Dakota. Following 
completion of the pilot, Basin hired Black & Veatch to help them internalize the program for the entire coal 
fleet. B&V's ongoing role includes support of their software and internal M&D team including annual audit 
and enhancement of their process. 

Contact: Mr. Larry Nelson - Senior Pe.rformance Engineer (701) 355-5695 

Big Rivers Electric Corp. (BREC) ~ Green Unit 1 & 2. Coleman Unit 1. 2, & 3, Wilson Unit 1, Henderson 
Unit 1 & 2 
BREC has been utilizing Black& Veatch's OPM system since 1990 and became a PowerPlantMD subscriber 
in 2002. Wilson and Henderson units were added in 2009. In 2010, a three-year fleet agreement was 
signed with specific focus on the routine outage analysis portion of the program. B&V assistance in this 
way helps them to fine tune their work plans and provide feedback on the outcome of these maintenance 
investments. 

Contact: Mr. Duane Braunecker - Manager Production Services (270J 844-6191 
Contact: Mr. WayneO'Bryan - Coleman Plant Manager (270) 844-6052 
Contact: Mr. George Hollander - Reid/Green/Henderson Plant Engineer (270) 844-5529 
Contact: Mrs. Diana Merritt - Wilson Plant Engineer (270) 844-5008 
Contact: Mr. Jeff Francis - HMP&L Production Manager (270) 844-5820 

Hawaiian Electric Company - Kahe Unit 5 & WaiauUnit 5 
HECO subscribed to a pilot ofPowerPlantMD on two units in 2007. One is a 60 MW non-reheat oil-fired 
unit which operates in a daily cycling mode. The second is a 130 MW reheat oil-fired unit which operates in 
a load-following mode. The pilot was extended in 2008 and then in 2009, HECD determined that their 
internal performance monitoring program was sufficient for detecting performance issues and their PdM 
program was sufficient for detecting equipment issues. Although routine monitoring is not provided, HEeO 
has maintained B&V data connection and services for routine assessment of unit overhaul activities to 
ensure that the units are running optimally. 

Contact: Mr. Mike Decaprio - Sr Supervisor, Engineering & PdM (808) 543-4257 



APPENDIX C. Sample Quarterly Report 
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BLACK & VEATCHWind Turbine Summary .. July 2005 

Operational Characteristics SCE Bills 
Nacelle Expected OCES 

EnergyAverage Wind Speed 
Avail On-Line Capacity Effective Savings 

(mts) (m/s) (mts) 
Generated Plant Use Shortfall Complete 

Factor Bill 

Aug-04 


(MWh) (MWh) (MWh 
167.9 157.7 -10.2 10.5% 23.8% $6,007 $7,751 


Sep-04 

4.84 5.50 7.0 

18.9% $6,243 $9,677 
Oct-04 

129.4 1.82.5 42.9 18.7%4.69 5.52 6.5 
136.8 141.7 47.8 27.2% $3,594 $8,762 


Nov-04 

19.4%2.28 5.66 5.8 

99.6% 41.3% 10.0% $3,293 $6,842 

Dec-04 


68.6 116.2 95.4 31.5%3.13 5.24 4.8 
99.8% 42.4% 11.9% $3,252 $7,038 

Jan-05 
84.4 118.0 128.9 36.8%3.35 5.35 4.0 

99.1% 38.3% 12.3% $2,018 $4,410 

Feb-05 


87.1 73.7 115.5 42;~0.103.29 3.86 3.8 
99.9% 47.8% 10.5% $2,337 $5,489 


Mar-05 

67.0 89.7 138.3 46.5%3.40 4.44 

99.1% 59.8% 19.6% $2,871 $8,399 

Apr-OS 


138.3 129.2 129.2 55.2%4.83 5.73 
99.7% 56.0% 18.8% $1,355 $8,854 


May-05 

127.0 149.1 151.3 63.1%4.80 7.47 

94.6% 59.2% 18.2% $1,137 $9,077 

Jun-05 


128.3 144.5 167.5 71.2%4.77 6.54 
99.5% 63.9% 23.7% $2,712 $10,074 

Jul-05 
162.0 140.9 146.4 81.4%5.16 7.42 
161.9 150.9 135.4 91.5% 99.8% 65.4% 22.9% 

Ave/Sum 
5.22 6.14 

1,459 1,594 91.50.10~ I 98.9% 51.1% 17.0% $34,818 $86,373 

Important July Notes 
4.05 5.74 

Palmdale Water District Wind Turbine 

200412005 Energy Production and Consumption 


200 1. June winds were close to budgeted levels. ~ 
131) 2. This month is the end of the 2004/2005 Net Metering year (Aug 
160 - July). The turbine produced 1,459 MWh, or 92 percent of the 
140 Treatment Plant's estimated total electrical load. 

:c 120:;:: 3. Treatment plant loads were about 15% higher than in previousE 
;;: 100 
f' years. The wind turbine did not offset total plant annual .. 
" 80uJ .consumption, but no wind energy from PWD is likely to be 

60 given to SeE without payment. 
40 

4. The turbine produced about 5 percent more power this year 
20 

than budgeted, due to slight variations in actual wind conditions 
0 ... .. ... .. ... ... over budgeted levels . ~ '1 ~ "!' '" '" 9 '1~ 0- ~ ~ ! ~ t 
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Palmdale Water District ~ll
Wind Turbine Summary - July 2005 BLACK & VEATCH 

Wind Turbine Performance: 
1. 	 The turbine power curve shows better than expected performance at low winds and lower than expected at 

high winds. B&V believesthis is an issue with anemometer accuracy (not turbine performance) but awaits 
input from Oak Creek and Vestas. 

Site/Environmental/Safety Issues: 
1. 	 Minor re~grading from heavy January rains still needs to be performed. 
2. 	 The performance of both FAA lights was impacted by a grid failure in May. Upon last inspection, one light was 

operating normally while the other is operating constantly in daytime mode (white strobe). OCES replaced the 
lights on June 7, and they appear to be functioning normally again. Awaiting findings of light vendor as to 
cause of failure, and ifit wfll be covered by warranty. 

3. 	 No dead birds were found this month, nor any time since the turbine was installed. 

Maintenance: 
1. 	 The "A" maintenance was done Oct. 1, 2004. This is a one-time-only maintenance service 
2. 	 The "B" maintenance was done March 22-23, 2005. The next "B" maintenance is due in March/April, 2006. 
3. 	 The "C" maintenance has yet to be performed. The next "C" maintenance is due Sept. 22, 2005. 
4. 	 Rust was found on the anchor bolts. B&Vand PWD are working on this issue. 
5. 	 There was 62.5 hours of communications failure during which no data was collected. The turbine appeared to 

operate normally during that period. B&V checking with OCES on caus.e of failure, given last month's 
replacement of a breaker to avoid similar issue. 

Utility Issues: 
1. 	 The last bill received by SCE was on July 25, 2005. B&V has reviewed this billing summary and did not locate 

any errors (although the bill for March 2005 was not included). B&V awaits the next bill for the final information 
to finish the net energy metering billing year. 

, Other Issues: 

Palmdale Water District Pahridale Water District 
Energy Production Wind Rose Measuret! Wint! Turbine Power Curve 
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Palmdale Water District I 

APPENDIX D. Hourly Rate Schedule I 

I 


I 

I 


I 

I 


I 




analysis, and management. Includes departmental and project assignments Includlng'englneerlng 

IId"partnne'ltmanagement. 

IIProfesslc)na,js who assess the cost related to projects to assist with the preparation of proposals. 

IIAr'chl:tec:tUlcall design, analysis, and management of the architectural function. 

04 
05 
06 
07 
08 

02 
03 
04 

04 
05 
06 

04 

$42.24 
$48.51 
$60.94 

$96.44 
$107.87 
$123.22 

$83.93 
05 $109.83 
06 $131.70 
07 $140.40 
08 $164.64 
09 $188.08 
10 $202.89 

02 $176.80 
03 $192.40 
04 $228.80 
05 $249.60 
06 $291.20 
07 $317.20 

128 $86.08 
129 $95.87 
130 $110.18 
131 $136.55 
132 $156.81 
133 $177,01 
134 $211.59 

li9 $78.45 
130 $94.89 
131 $111.08 
132 $147.40 

126 $60.72 
127 $65.63 
128 $71.66 
12,9 $84.31 
130 $96.28 
131 $119.24 
132 $137.48 
133 $165.70 

02 $76.86 
03 $88.26 
04 $122.18 
05 $138.81 
06 $160.03 
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IIProfe,ssi"nads who secure and administer the purchase of goods, commodities, and services, 

IIProfe"si'>nsll. who track the cost associated with a project and perform planning and scheduling functions related to 

04 
05 
06 
07 

06 
07 

07 

02 
03 
04 
05 
06 

02 
03 
04 
05 
06 

02 
03 
04 
05 
06 
07 

02 
03 
04 
05 
06 
07 
08 

$135.24 
$162.21 

$50,42 
$61.79 

$67.70 
$77.93 
$92.35 

$107.40 
$126.19 

12 
$82.26 
$92.60 

$116.05 
$130.25 
$142.90 

$1'12.54 
$184.89 
$198.09 
$205.83 
$219.69 
$243.98 

$64,84 
$75.91 
$93.39 

$108.19 
$134.59 
$152.99 
$208.29 

\1 
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P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: June 7, 2012   June 13, 2012 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matthew R. Knudson, Engineering Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.11 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE 
ACTION ON PIPELINE RELOCATION AGREEMENT FOR APN’S 
3053-005-902, 903, AND 905 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 

Staff and the Facilities Committee recommend approving the attached agreement 
between Palmdale Water District and Antelope Valley Union High School District for the 
approval and acknowledgement of the proposed relocation of the water line as shown on 
Exhibit “A” attached to the proposed agreement. 

 
Background: 
 

The District has an existing 8-inch steel water main that was constructed in 1965 
that has experienced numerous leaks over the last several years and is in need of 
replacement. District staff has prepared a design for the installation of a new 8-inch water 
main that will cross the above referenced parcels owned by the Antelope Valley Union 
High School District (AVUHSD). The District’s construction crew is scheduled to start 
construction of said replacement water main within the next few weeks, and District staff 
would like to have an agreement in place prior to starting construction that acknowledges 
that the AVUHSD accepts the location of the proposed 8-inch water main. 
 
Strategic Plan Element: 
 

This work is part of Strategic Goal 3.0 – Infrastructure Management. 
 
Budget: 
 

The approval of the attached agreement will have no impact on the 2012 Budget. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 
 Proposed Agreement between Palmdale Water District and Antelope Valley 

Union High School District 
 Exhibit “A” – Approved Water System Design Drawings  

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.11



AGREEMENT 
 

 This Agreement is entered into by and between Palmdale Water District, an irrigation 
district formed under Division 11 of the California Water Code (“District”), and Antelope Valley 
Union High School District, a public entity (“Owner”), as of the last date set forth below with 
respect to the following facts: 
 
RECITALS 
 

A. Owner owns the real property shown as parcel 902, 903, and 905 in map book 3053, 
page 005 of the Los Angeles County Assessor and situated in Palmdale, California 
(the “Property”), and 
 

B. District provides domestic water service to the Property and desires to perform certain 
construction work (the “Work”) related to its continuing water service to that 
property, and 

 
C. Owner and the District desire to specify their respective rights and responsibilities 

relative to the Work. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows. 

 
1. Approval of Relocation of Water Line.  Owner acknowledges that it has reviewed 

the plans for the Work, as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, and by its entering into this Agreement, 
Owner hereby approves the location of the new water line the District will construct and install 
as part of the Work. 

 
2. Cost of the Work.  The District shall bear all costs associated with the planning, 

design and construction of the Work, and shall hold Owner completely harmless from such costs 
and from any liabilities that may result from that Work. 

 
3. Costs of Agreement.  Each party shall bear its own costs incurred in connection 

with the preparation of this Agreement. 
 

Palmdale Water District 
 

Dated:  June __, 2012 By       
  Dennis D. LaMoreaux, 
  General Manager 
 

Antelope Valley Union High School District 
 

Dated:  June __, 2012 By       
 Its       
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MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE FACILITIES COMMITTEE OF THE PALMDALE 
WATER DISTRICT, MARCH 21, 2012: 

A meeting of the Facilities Committee of the Palmdale Water District was held Wednesday, 
March 21, 2012, at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale, California, in the Board Room of the 
District office. Chair Alvarado called the meeting to order. 

1) Roll Call. 

Attendance: 
Facilities Committee: 
Robert Alvarado, Chair 
Gordon Dexter, Committee 

Member 

Others Present: 
Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 
Matt Knudson, Engineering Manager 
Tim Moore, Facilities Manager 
Dawn Deans, Executive Assistant 
4 members of th~ public 

2) Adoption of Agenda. 

It was moved by Committee Member Dexter, seconded by Chair Alvarado, and 
unanimously carried to adopt the agenda, as written. 

3) Public Comments. 

There were no public comments. 

4) Action Items: (The Public Shall Have an Opportunity to Comment on Any 
Action Item as. Each Item is Considered by the Committee Prior to Action Being 
Taken.) 

4.1) Consideration and Possible Action· on Approval of Minutes of Regular 
Meeting Held September 21, 2011. 

It was moved by Committee Member Dexter, seconded by Chair Alvarado, and 
unanimously carried to approve the minutes of the Facilities Committee meeting held 
September 21, 2011, as written. 

4.2) Discussion and Possible Action on Energy Efficiency Proposal Received 
From Orion Engineered Systems West. (General Manager LaMoreauxlWillie Evans, 
Energy Reduction Consultant, Orion Engineered Systems West) 

-1­
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1



MARCH21,2012 
FACILITIES 

COMMITfEE MEETING 

General Manager LaMoreaux stated that staff recommends the Committee 
consider an energy efficiency lighting proposal for changing out the lighting at the 
District's office, shop buildings, and water treatment plant facilities after which Mr. 
Willie Evans, Energy Reduction Consultant for Orion Engineered Systems West, 
reviewed their lighting audit conducted on District facilities, the details and cost of their 
proposal for providing energy efficient lighting fixtures and bulbs, available rebates, 
and financing options followed by discussion of the details of the proposal and retrofit. 

Mr. Bill McNeese, Business Development Manager for Energy Protection 
Systems, then gave a presentation on an overall energy savings program strategy for 
the District including the lighting retrofit, a proactive real-time sentinel program for 
measuring and monitoring the District's usage and costs, the generation of power. 
through a PV system, which would create renewable energy credits and provide a 
return on investment, and then reviewed the cost of these programs and their 
involvement. 

The Committee then recommended the energy efficiency lighting proposal be 
presented to the full Board for consideration and staff review the potential cost and 
savings, anticipated payback, and replacement costs. 

4.3) Status Report on Request Received From the Antelope Valley 
Conservancy for Conservation Easement on District-Owned Property. (General 
Manager LaMoreaux) 

General Manager LaMoreaux provided an overview of the Antelope Valley 
Conservancy's request for a conservation easement on District-owned property located 
between Una Lake and the travelway for Barrel Springs Road on the east side of Sierra 
Highway, including use of their grant funds to help with trash clean-up and provide 
fencing for this site, and then informed the Committee that revised mitigation 
requirements for the Palmdale Ditch Enclosure Project have been requested from the 
Department of Fish and Game; that the District cannot commit to a conservation 
easement until these mitigation requirements are received as the conservation easement 
and mitigation measures cannot overlap; that members of the Conservancy will be 
contacting Board members individually regarding the conservation easement; and that 
the District has issued a support letter to the Conservancy's grant issuing agency for a 
time extension on their use of potential grant funds in this area. 

-2­
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MARCH 21,2012 
FACILITIES 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

Chair Alvarado then requested that information on the conservation easement be 
made available to the Directors. 

5) Information Items. 

Chair Alvarado requested Facilities Manager Moore share information on the 
potential lighting energy efficiency project with facilities staff after which General 
Manager LaMoreaux informed the Committee that this information can also be shared 
at next week's all-hands lunch/meeting. 

There were no additional information items to discuss. 

6) Board Members' Requests for Future Agenda Items. 

General Manager LaMoreaux informed the Committee· that staff is working with 
Black & Veatch for an evaluation of the wind turbine's performance, and this 
informatiQn will be brought before the Committee when available. 

There were no requests for future agenda items. 

7) Adjournment. 

There being no further business to come before the Facilities Committee, the 
meeting was adjourned. 

Chair 

-3­
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MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE WATER SUPPLY & RELIABILITY COMMITTEE 
OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, APRIL 20, 2012: 

A meeting of the Water Supply & Reliability Committee of the Palmdale Water District was held 
Friday, April 20, 2012, at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale, California, in the Board Room of the 
District office. Chair Dexter called the meeting to order. 

1) Roll Call. 

Attendance; Others Present: 
Water Supply & Reliability Cmte: Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 
Gordon Dexter, Chair Jon Pemula, Water & Energy Resources Mngr. 
Gloria Dizmang, Committee Matt Knudson, Engineering Manager 

Member Danielle Doll, Administrative Assistant 
omembers of the public 

2) Adoption of Agenda. 

It was moved by Committee Member Dizmang, seconded by Chair Dexter, and 
unanimously carried to adopt the agenda, as written. 

3) Public Comments. 

There were no public comments. 

4) Action Items: 

4.1) Consideration and Possible Action on Approval of Minutes of Meeting 
Held April 20, 2012. 

It was moved by Committee Member Dizmang, seconded by Chair Dexter, and 
unanimously carried to approve the minutes of the Water Supply & Reliability Committee 
meeting held April 20, 2012, as written. 

4.2) Presentation of Monthly Water Demand and Supply Status. (Water & 

Energy Resources Manager Pemula) 

Water & Energy Resources Manager Pemula informed the Committee that the 
District's State Water Project allocation has been increased to 60% and then reviewed the 
water supply projections and charts included with the agenda packet followed by 
discussion of precipitation charts and the elevation of Littlerock Reservoir. 

-1­



APRIL 20, 2012 
WATER SUPPLY & RELIABILITY 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

4.3) Consideration and Possible Action on Strategic Water Resources Plan. 
(Water & Energy Resources Manager Pemula) 

Water & Energy Resources Manager Pemula reviewed additional comments 
received on the draft Programmatic Environmental Impact Report for the Strategic Water 
Resources Plan. 

4.4) Consideration and Possible Action on Proposals for Preparation of Local 
Groundwater Assistance (LGA) Grant Application. ($50,000.00 - Non-Budgeted ­
Engineering Manager Knudson) 

Engineering Manager Knudson informed the Committee that staff is seeking 
assistance in preparing the grant application for the $250,000.00 LGA offered by the 
Department of Water Resources; that staff has received two proposals for this work; and 
that based on review of the proposals, staff recommends accepting the proposal received 
from Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. in the not-to-exceed amount of $35,000.00, and 
after a further discussion of the grant, of District work performed by Wildermuth 
Environmental, Inc., and of the District's intent for the grant funds, the Committee 
concurred with staff's recommendation and that this item be presented to the full Board 
for consideration. 

5) Project Updates. 

5.1) Recycled Water Master Plan. (Water & Energy Resources Manager 
Pemula) 

Chair Dexter stated that there are no updates to report on this item due to 
litigation. 

5.2) Garden Bar Water Supply and Power Project. (Water & Energy Resources 
Manager Pemula) 

Water & Energy Resources Manager Pernula reported that staff has been invited to 
attend a meeting at the upcoming ACWA Conference on this Project and that the next 
steps, outreach, and co-partnerships for this Project are scheduled to be discussed. 

http:35,000.00
http:250,000.00
http:50,000.00


APRIL 20, 2012 
WATER SUPPLY & RELIABILITY 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

5.3) Water Purchase Opportunities. (Water & Energy Resources Manager 
Pernula) 

Water & Energy Resources Manager Pernula reported on the negotiations of the 
water purchaseopporturuty with Butte County followed by discussion of the number of 
State Water Project contractors and Littlerock Creek Irrigation District's use of their State 
Water Project allotment. 

5.4) Water Treatment and Transportation Agreement Between Palmdale 
Water District and Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency - Acton Water Treatment 
Plant. (Engineering Manager Knudson) 

Engineering· Manager Knudson reported that A VEK's contractor for construction 
of this project has completed the boring underneath the railroad at Sierra Highway and 
are laying pipeline; that the District is providing construction inspection for the project; 
and then provided photographs of the railroad boring process followed by discussion of 
an anticipated completion date and construction of a raw water line to Palmdale Ditch 
after which Chair Dexter stated that this project is a success story and should be 
publicized when water is flowing. 

5.5) Littlerock Dam Sediment Removal Project. (Engineering Manager 
Knudson) 

Engineering Manager Knudson reported that the Forest Service has been 
responsive to su~mittals and requested feedback; that letters have been submitted to 
various· quarry owners regarding disposal of sediment; and that a meeting is scheduled 
next week with one of the quarry owners. 

6) Public Comments on Closed Session Agenda Matters. 

There were no public comments on dosed session agenda matters. 

7) Closed Session Under: 
7.1) Government Code Section 54956.9(a), Existing Litigation: Antelope Valley 

Ground Water Cases. 



APRIL 20,2012 
WATER SUPPLY & RELIABILITY 

COMMITIEE MEETING 

At 3:30 p.m. Chair Dexter called for a closed session pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9(a), Existing Litigation - one case: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases. 

He reconvened the Committee meeting at 3:35 p.m. 

8) Public Report of Any Action Taken in Closed Session. 

Chair Dexter reported that a closed session had been held under Government 
Code Section 54956.9(a), Existing Litigation - one case: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases; 
that the Committee was briefed on this matter; but that no reportable action under the 
Brown Act was taken in closed session on any of these matters. 

9) Information Items. 

There were no additional information items to discuss. 

10) Board Members' Requests for Future Agenda Items. 

There were no requests for future agenda items. 

Chair Dexter stated that the next Water Supply & Reliability Committee meeting 
will be held May 18, 2012 at 3:00 p.m. 

11) Adjournment. 

There being no further business to come before the Water Supply & Reliability 
Committee, the meeting was adjourned. 

Chair 




